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The Annual Report of Carnival pic compnses the standalone Carmival ple consolidated IFRS
inancial statements and the Carnival plc company UK GAAP financial statements contained
heren, together with the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report and the Proxy
Statemnent

The standalone Carnwval plc consolidated IFRS financial statements are required to satisfy
reporting requirements of the Companies Act 1985, and do not include the results of Carnival
Corporation Hawever the directors consider that within the DLC structure the most appropnate
presentation of Carnival plc's results and financiat position i1s by reference to the US GAAP
financial statements of Carnival Corporation & ple, which are included within the Carnival
Corporation & pic 2006 Annual Report that accompanles this document
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Carnival plc

GTOUP income statements

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
Note U5 $§m uUsSm
Revenues
Cruse
Passenger tickets 3,3286 3,1025
Onboard and other 694 3 678 3
Land tours and other 3522 3202
2 4,375 1 41010
Costs and expenses
Operating
Cruise
Commussions, transportation and other 704 6 6912
Onboard and other 1737 1776
Payroll and related 3850 3881
Fue! 3153 2387
Food 2041 2027
Other ship operating 606 8 5870
Other 2634 226 4
Total 2,652 9 25117
Selling and administrative 3 5467 580 5
Depreciation and amortisation 11 3406 3353
3,5402 3,4275
Operating income 8349 6735
Interest income 151 "7
Interest expense, net of capitalised interest (112 5) (132 5)
Other income (expense), net 54 47)
4 (92 0) {125 5)
Income before income taxes 7429 548 0
Income tax benefit (expense), net 5 18 (23 9)
Net income 17 7447 5241
Carnival plc standalone earnings per share (in U S dollars)
Basic 7 350 247
Diluted 7 349 246

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Within the DLC structure the most appropriate presentation of Carnival plc’s results and financial
posttion 1S constdered to be by reference to the U S GAAP consolidated financra!l statements of
Carnival Corporation & ple, which are included within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual
Report (see note 1) For information, we set out below the U S GAAP consolidated earnings per
share included within the Carnival Corporation & plc conseolidated financial statements for the
twelve months ended November 30, 2006 and 2005 (in U S dollars)

DLC Basic earntngs per share 2008 285 2005 280
DLC Diluted earnings per share 2006 277 2005 270




Carnival ple

Group statements of recogmised income and expense

Note
Foreign exchange translation differences
Net (loss)/gain on hedge of net investments in foreign operations
Effective portion of net changes in far value of cash flow hedges
Met actuanal gan/{loss) on defined benefit pensicn schemes 21
Net gan/{loss) recognised directly in shareholders’ equity
Net income

Total recognised income i7

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
UsSsm Ussm
491 4 {385 2}
(25 6) 75

60 86
146 (10 6}
486 4 (379 7)
7447 524 1
1,2311 144 4

Report (see note 1}

Within the DLC structure the most appropnate presentation of Carniva!l plc’s results and financial
position 15 considered 1o be by reference lo the US GAAP consolidated financial statements of
Carnivat Corporation & plc, which are included within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual




Carnival plc

Group balance sheets

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 MNov 30,2005

Note Uussm uUsSsm
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,049 9 7780
Trade and other receivables, net 9 2101 2428
Inventones 10 1034 1025
Prepaid expenses and other 1277 1194
Total current assets 1,491 1 1,2427
Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net 11 8,0955 6,901 4
Goodwill 12 7470 692 4
Other assets 13 1258 826
Total assets 10,4594 8,9191
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current habihities
Short-term debt 14 4125 1,269 9
Amounts owed to Carnival Corporation 2098 297 1
Accounts payable 1759 2304
Accrued habilities and other 3722 3745
Customer deposits 7180 6217
Total current habilities 18884 2,793 6
Non-current habilities
Long-term debt 14 28763 1,516 5
Other long-term liabilihes 15 2199 179 2

49846 4,480 3

Shareholiders’ equity

Ordinary shares 16 3537 3529
Share premium i7 819 756
Retained earnings 17 3,4488 2,8927
Other reserves 17 1,580 4 1,108 6
Total shareholders’ equity 54748 4,429 8

10,459 4 8,919 1

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Approved by the board of dir n February 20, 2007 and signed on its behalf by
Micky Arison

Howard S Fra

within the DLC structure the most appropniate presentation of Carnival plc’s results and financial
positien 1s considered 10 be by reference to the U S GAAP consohdated financial statements of
Carnival Corporalion & plc, which are included within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual
Report (see note 1)




Carnival plc

Group statements of cash tlow

Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations before interest and taxes 18
Interest paid, net

Income taxes paid, net

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Investment 1n subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Movement on loans with Carnival Corporation
Loan drawdowns

Loan repayments

Dividends paid to shareholders

Issue of ordinary share capital

Net {used in)/provided by financing activities
Effects of exchange rate changes

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
USSm [VE-R-1.]
1,276 8 1,177 9
(120 5) (122 0)

(13 6} {14 9)
11,1427 1,041 0
(904 5) (738 4)
487 14 8
— 16
(855 8) 722 O
134 2 887
23879 1,721 9
(2,408 2) {1,391 6)
(211 4) (148 5)
171 116
(80 4) 292 1
732 (15 4)
2797 5957
7702 174 5
1,049 9 7702

Report (see note 1)

Wittun the DLC structure the most appropnale presentation of Carnival plc’s results and financial
position 1s considered to be by reference to the U S GAAP consolidated financial statements of
Carnival Corporation & ple, which are included within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual




Notes to the consohdated financial statements

1 Accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been apphed consistently in dealing with items which are
considered matenal in relation to Carnwval ple (the “Company”), its subsidiaries and associates
(collectively the “Group™)

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Carnival plc consolidated IFRS financial statements are presented in U S dollars, the Group's
presentation currency, rounded to the nearest 01 million They are prepared on the historical cost
basis except for denvative financial instruments which are stated at far value

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS™) and with those parts of the Compamies Act
1985 apphlicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The Carnival plc consohdated IFRS financial statements are the Group’s first audited consolidated
financial statements prepared under IFRS, with a transition date of December 1, 2004 Conseguently,
the comparative figures for 2005 and the Group’s balance sheet as at December 1, 2004 have been
restated to comply with IFRS IFRS 1 on first ime adoption allows certain exemptions from retrospective
application of IFRS In the opening balance sheet for 2004 Where these have been used, they are
explamned in the accounting policies below and in note 26 In addition to the changes as a result of
adopting IFRS, the Group changed its accounting policy on dry-docking costs and made some
changes to comparative amounts following the implementation of a new global financial system,
further details of these adjustments are aiso provided in note 26

The Carnwval plc consohdated IFRS financial statements include the results of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and incorporate the Group's interest in 1ts associates under the equity method of
accounting

Carnival Corporatton and Carnival plc operate a dual hsted company (“DLC”), whereby the businesses
of Carnival Corporation and Carmival pic are combined through a number of contracts and through
provisions 1n Carnival Corporation’s articles of incorporation and by-laws and Carnival plc's
memorandum of association and articles of association Although the two companies have retained
ther separate legal identities, they operate as If they were a single economic enterprise Each
company's shares continue to be publicly traded, on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE"} for
Carnval Corporation and the London Stock Exchange for Carnival plc In addiion, Carnival plc
Amencan Depository Shares are traded on the NYSE The contracts governing the DLC structure
provide that Carnival Corporation and Carnival pic each continue to have separate boards of directors,
but the boards and senior executive management of both companies are identical Under the contracts
governing the DLC the Carmival Corporation & plc consolidated earnings accrue egually to each unit
of Carnival Corporation stock and each Carnival plc share Further details relating to the DLC are
included in note 3 of the Carnival Corporation & plc consohdated financial statements

In order to provide the Carnival Corporation and Carnival ple shareholders with the most meaningful
picture of their economic mierest in the DLC formed by Carnival Corporation and Carnival ple,
consolidated financial statements and management commentary of Carnival Corporation & plc have
been included in the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report The consolidated Carnival
Corporation & plc financial statements have been prepared under purchase accounting principles
whereby the DLC transaction has been accounted for as an acqusiton of Carnival ple by Carnival
Corporation These consohdated Carnival Corporation & ple financial statements have been prepared
under US GAAP on the basis that all significant financial and operating decisions affecting the DLC
companies are taken on the basis of U S GAAP information and consequences

The standalone Carniva! plc consohdated IFRS financial statements, including the Carnival Corporation
& plc U S GAAP statements on pages 5 to 23 of the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report,
and the Carnival plc company UK GAAP financial statements are required to satisty reporting
requirements of the Companies Act 1985 However, the directors consider that within the DLC
arrangement the most appropnate presentation of Carnival plc’s results and financial position 1$ by
reference to the U S GAAP financial statements of Carnival Corporation & plc




Notes to the consolidated financial statements—(contmnued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions I1s capitalised and 1s considered to have an indefinite Iife subject to
annual impairment reviews or whenever indicators of impairment are detected Goodwill represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition of a subsidiary over the Group’s share of the far value of
identifiable net assets acquired Goodwill s stated at cost less accumulated rmpairment losses

Property and equipment

Ships are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation Subsequent ship improvement costs that we
believe add value to our ships are capitalised as additions to the ships, while costs of repairs and
maintenance and minor replacement costs are charged to expense as Incurred

Properties and other fixed assets, Including computer equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation

Interest incurred in respect of payments on account of assets under construction i1s capitalised to the
cost of the assets concerned

Depreciation 1s calculaled to write off the cost to estimated residual value on a straight line basis over
the expected useful life of the asset concerned as follows

Cruise ships 30 years
Freehold bulldings 2035 years
Other fixed assets 2-20 years

Owned land and ships under construction are not depreciated

Impairment of property and equipment

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable based on estimated
future cash flows Provision for impairment in value of the property and equipment 15 made In the
Group income statement

Dry-dock costs

Dry-dock costs primarily represent planned major maintenance activities which are immediately
written off to profit and loss Capital expenditures incurred during a dry-dock are capitalised as ship
improvements on a component basis and depreciated over their estimated useful lives, with the
estimated net book value of assets being replaced written off This 1s a change to the previous policy
under which certain dry-dock costs were deferred, further details of the effect of this change i
accounting policy are given in note 26

Grants

Government grants recewed towards the cost of property and equipment are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset to which they relate and credited to the Group income statement over
the expected useful Iife of the related asset

Inventonies

inventonies consist of provisions, gift shop and art merchandise held for resale, fuel and supplies and
are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash balances and call deposits Bank overdrafts thal are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statements of cash flow

Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue comprises sales to third parties {excluding VAT and similar sales and porl taxes) Guest
cruise deposits represent unearned revenues and are mitially recorded as customer deposit habilities
when recewed Customer deposits are subsequently recognised as cruise revenues, together with
revenues from onboard and other activities, which includes transpertation and shore excursion




Notes to the consolidated financial statements— {continued)

revenues and all associated direct costs of a voyage, upon completion of voyages with durations of
ten nights or tess and on a pro rata bases for voyages in excess of ten nights Future travel discount
vouchers 1ssued to guests are typically recorded as a reduction of revenues when such vouchers are
utised Cancellation fees are recogrised in revenues at the hime of cancellabon Revenues and
expenses from tour and travel services are recogmised at the time the services are performed or
expenses are incurred

Leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Group mcome statement on a straight line basis
over the life of the lease

Selling expenses

Marketing and promotion costs are expensed as incurred, except for brochures and media production
costs, which are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to the Group income statement as
brochures are consumed or upon the first ainng of the advertisement

Employee benefits

Pensions

The Group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes The net deficit or surplus
for each defined benefit pension scheme 1s calculated in accordance with IAS 19, based on the present
value of the defined benefit obhigation at the balance sheet date less the far value of the plan assets
The calculation 1s performed by a quahfied actuary using the projected unit credit method The discount
rate i1s the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated bonds or local equivalent that have
maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Group's obligations

Actuarial gains and losses that arise In calculating the Group's obligation In respect of a plan
are recognised in the period in which they anse directly in the statement of recognised income
and expenses

The operating and financing costs of defined benefit pension plans are recogmsed in the ncome
statement, current service costs are spread systematically over the expected average remamning
service ives of employees and financing costs are recognised In the perods within which they anse
To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense 1s recognised immediately in the income
statements

Contnibutions, including lump sum payments, 1n respect of defined contribution pension schemes are
charged to the income statements as they fall due

The Group has apphed the transition exemption permitted by IFRS 1 which allows all cumulative
actuarial gains and losses relating to pensions and other post retirement benefits to be recognised in
full In equrty at the transition date

Share-based payments

The Group operates two employee share plans the Carmival plc Deferred Bonus and Co-Investment
Matching Plan and the Carmival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan The far value of share options
granted to employees Is calculated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes valuation model The
resulting cost 1S charged to the Group income statement over the period during which the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the options The amount recognised as an expense 1S adjusted to
reflect changes in expected and actual levels of options vesting

The fair values of restncted share awards and matching share awards under the plans are measured
by reference to the Carnival pic share price The farr value 1s measured at grant date and, in accordance
with IFRS 2, the resulting cost 1s charged to the Group income staternent over the pernod during which
the employees become unconditionally entitled to the shares The amount recognised as an expense
1s adjusted to reflect changes in expected and actual levels of shares vesting

The Group has applied the transition exemption permitted under IFRS 1, which allows for the exclusion
from expensing certain share-based payments, for example those relating to employee share oplions
granted either before November 7, 2002 or which vested before January 1, 2005




Notes to the consolidated financial statements— (continued}

Dividends

Dividend distnbutions are recogrised n the perrod in which the dividends are declared as under the
DLC arrangements the declaration of a dividend, by the Boards of Carnival Corporation and Carnival
ple, crystalkses a habiity for Carmival plc

Foreign currencies

The presentation currency of the Group 1s the U S dollar The Group’s busingsses generate earnings
In a number of different currencies, principally Euros, pounds Stering and U S dollars Each business
determines ifs functional currency by reference to the relevant economic environment Transacbions
in currencies other than a business’ functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling
at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are franslated at the year end exchange rates Profits and losses of subsidiaries and branches which
have functional currencies other than U S dollars are translated into U S dollars at average rates
of exchange

Exchange differences ansing from the retranslation of the opening net assets of subsidianes and
branches which have currencies of operation other than U S dollars and any related hedges are
taken to the statement of recogrnised income and expense, together with the differences arnising when
the profit and loss accounts are translated at average rates and compared with rates ruling at the year
end Other exchange differences are taken to the income statement

The Group has applied the transition exemption permitted by IFRS 1 which allows the cumulative
translation differences ansing on consolidation of subsidianes prior to the transition date, December
1, 2004, 1o be disregarded and set to nil

Dervatives and other financial instruments

The Group uses foreign currency swaps, non-derivative financial instruments and interest rate swaps
to manage Its exposure to certain foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate risks, such as to
hedge certain major capital expenditures or lease commitments of the Group In currencies other than
the functional currency Dervative financtal instruments are accounted for at far value Subject to
specific critena, derivative financial instruments, financial assets and financial habiities may be
designated as forming hedge relationships, as a result of which, changes in far value are offset in the
income statement or recognised directly in the statement of recognised income and expense,
depending on the nature of the hedge relatonship Hedging denvatives fall into three classifications
fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and hedges of a net mvestment Fluctuations in value of fair
value hedge derwatives are offset against the changes in the value of the underlying hedged items,
principally contracted ship capital commitments Fluctuations in value of cash flow hedge derivatives
are taken to the statement of recognised income and expense until the underlying hedged item I1s
recognised in earnings Changes in value of hedges of a net investment are recognised in the
statement of recogmised income and expense, offsetting the change in the translated value of the
hedged net investment In the event that a previously hedged invesiment 15 disposed of, the
accumulated amount previously recognised from hedging 1s required to be removed from the hedging
reserve within shareholders’ equity and reflected in net income




Notes to the consolidated financial statements— (continued)

Taxation

Deferred tax 1s provided using the hability method Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that 1t 1s probable that fulure taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utlised Deferred tax 1s measured al the average tax rates that are expected to
apply in the penods tin which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substanhally enacled by the balance sheel dale lncome tax 15
provided for using current rates

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statemenits in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
Judgements, eslimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets and lrabilities, income and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various olher factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, and form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and habilties
that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised In the penod in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that
penod, or in the perned of the revision and future penods If the revision affects both current and future
penods

A review of the cnitical accounting estimates made by management 1s included within the management
discussion and analysis seclion of the Carnival Corporation & ple 2006 Annual Report

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
that are mandalory for the Group’s future accounting penods but which the Group has not early
adopted These are set out below

Amendment to IAS 39 “The Farr Value Option”

Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 4 “Financial Guarantee Contracts”

Amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements—Capital Disclosures”®

IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments Disclosure™

IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”

IFRIC 8 “Scope of IFRS 27

IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives”

IFRIC 11 “IFRS 2—Group and Treasury Share Transactions”

IFRIC 12 “Serwvice Concession Arrangemenis”

The Group has considered the above standards, interpretations and amendments and concluded that
they are either not relevant to the Group or that they would not have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements




Notes to the consolidated financial statements— {continued)

2 Segmental analysis

Segment information 1s presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments
Based on the nsks and returns of the Group’s products and services the directors consider that the
primary reporting format i1s by business segment and the secondary reporting format 1s geographical
The two business segments consist of our crutse vacation operations, which compnse AIDA Cruises,
Costa Cruises, Cunard Line, Ocean Village, P&0O Cruises, P&O Cruises (Austrahia), Swan Hellenwc
and the land tour operations in Alaska and the Canadian Yukon The cruise segment includes all of
the cruise brands, which are aggregated as a single reportable segment based on the simianty of
their economic and other charactenstics, including products and services they provide

Segment results, assets and habilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis Segment capital expenditure 1s the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one period

By primary segment Cruise Land tours and other Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Us sm UssSm USSm USSm Us sm USssm
External revenues 40229 37808 3522 3202 43751 41010
Segment result B19 9 6559 210 255 8409 6814
Unallocated (6 Q) (79
8349 8735
Interest income 15 1 117
Interest expense, net of
capitalsed interest (t125) (1325)
Other income {expense), net 54 47)
Income belore income taxes 742 9 548 0
Income tax benefit (expense), net 18 (23 9)
Net income 744 7 5241
Segment assets 88463 75055 4049 4784 93412 80739
Unallocated assets 248 40 1
Cash 1,049 9 7780
Tax assets 435 271
Total assets 10,4594 8,9181
Segment habilities 1,1756 11,1028 1249 1056 1,3005 1,2084
Unallocated liabilities 1125 89 9
Amounts owed to Carnival Corporation 2098 297 1
Group debt 3,2888 12,7864
Tax habities 730 975
Total habilities 438846 44893
Cruise Land tours and other Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
USsm USSm USSm USSm UsSsm USsSm
Other segmental tems
Capital expenditures 8233 654 4 812 840 904 5 7384
Depreciation and amortisation 3154 3040 252 313 3406 3353

10




Notes to the consoltdated financial statements— (confinued)

The geographical segmental information presented below reflects the different regions from which the
Group sources its guests Typically our cruise brands make therr sales to customers in a single geographic
region, Europe, Austrahia, Asia or North Amenca The Group's Cunard brand operates in Europe, the
U S and Australa The land tour operations primarlly make sales to customers in North America

Europe, Australia

By secendary segment North America and Aua Total
2008 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
UsSSm USSm USSm USSm Ussm UsSSm
External revenues 7300 6935 36451 34075 43751 41010
Inter-segment sales 107 80 {10 7) (8 0) — —
Revenues 7407 7015 3,6344 33995 43751 41010

The principal assets of the Group are its ships which move between geographic regions, It 1s therefore
not meaningful to allocate the assets and capital expenditures to particular regions

3 Operating income I1s stated after (charging)/crediting

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
US Sm Ussm
Operating lease cosls
—ships {83 9) {45 5)
—property (14 8) (133)
—qother (4 1) {4 4)
Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to company’s auditor for the audit
of the parent company and consolidated financial statements (08} (05)
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates for
—the audit of company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation {07 (10)
—other services pursuant to legtslation (0 4) (02)
—tax services — 02)
Total fees paid to the auditors and their associates (19) 19

Selling and adrministrative costs include advertising and promotion costs of $202 8m (2005 $197 6m)
and payroll and related expenses of $220 7m (2005 $193 4m)

4 Finance and other non-operating costs

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30,2005
Ussm ussm
Interest income 151 117
Interest expense (126 5) (140 1)
Capitahised interest 140 76
(112 5) (132 5)
Other income {expense), net 54 (47)
(92 0} {125 5)

Capitahised interest relates to property and equipment under construction The capitalisation rate s
based on the weighted average of interesl rates applicable to the Group's borrowings (excluding
loans for specific purposes) during each penod The aggregate interest capitalised by the Group
through November 30, 2006 was $110 4m (2005 $99 7m), substantially all of which relates to ships

n




Notes to the consolidated financial statements— (continued)

5 Taxation
Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
Ussm ussm
The taxation charge 1s made up as follows
Current taxation
UK Corporation tax {0 5} (03)
Overseas taxation (8 3) {21 6)
TJotal current tax (8 8} (219)
UK deferred taxation (1) —
Overseas deferred taxation 107 (20)
106 (20)
Total UK tax 06) (03)
Total overseas tax 24 {23 6)
Income tax benefi (expense), net 18 {23 9)
The total taxation charge 15 reconciled to the UK standard rate as follows
Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
US Sm Ussm
Income before income taxes 7429 548 O
Notional tax charge at UK standard rate
(2006 and 2005 30 0%) (222 9) (164 4)
Effect of overseas taxes at different rates 1399 834
Etfect of UK tonnage tax and other permanent differences 848 571
18 (23 9)

There was no charge or credit In respect of profils and losses on sale of ships and other fixed assets
The effective tax rate for the Group i1s expected to remain fow due to the eniry into the UK tonnage tax
regime 1n 2001 and the Italian tonnage tax regime in 2005 The U S tour operations are taxed at the

applicable U S federal and stale corporate tax rates, approximately 37%

6 Cividends
Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Mov 30,2005
Ussm Uussm
First intenim paid $0 25 per share (2005 $0 15) 531 318
Second intenm paid $0 25 per share (2005 $0 20) 532 426
Third interim paid $0 25 per share (2005 $0 20) 632 423
Fourth interim declared at $0 275 per share (2005 $0 25} 586 531
2181 169 8

12




Notes to the conscohdated financial statements— (continued}

7 Earnings per ordinary share

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005

USsS $m US $m
Carnival ple basic and diluted earnings 7447 5241
Weighted average number of shares (millions)
Basic 2127 2122
Dilutive shares 05 08
Diluted number of shares 2132 2130
Carnival plc standalone hasic earnings per share (iIn U S dollars) 350 247
Carnival ple standatone diluted earnings per share (in US dollars) 349 246

As descrnibed in note 1 Carnival Corporation and Carnival pic implemented a DLC structure on April 17,
2003 Under the contracts governing the DLC the Carmival Corporation & plc consoldated earmngs
accrue equally to each unit of Carnival Corporation stock and each Carnwval plc share For this reason
the U S GAAP earmings per share are provided for information on page 1

The weighted average number of shares has been reduced for shares in the Company held by the
Company's employee benefit trust for the satisfaction of incentive scheme awards that have not
vested unconditionally

The dilutive shares relate to ordinary shares to be issued on the exercise of employee share options
and restricted share units

8 Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
Us sm USsm
Cash on ships 314 297
Bank balances 1,0185 748 3
Balance sheet cash and cash equivalents 1,048 9 7780
Bank overdrafts — {78)
Statements of cash flow cash and cash equivalents 1,048 9 7702

For the purposes of the statements of cash flow, bank overdrafts are deducted from the cash and
cash equivalents balance

9 Trade and other receivables, net

As at Asg at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
US Sm UsS$m
Trade recevables, net 1551 196 2
Income taxes recewable 29 32
Other receivables 521 43 4
2101 2428

Trade recevables are net of allowances for potential bad debts totaling $15 3m (2005 $13 4m)

10 Inventories

Consumables and other provisions
Goods held for resale

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
USsm Ussm
706 69 1
328 334
1034 102 5

13




Notes to the consolidated financial statements—{continued)

11 Property and equipment

Equipment
Leased Land and and motor
Ships ships buildings vehicles Total
Uussm Ussm Us &m US $m Ussm

Cost
Cost at December 1, 2004 8,507 1 1307 4167 406 4 9,460 9
Exchange movements (769 6) — {5 6) (12 6) (787 8)
Additions 6315 - 487 634 743 6
Transfer to other assets — — (10 9) — (10 9)
Disposals (4310) (1307) (26 0) (190) (606 7)
Cost at November 30, 2005 7.9380 — 4229 4382 8,799 1
Exchange movements 846 4 — 60 201 8725
Additions 784 4 — 603 738 9185
Disposals {314 5) — (3 8) {55 5) (373 8)
Cost at November 30, 2006 9,254 3 — 48514 176 6 10,216 3
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation at

December 1, 2004 {1,538 3) (84) (697) (208 5) (1,824 9)
Exchange movermnents 1415 — 09 58 148 2
Charge for year (271 0) {0 86) (15 9) {47 8) {335 3)
Impairment provision (194) — — — (19 4)
Disposals 945 a0 133 169 1337
Accumulated depreciation at

November 30, 2005 {1,592 7) — (71 4) (233 6) (1,897 7)
Exchange movements (178 0) - (12) (127) (191 9)
Charge for year (280 7) — (14 9) (45 0) (340 6)
Disposals 2666 — 17 411 3094
Accumulated depreciation at

November 30, 2006 (1,784 8) — (85 8) (250 2) (2,120 8)
Net book value
At November 30, 2006 74695 — 3996 226 4 8,0955
At November 30, 2005 6,345 3 — 3515 204 6 6,901 4

Ships under construction included in the above totalled $404 9m (2005 $230 8m) The book value of ship
assets Is after deducting construction grants of $186 0m (2005 $178 Om) The book value of owned
land 1s $28 9m (2005 $26 9m), which 1s not deprectated

12 Goodwill
Goodwill
UsS sm
Net book value
At December 1, 2004 746 4
Exchange movements (60 4)
Additions 64
At November 30, 2005 692 4
Exchange movements 54 6
At November 30, 2006 747 0

Substantially all goodwill relates to the Group's investments in the Costa, $523 8m (2005 $470 1m),
and Cunard businesses, $214 3m (2005 $214 3m) Goodwill 1s tested for imparment annually or
whenever indicators of impairment are detected, by comparing the recoverable amount of each of the
businesses, determined based on value-in-use calculations, to the carrying value of its goodwill In
assessing value-in-use the Group uses brand specific earmings multiples as a proxy for projected
cash flows discounted at the Group's esttmated weighted average cost of capital Each brand’s
earnings multiple takes into account the brand’s capital structure and the geographic region in which
they operate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements—(continued)

13 Other assets

Prepaid expenses

Income taxes receivable

Deferred tax assets (note 15)

Derivative contracts recetvable (note 25)
Other recevables and recoverables

14 Short and long-term debt

Amounts faliing due within one year
Euro notes (bearing fixed interest at 5 6%)
Sterling bond 2012 (bearing fixed interest at 71%)
Term loans secured

unsecured

Short-term debt

Steriing bond 2012 (bearing fixed interest at 71%)
Euro bond 2013 (beanng fixed interest at 4 4%}
Term loans secured

unsecured

Long-term debt
Total debt

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
Ussm US $m
179 111
306 239
100 —
186 104
487 372
1258 826
As at As at
Nov 30, 2006 Nov 30, 2005
US sm USsm
— 3660
116 103
530 475
3479 8431
4125 1,269 9
3875 342 9
983 2 —
1168 152 Q
1,388 8 1,021 6
2,876 3 1,516 5
3,288 8 2,786 4

Amounts faling due within one year include the element of finance cost accrued at the year end
Secured loans are secured on ships Total debt includes $1,092 Om (2005 $1,064 8m) of varable
interest rate habilities Vanable rate interest on term loans I1s based on LIBOR or foreign equivalents
Further detall relating to the Group’s policy on managing currency and interest rate rnisks 1s provided
in note 25 and additional information related to debt s provided in note 5 to the Carnival Corporation

& plc 2006 Annual Report

The maturity of total debt 1s as follows

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Between five and ten years
Over ten years

15

Ag at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
UsS $m ussm

4125 1,269 9
975 736
1,0559 878 3
1,680 2 507 9
1427 567
3,2888 2,786 4




Notes to the consolidated financial statements— {continued)

Total debt 1s denominated in the followmg currencies, excluding the effect of foreign currency swaps

As at As at
Nov 30,2006  Nov 30, 2005
USSm Ussm
U S dollars 866 6 4516
Sterling 72386 6413
Euros 1,698 6 1,693 5
3,2888 2,786 4

The far value of the total short and long-term debt 1s $3,276 5m (2005 $2,802 9m) Market values
have been used to determine the farr value of short and long-term debt Where market values are not
available, fair values have been calculated by discounting cash flows at prevaling interest and
exchange rates

15 Other long-term habilities

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005

Uussm U S sm

Deterred tax 355 351
Post employment benefits {note 21) 781 1000
Dervative contracts {note 25) 48 4 189
Other habiities 579 252
2189 178 2

Deferred tax principally anses on accelerated capital allowances inthe U S land tour operations Deferred
tax assets relate to net operating losses expected to be recovered agamst future trading profits

16 Called up share cap:tal

The authonsed ordinary share capital at November 30, 2006 and 2005 compnsed of 225,903,614
ordinary shares of $1 66 each

The allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary share capital is as follows
No of Shares Ussm

At December 1, 2004 212,193,824 3522
Shares 1ssued 401,462 07
At November 30, 2005 212,595,286 3529
Shares 1ssued 472,975 08
Issue to employee stock purchase plan 10,799 —
At November 30, 2006 213,079,060 3537

Dunng 2006 the Company issued 472,975 (2005 401,462) ordinary shares of $1 66 each following
the exercise of share options for total consideration of $17 1m (2005 $11 6m) and 1ssued 10,799 shares
to the employee stock purchase plan

In connection with the formation of the DLC the Company authonsed 100,000 and ailotted 50,000
£1 00 redeemable preference shares, which were not issued, and one special voting share of £1 00
The 50,000 redeemable preference shares allotted are entitled to a cumulative fixed dwvidend of 8%
per annum The preference shares rank behind other classes of shares in relation to the payment of
capital on certain types of distribution of the Company

Details of optrons over ordinary shares granted to employees and other restricted share awards to
senmor managers are given In note 20
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17 Capital and reserves

Total
Share Share Translation Hedging Merger Retained shareholders’
capital premuum  reserves reserve  reserve  eamings equity
US$Sm USSm UsS Sm USsSm USs Sm Us s$m UsSSsm
At December 1, 2004 3522 647 —_ {(255) 15032 25390 4,433 6
Total recognised
income (expense) — — (385 2} 161 — 5135 144 4
Dividends - — — —_ — (169 8) {169 8)
Issue of shares 07 109 — -— — — 116
Share-based payments — — — — — 100 100
Al November 30, 2005 3529 756 (385 2) (94) 15032 28927 44298
Total recogmised
ncome (expense) —_ — 491 4 (19 6) — 7593 1,2311
Dividends — — — — — (218 1) (218 1)
Issue of shares o8 163 — — — — 171
Share-based payments _ - —_— — - 49 149
At November 30, 2006 3537 919 106 2 (290) 15032 34488 54748

Total recognised income {expense) allocated to retamed earnings compnses net income attributable
to shareholders of $744 7m (2005 $524 1m) and the net actuanal gain in the year on defined benefit
penston schemes of $14 6m (2005 loss $10 6m)

During the year ended November 30, 2004 Carnival Corporation & ple completed a corporate
restructuring Involving the transfer within the OLC group of subsidiary companies below Carnival
Corporation and Carnwval plc These transactions were undertaken primanly to facilitate business
integration and the flow of funds between atfillated companies Due 16 the nature of the DLC structure,
this series of transactions was accounted for as a group reconstruction in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 6 (“FRS 67), using merger accounting principles to reflect the combination of
Carnival plc with the merged businesses The directors consider that within the DLC structure the use
of merger accounting for the restructuning was required to give a true and far presentation of the
transfer of businesses from Carnival Corporation This represents a departure from the provision of
the Companies Act 1985 which sets out the conditions for merger accounting based on the assumption
that a merger 15 effected through the 1ssue of equity shares The mam consequence of adopling
merger rather than acquisition accounting was that the balance sheet of the Group included the
assets and liabihties of the merged businesses at thewr book values prior to the merger, rather than at
therr farr values at the date of the merger Further, as a result of this accounting treatment, the disposal
of businesses to Carmival Corporation gave nse to no gain or loss The difference belween the book
value and the fair vaiue of the businesses sold to Carnival Corporation (which equates to the value of
the consideration received) of approximately $1 47bn 1s included within the merger reserve Under
the transition provisions within IFRS 3, “Business Combinations”, this Group restructuring does not
need to be restated and thus the previous application under FRS 6 continues to apply

As at November 30, 2006 the Carnival plc Employee Benefit Trust held 127,392 shares in Carnival ple
{2005 175,538 shares), with an aggregate nominal vaiue of $0 3m (2005 50 3m) At November 30,
2006 the market value of these shares was $6 2m (2005 $9 8m) If they had been sold at this value
there would have been no tax hability (2005 nil) on the capita! gain ansing from the sale The costs of
funding and adrmmistenng the scheme are charged to the Group income statement in the period to
which they relate
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18 Notes to the Group statements of cash flow
Reconciliation of profit from operations to cash flows from operating activities

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 MNov 30, 2005
uUSssm USSm
Operating mcome 834§ 6735
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 3406 3353
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 157 170
Provision in anticipation of disposal — 194
Share-based payments 149 100
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 1,206 1 1,055 2
Decrease/{increase) in inventories 62 (2 5)
Decrease/{increase) in recevables 284 {45 6)
Increase in payables, accrued habilities and customer deposits 36 1 1708
Net cash inflow from operating activities 12768 1,177 9
19 Key management
The aggregate compensation of the Group's key management was
Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
US s$m Ussm
The aggregate payroll costs were
Fees o8 09
Salanes and benefits 69 64
Performance related bonuses 84 g2
Short-term employment benefits 161 165
Post employment benefit costs 90 86
Equity settled share-based payments 162 16 8
413 419

The key management, which consists of the board of directors, has responsibility and authority for
controlhing, directing and planming Carnival ple's activittes Their aggregate compensation shown
above includes amounts paid by both Carnival Corporation and Carnival pic Post employment benefit
cosls represent the increase in transfer value, net of directors’ contnbutions, during the year

Further details on directors’ remuneration, including share options, restncted share awards, restricted
share uniis, long-term incentive plans and pension entitiements, are set out in Parts | and [l of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report in the Proxy Statement During the year one director made gains
of $1 2m on the exercise of options over Carnival plc shares (2005 nil)
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20 Employees

Twelve Twelve
months to months 1o
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005

The average nurmnber of employees was as follows

Shore staff 7,672 7,225
Sea staff 18,959 18,009
26,631 25,234
Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30,2005
US $m Uussm
The aggregate payroll costs were
Wages and salaries 544 2 5221
Social securnty costs N7 315
Pension costs 247 179
Share-based payment expense 165 100
6171 5815

Share-based payment expense above includes $16m recharged by Carnwal Corporation in respect of
options granted over Carnival Corporation stock to certain U S based Carnival ple Group employees

Share-based payments

Share cptions over Carnival plc shares, granted under the Carnival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan,
typically vest three years after the date of the grant, provided the employee remains employed in the
Group, and have maximum terms of up to 7 years for options granted after October 2005 The number
and weighted average exercise price of options duning the year were as follows

2008 2005
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Number exercise Number exerctse
of options price of options price
uss uss
Options outstanding at December 1 3,236,385 4167 3,283,367 35842
Options granted during the year 582,727 5939 471,352 53 86
Ophions exercised during the year (472,975) 2802 (401,462) 2993
Options lapsed (71,737) 4353 (116,872) 3983
Options putstanding at November 30 3,284,400 46 77 3,236,385 41 67
Options exercisable at November 30 739,509 2583 422,659 2175

The average remaining life of outstanding options at November 30, 2006 was 74 years (2005 79
years) Cptions were exercised regularly during the year The average market share price during the
year was $48 19 (2005 $53 94)

The farr value of grants under the share option plan 1s calculated using the Black-Scholes valuation
model The following table gives the assumptions appled to the options granted duning the year
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated inio the modet

2006 2005
Waeighted-average far value of options granted in the year $12 65 $1503
Risk-free interest rate 42% 47%
Expected dnvidend yteld 22% 17%
Expected volatiity (based on impled and historical volatilities) 26 5% 27 0%
Expected option life (in years) 475 483

In addition to the share options noted above the Group awarded 70,004 resincted share awards to
certain officers and senior managers Of these awards 60,004 vest unconditionally after three years
and 10,000 veslt unconditionally after five years and they are all equity settled The Group also operates
the Carnwval plc Deferred Bonus and Co-Investment Matching Plan, under which certain senior
managers are able to \nvest a percentage of any annual bonus in Carnival plc shares, with a view to
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements—(continued)

recetving a matching award if certain predetermined performance targets are achieved The
compensation expense refated to these share awards ts calculated by reference to the Carnival plc
share price on the date of grant and expensed 1o the income statement over the vesting period

21 Post employment benefits

As at Asg at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 20, 2005
US Sm USsSm
Funded employee benefit plans 368 64 8
Other post employment benefits 413 352
781 1000

Funded employee benefit plans

Carnival plc 15 a contributing employer to vanous pension schemes, ncluding some multi-employer
merchant navy industry schemes The defined benefit schemes are formally valued trienrually by
independent qualifted actuanes

The Company 1s no longer able to identify the Group’s share of the underlying assets and habilities of
the Merchant Navy Ratings Pension Fund (“MNRPF") on a consistent and reasonable basis Therefore
from November 30, 2006, the scheme 15 being accounted for as a defined contribution scheme Prior
to that, it was included as a funded defined beneht multi-employer scheme

Inthe UK, P&0O Cruises operates its own funded defined benefit pension scheme (“UK Scheme™), the
assets of which are managed on behalf of the trustee by independent fund managers This scheme IS
closed to new membership which may result in higher service costs as the members of the scheme
approach retirement

The Merchant Navy Otficers Pension Fund (“MNOPF") 15 a funded defined benefit multi-empioyer
scheme inwhich Bnbsh officers employed by companies within the Carnival plc group have participated
and continue to participate This scheme 1s closed to new membership

The pension habiibes for accounting purposes of the UK Scheme and Carnival ple's share of the
MNOPF were estimated at November 30, 2006 and November 30, 2005 by Carnwval plc’'s qualfied
independent actuary The principal assumptions made by the actuary were as follows

UK Scheme MNOPF MNRPF
2006 2005 2006 2005 2005
Discount rates 480 480 490 4 80 4 80
Expected rates of salary increases 430 420 430 420 420
Pension increases
—deferment 280 270 280 270 270
—payment 280 270 280 270 270
Inflation 280 270 280 270 270
Expected rates of return on scheme assets 552 560 687 710 570
The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are determined as follows
2006 2005
UsSsm USS$m
Present value of funded obligations 2572 3221
Farr value of plan assets (220 4) (257 3)
Net hability recogmsed in the balance sheets 368 648
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The amounts recognised in the income statements are as follows

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Gain due to settlements/curtallments

Total included within payroll costs {note 20)

Analysis of the movement in the batance sheet hability

Net lhability at December 1

Exchange movements

Expense as above

Amounts recogmised in the statement of recogrised income and expense
Contributions paid

Reclassification as defined contribution scheme

Net hability at November 30

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows

Present value of obhgation at December 1
Exchange movements

Service cost

Interest cost

Contributions from employees

Benefits paid

Actuanal (gain)/loss

Settlement and/or curtaliment

Reclassiication as defined contrnbution scheme

Present value of obligation at November 30

Changes In the fair value of schemes’ assets are as follows

Fair value of schemes’ assets at December 1
Exchange movements

Expected return on plan assets

Employer contrnibutions

Contnbutions from employees

Benefits paid

Experience gain

Reclassification as defined contribution scheme

Farr value of schemes' assets at November 30

Plan assets compnsed

Equities

Property
Corporate bonds
Fixed interest gilts

21

2006
US S§m
74
170
(16 5)
{(09)

70

2006
ussm

64 8
79
70

(14 6)

(11 1)

(172)

368

2006
USsSm
3221
416
74
170
13
(100)
{9 5)
(09)
{111 8)

2572

2006
Us s$m

2573
337
165
111

13
(100)

(94 6)
220 4

2006
USSm

897

56
619
633

2204

2005

Ussm
64
157

(14 1)

80

2005
Uussm
64 5

(€5

106
(11 8)

64 8

2005
Uus sm

3150
(32 1)
64
157
14
(7 4)
231

3221

2005
UsSsm
2505

(25 6)

141
117
14
74
1286

257 3

2005
Us sm

104 0
45
1121
367

257 3
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History of expenence gamns and losses

2006 2005

Ussm USSm
Expenence (gain)/loss on plan habilities {9 5) 231
Expernience gain on plan assets 51 126

Other post employment benefits

Other post employment benefits include $18 6rm (2005 $16 Om) in respect of an agreement to make
annual payments to one of the non-executive directors tor 15 years following retirement, further details
of this arrangement are included in Part Il of the Remuneration Report within Annex B of the Proxy
Statement In addition under Itallan employment legislation Costa 15 required te mantain a staff
leaving iIndemnity Under the indemnity employees are entitled o receive a payment, calculated by
reference to their length of service and final salary, if they cease employment with Costa These
payments are not conditional on employees reaching normal retirement age At November 30, 2006
$16 5m (2005 $13 5m) had been provided by Costa

22 Related party transactions

Within the DLC structure there are a few instances where Carnival Corporation group companies
provide services to the Carnival plc group and also where Carnival plc group companies provide
services to the Carmival Corporation group Costs paid by the Carnival plc group to the Carnival
Corporation group duning 2006 1n respect of crutses sold together with a land tour package by Holland
Amernica Tours were $55 2m and costs paid by the Carnival Corporation group to the Carnival ple
group in respect of Princess Tours' land tours were $53 7m These transactions represented the most
significant trading relationship between the two groups

During the year Princess Cruises, a subsidiary of Carnival Corporation, purchased Minerva 2,
operated by Swan Hellenic, and chartered it to Carnival ple Including the Minerva 2 the Group has
three ship charter agreements, which can extend over a number of years, with Princess Cruises The
annual charter payments to Princess Cruises during 2006 were $67 5m {2005 two vessels, charter
costs $43 5m)

At November 30, 2006 the Carnval plc group owed $209 8m (2005 $297 1m) to the Carnival
Corporation group, which was unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand In addition,
Carnival Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Carnival Corporation, owns 19 9% (2005 19 6%) of the
Company's shares and, therefore, receives dividends from the Company

Within the operational and organisational structure of the Group, the key management personnel, as
defined under IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, 1s considered to constst of the directors of the
Company Detalls of the directors’ remuneration are provided n Parts | and Il of the Remuneration
Report and any relevant transactions are given in the “Transactions of Management and Directors”
section, both in the Proxy Statement that accompantes this document The aggregate emoluments of
the Group's key management i1s shown n note 19
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23 Commitments

At November 30, 2006 the Group had contracted capital commitments relating to ship construction
contracts amounting to $4 4bn (2005 $3 3bn} Ship capital commitments at November 30, 2006
include contract payments to the shipyards, design and engineering fees, construction oversight
costs, various owner supphed items and capitalised interest

Subsequent to the year end the Group contracted for two new ships with an estimated aggregate cost
of $1 3bn, further details of capital commitments 1s given in note 6 to the Carmval Corporation & ple
2006 Annual Report

Other aggregate minimum lease commitments at each year end under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30,2005
US sm USSm
Aggregate expense on leases expiring
Within one year 167 236
Between one and five years 506 353
After five years 117 3 200
184 6 789

In addition to the aggregate operating lease commitments above, at November 30, 2006 the Group
had commitments to pay $82m, in aggregate, for usage exlending over more than five years, of certain
port facilities

24 Contingent habifities

As part of the DLC structure, Carnival pic has given a number of guarantees over Carnivat Corporation
obligations, detalls of which are given in note 3 of the Carnival Corporation & pic 2006 Annual Report

Carnival plc has provided counter indemnities relating to bonds provided by third parties in support of
Carnival ple's obligations ansing in the normal course of bustness Generally these bonds are required
by travel industry regulators in the vanous junsdictions in which Carnival plc operates and any
habilities ansing from them are considered remote

In the normal course of business, vanous other claims and lawsuits have been filed or are pending
against Carmival plc Most of these claims and lawsuits are covered by insurance Carnival plc
management believes the outcome of any such lawsuits, which are not covered by insurance, would
not have a materal adverse effect on Carnival pl¢’s financial statements
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25 Financial instruments

The Group uses financial instruments to finance its operations The financial instruments used by the
Group include cash, overdrafts, bonds and loans, which are recorded inibially at fair value which 1s
generally the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Subsequently, the labiities are carned at
amortised cost, using the effective Interest method Derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financal instruments are used to manage some of the currency and interest rate risks ansing from its
operations and its sources of finance The denvatives used for this purpose are principally foreign
currency swaps and Interest rate swaps The non-denvative financial instruments used for hedging
purposes are euro and pound steriing borrowings and other abligations designated as hedges of the
Group's eurc and pound sterling net investments Additional detail relating to the Group’s financial
nsk management objectives and policies 1s included in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis®
section within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report Additicnal detail relating to the
Group's concentration of credit nsk i1s included in note 2 within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006
Annual Report

The farr values of denvative financial instruments, which are included within current and long-term
assels and habiities as appropriate, were estimated based on prices quoted by financial institutions
for each instrument based on appropriate market rates

Assets

Within Between Between Over

1 year 1-2years 2-5years 5years

UsS $m us sm uUssm US S$m
Interest rate swaps 02 21 — —
Hedged firm commitments 98 165 — —
At November 30, 2006 100 186 — —
Currency contracts—net investment hedges — — 75 —
Currency contracts—fair value hedges - 07 — _—
Hedged firm commitments 03 — 22 —
At November 30, 2005 03 07 97 —
Liabilities

Within Between Between Over

1 year 1-2years 2-5years 5years

US $m Ussm ussm UsSsm
Interest rate swaps — —_ — {(137)
Currency contracts—net investiment hedges — — (18 2) —
Currency contracts—fair value hedges (28 (16 5) —_ —
At November 30, 2006 98 (16 5} (18 2) (137)
Interest rate swaps (20 — (35) (12 5)
Currency contracts—fair value hedges (0 3) — 22) —_
Hedged firm commiments — 07 — —
At November 30, 2005 (23 07 (57) (12 5)

Interest rate swaps are connected to specific bank borrowings that mature through 2012 The hedged
firm commitments represent contracted ship capital commitments in currencies that differ to the
contracting operations’ functional currencies At November 30, 2006 these comprised euro
denorminated ship order contracts for the Group's pound sterling operations
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26 International financial reporting standards
These are Carnival plc’s first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS

The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for
the year ended November 30, 2006, the comparative information presented in these financial statements
for the year ended November 30, 2005 and the preparation of an opening IFRS balance sheet at
December 1, 2004 (the Group's date of transition)

In preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet, the Group has adjusted amounts reported previously in
financial statements prepared in accordance with UK GAAP

An explanation of how the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS has affected the Group's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows 1s set out in the following tables and the notes that
accompany the tables

IFRS restatement of Group income statement
For the twelve months ended November 30, 2005

Change in
Revised IFRS dry-dock
format adjustments pohcy IFRS
US §m US S$m USSm US Sm
Revenues
Cruise
Passenger tickets 3,1025 — — 3,102 5
Onboard and other 6783 - —_ 6783
Land tours and other 3202 — — 3202
41010 — — 4,101 0
Costs and expenses
Operating
Cruise
Commissions, transportation and other 6912 — — 6812
Onboard and other 1776 —_ —_ 1776
Payroll and related 3830 49 — 3881
Fuel 2387 —_ —_ 2387
Food 2027 — — 2027
Other ship operating 5785 — B85 5870
Other 2264 — — 226 4
Total 2,508 1 (4 9) 85 25117
Selling and administrative 5705 100 — 5805
Depreciation and amortisation 3383 (30} — 3353
34169 21 85 3,427 5
Operating income 684 1 (21} (8 5) 6735
Interest income 117 — — 117
Interest expense, net of capitalised interest (132 7) g2 — {132 5)
Other expense, net 29 (18} —_ 47
(123 9) (16) — (125 5)
Income before income taxes 5602 (37} (8 5) 5480
Income tax expense, net (239) — — (23 9)
Net income 5363 (37} (8 5) 5241
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IFRS restatement of Group balance sheet
December 1, 2004

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables, net
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilittes and shareholders’ equity
Current habiities

Short-term debt

Amounts owed to Carnival Corporation
Accounts payable

Accrued habihties and other

Customer deposits

Total current liabilities

Non-current habilities
Long-term debt
Other long-term habilities and deferred income

Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares
Share premium
Retained earnings
Other reserves

Total shareholders’ equity

26

Change in
Revised IFRS dry-dock
format adjustments policy IFRS

ussm USs sm US sm Ussm
174 5 _ - 1745
258 1 — — 2581
106 3 —_ — 106 3
1453 537 (42 2} 156 8
684 2 537 {42 2 6957
7.848 1 212 1) — 7,6360
749 4 (30) _ 746 4
B26 — — 826
9,364 3 (161 4) (42 2) 9,i607
8414 364 — 8778
5216 — — 5216
366 0 — — 366 0
2981 o1 — 2990
5247 - — 524 7
2,652 8 36 3 — 2,588 1
1,994 9 (18 2) — 1,976 7
3007 (139 4) — 1613
48484  (1213) — 47271
3522 — — 3522
647 — —_ 647
2,604 2 (23 0) (422) 25390
14948  (171) — 14777
45159 (40 1) {42 2) 4,433 6
93643 (1614) (422) 91607
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IFAS restatement of Group balance sheet
November 30, 2005

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables, net
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabnliies and shareholders’ equity
Current habilities

Short-term debt

Amounts owed to Carnival Corporation
Accounts payable

Accrued habiities and other

Customer deposits

Total current liabilities

Non-current habilities
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities and deferred income

Shareholders’ equity
Ordmnary shares
Share premium
Retamed earnings
Other reserves

Total shareholders’ equity

Reclassification of prior year amounts

Change i
Revised IFRS dry-dock
format adjustments pohcy IFRS

USs S$m Uus sm US s$m US $m
7780 — _ 7780
2428 — — 2428
1025 — — 1025
166 4 05 (47 5) 1194
1,2897 05 {47 5) 1,2427
70794  (1780) — 69014
692 4 — — 692 4
722 104 — 826
90,1337 (167 1} (47 5) 8,9191
1.2309 390 — 1,269 9
2971 —_ — 2971
2304 — — 2304
4685 (94 0) - 3745
6217 — — 6217
2,848 6 {55 0) — 27936
1,532 2 (157) — 1,516 5
2733 (94 1) — 1792
4,654 1 {164 B) — 4,489 3
3529 — — 3529
756 — —_ 7586
2,5457 3977 (50 7) 28927
1,5054 (400 0) 32 1,1086
44796 (23) (475) 44298
9,1337 {167 1) {47 B) 8,9191

During 2006 Carnival Corporation & plc adapted a new global chart of accounts in connection with
the implermentation of a new accounting system As a result of moving to a common chart of accounts
certain pnor period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current penod presentation
The principal effect on the previously reported results for the year ended November 30, 2005 was to
reduce revenue by $251 2m, reduce operating costs by $250 Om and reduce interest and other costs

by $1 2m

27




Notes to the consolidated financial statements— (continued)

Dry-dock costs

Duning 2006 Carnival plc amended its accounting policy relating to dry-docking costs, compnsing
planned major maintenance activities, so as to conform to that of Carruival Corporation The Group’s
previous accounting policy was to defer the cost of these activities, performed dunng dry-dock, and
expense them over the esttmated period of benefil, generally twelve months or in some instances the
pernod to the next scheduled dry-dock, which can be up to thirty months These costs incurred during
the course of a dry-dock are now immediately wnitten off to profit and loss Capital expenditures
during a dry-dock continue to be capitalised as ship improvements on a component basis and
depreciated over ther estimated useful lives, with the estimated net book value of assets being
replaced wnitten off

The effect of immediately recognising dry-dock costs 1s to reduce current assets at November 2005
by $47 5m with a corresponding reduction in shareholders’ equity Net income for the year ended
November 30, 2005 was reduced by $8 5m

IFRS adjustments

Adjustments to net income and shareholders’ equity ansing from the application of new accounting
standards arose as follows

Twelve
months to
Nov 30, 2005
Ussm
Net income
IFRS 2 Share-based payment (10 0)
IAS 19 Employee benefits 49
IFRS 3 Business combinations—goodwill amortisation 30
IAS 39 Financial instruments o2
IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates {18)
{37)
As at As at
Nov 30,2004 Nov 30, 2005
uUssm USSm
Shareholders’ equity
IAS 19 Employee benefits (64 4) (64 7)
IFRS 3 Business combinations—goodwili amortisation (30) — l
IAS 10 Events after the balance sheet date—dvidends 318 531
IAS 39 Financial instruments {4 5) 93
(40 1) {23)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements— (continued)

A surnmary of the differences between previous UK GAAP and IFRS for the prnciple changes Is set
out below

Previously under UK GAAP the cost of employee share options was calculated by reference to therr
mtrinsic value and charged as an expense to the income stalement over any perfermance period
This meant that for share options granted at the prevaiing market price, there was no income
statement charge Under IFRS 2, the estimated fair value of all options s calculated at the grant date,
and 1s charged to the income statement over the future service penod specified 1n each optron grant
The future service penod for Carnival plc options, sometimes referred to as the vesting period, 1s
typically three or five years The Group has apphed IFRS 2 to options granted after November 7, 2002,
which were unvested at January 1, 2005

Under UK GAAP the Group applied the provisions of SSAP 24 “Accounting for pension costs” and
provided additional detailed disclosures as required by FRS 17 “Retirement benefits™ The Group 1s a
contnbuling employer to various pension schemes, icluding some mult-employer merchant navy
industry schemes Under IFRS, the Group’s opening balance sheet at December 1, 2004 reflects the
assets and liabiiies of the Group's defined benefit schemes This adjustment includes the Group's
estimated share of assets and liabilities as a participating employer of mutti-employer schemes As
perrmitted in the amendment to |1AS 19 (December 2004), the Group has elected to recogmise all
subsequent actuarial gains and losses through the statement of recognised income and expense
from the date of transition

Under previous UK GAAP, dvidends were recognised as a deduction {o earnings in the penod from
which they were designated to have been declared Under IFRS, as a consequence of the agreements
to equahse profits between Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc within the DLC structure, dividends
declared by the board are accrued at the time of declaration In the U S dividends become a liability
of the company on declaration by the Board Within the DLC arrangements Carmival plc 1s obhged to
make equal dividend payments to 1ts shareholders as for those of Carmival Corporattion Accordingly,
a declaration of an interim dividend by the Boards of Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc crystallises
a hability for Carnival plc

Under UK GAAP, apart from a mited number of forward currency contracts, denvative financial
instruments were nol accounted for in the Group balance sheet In the case of forward currency
contracts entered into in conunction with specific foreign currency debt, the reported value of the
underlying debt would take into account the related currency contracts Under IFRS all dervative
financial instruments are accounted for at fair value Subject to specific cntena, dernvative financial
tnstruments, financial assets and financial habihiies may be designated as forming hedge relationships
as a result of which changes in farr value are offset in the income statement or recogrised directty in
the statement of recognised income and expense, depending on the nature of the hedge relationship

Under previous UK GAAP grants received in respect of the purchase of ships were required to be
included within creditors as deferred income and credited to the profit and loss account over the
expected useful Iife of the asset to which they related Under IFRS grants in respect of assets can
either be included within deferred income or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset The
latter alternative 15 considered more appropriate for the Group as this I1s consistent with the treatment
under US GAAP
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Report of the independent auditors to the members of Carnival pic

We have audited the Group financial statements of Carnival pic for the year ended November 30,
2006, which comprise the Group income statements, the Group statements of recogrised income
and expense, the Group balance sheets, the Group staterments of cash flow, and the related notes,
including the Carnival Corporation & plc consohdated financial statements on pages 5 to 29 of the
Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report These Group financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Carnival ple for the year
ended November 30, 2006 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that (s
descnbed as having been audited

Respective responsibiliies of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financia! statements In
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union, are set out in the statement of Dirgctors' responsibilihes

Qur responsibility 15 to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body In
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, 1n
giving this optrion, accept or assume responsibiity for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come, save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and farr view
and whether the Group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with the
Comparues Act 1985 and Article 4 of the |AS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion
the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the Group fln‘anmai statements

In addition we report 1o you if, in our opimon, we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audn, or if information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company’s comphance with the
nine provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authonty, and we report if it does not We are not required to consider whether the
Board’'s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures or iis nsk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent
with the audited Group financial statements The other information comprises only pages 1 to 3 and
32 to 47 of the Carnval Corporation & ple 2006 Annual Report, the Proxy Statement and related
Annexes and the parent company financial statements We consider the :mplications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the Group financial
stalements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

30




Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
1ssued by the Auditing Practices Beard An audit includes examination, on a test basts, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements it also includes an assessment of
the significant esimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the Group financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances,
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary (n order to provide us with suffictent evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the Group financial statements are free from matena! misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other wregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evalvated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of mformation in the Group financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion
* the Group financial statements give a true and far view, m accordance with IFRS as adopled by
the European Unwon, of the state of the Group's affairs as at November 30, 2006 and of its net
income and cash flows for the year then ended,
*~lhe Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
ct 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

the information given in the Diegtors’ Report 1s consisient with the Group financial statements
nwm.-ﬁup; (w
PricewaterhouseCooparellp oo

Chartered Accountants and Registered Audrtors
London
20 February 2007

The mantenance and integnty of the publication of the Carnival ple financial statements on the Carrival websites
ts the responsibility of the Company, the work camed out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibiity for any changes that may have occurred to the
financal statements since they were initially presented on the website

Legislatron in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legisiation in other jurisdictons
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Carmval ple

Company balance sheet

Fixed assets
Goodwill
Tangible asseis
Ships
Other fixed assets
Investments—substdiaries

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and i hand

Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Net current habilities

Total assets less current habtlities

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for iabilibes

Net pension liabilities

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Other reserves

Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Micky Anson
Howard S

3z

Company
Note

12
12
12
12

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 MNov 30, 2005
USSsm UsSsm

Restated

{Note 1}

2151 2151
28219 2,660 4
136 148
57528 50350
8,803 4 7,925 3
400 413
416 3 6239
988 7 2198
1,445 0 8850
(3.726 7) {3,967 4)
(2.2817) {3,082 4)
6,5217 48429
(2,906 O} (1,489 4)
(50 3) (25 4)
(36 8) {64 8)
3,528 6 3,263 3
3537 3529
919 756
358 356
3,047 4 2,799 2
3,528 6 32633




Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered matenial in relation to Carnival pic (the “Company™)

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared under the histonical cost convention, with the exception of
financial mstruments which are included in the financial stalements at farr value, and are prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom and the Companies Act 1985

Under section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985 the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to
present its own profit and loss account Under Financial Reporting Standard 1 (Revised 1996), the
Company 15 exempt from the requirement to prepare statements of cash flow as the Consohdated
Statements of Cash Flow have been published

Changes in accounting polictes
The Company has adopted the following accounting standards from December 1, 2005

The Accounting Standards Board {("ASB’"}) first 1ssued FRS 17 “Retrement benefits” in November
2000, and the Company has appiied the transitional arrangements under FRS 17, relating to
disclosures, since the year ended December 31, 2001 FRS 17 has been fully adopted by the Company
for the first time 0 the year ended November 30, 2006 Under full application, the Company's net
cblhigation in respect of defined benefit pension plans has been reflected as a hability on its balance
sheet Actuanal gains and losses that anse in calculating the Company’s cbligations in respect of
such plans are recognised directly in reserves The operating and financial costs of such plans are
recognised in the profit and loss account

The ASB 1ssued FRS 20 “Share-based Payments” in April 2004 The Company operates two employee
share plans the Carnwal plc Deferred Bonus and Co-investment Matching Plan and the Carnwal ple
2005 Employee Share Plan The fair values of option grants under the plans were calculated using
the Black-Scholes valuation model The fair values of restricted share awards and matching share
awards under the plans are measured by reference to the Carnival plc share price The far value is
measured at grant date and, In accordance with FRS 20, the resulting cost 1s charged to the profit and
loss account over the period duning which the employees become unconditionally entilled to the
options or shares The amount recognised as an expense s adjusted to reflect changes in expected
and actual levels of options vesting

The ASB 1ssued FRS 21 “Events after the balance sheet date” in May 2004 This standard replaced
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 17 "Accounting for post balance sheet events” and the
main effect of this change 15 to prohibit the recording of a provision for a dividend where the dividend
Is declared after the balance sheet date FRS 21 1s applicable for accounting pertods beginning on or
after January 1, 2005 Dwidend distnbutions are recognised in the period in which the dividends are
declared as under the DLC arrangements the declaration of an intenim dividend, by the Boards of
Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc, crystallises a ability for Carnival ple
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Notes to the company financial statements— (continued}

Duning the year the Company also adepted FRS 23 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates”, FRS 25 “Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation”, FRS 26 “Financial Instruments
Measurement® and FRS 28 “Corresponding Amounts” The adoption of these standards has not had
a matenial impact on the Company’s balance sheet

The Company has amended its accounting policy relating to dry-docking costs, compnsing planned
major mantenance activities, so as to conform to that of Carnival Corporation The Company’s
previous accounting policy was to defer the cost of these activities performed during dry-dock, and
expense them over the estimated penicd of benefit, generally twelve months or in some instances the
penod to the next scheduled dry-dock, which can be up to thirty months The costs incurred during
the course of a dry-dock are now immediately written off to profit and loss Capital expenditures
incurred during a dry-dock continue to be capitalised as ship improvements on a component basis
and depreciated over their estimated useful lives, with the estimated net book value of assets being
replaced written off

The impact of first time adoption of these standards 1s set out in note 15 to the Company accounts

Goodwill

Goodwill arsing on business acquisitions, being the difference between the fair value of consideration
compared to the far value of net assets acquired, represents the residual purchase price after
allocation to all identifiable net assets Goodwill i1s regarded as having an mndefinite useful economic
life and, accordingly, it 1s not amortised This policy 1s appropriate due to the long-term nature of the
business and the enduring nature of the brands, which are a key part of the strategy of the Company
and are supported by continuing investment in the brands and new ships Goodwill 1s reviewed
annually by the directors, by comparing the carrying value with the estimated recoverable amount, to
determine whether there has been any permanent impairment in value, any such reduction in value 1s
taken to the profit and loss account

Investments
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are held at cost less provisions for imparment

Tangible fixed assets

Ships are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Subsequent ship improvement costs that we
believe add value to our ships are capitalised as additions to the ships, while costs of repairs and
maintenance and minor replacement costs are charged to expense as incurred

Properties and other fixed assets, including computer equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation

Interest incurred In respect of payments on account of assets under construction 15 capitalised to the
cost of the assets concerned

Depreciation 15 calculated to write off the cost to estimated residual value on a straight line basis over
the expected useful Iife of the asset concerned as follows

Cruise ships 30 years
Freehold buildings 20-35 years
Other fixed assets 2-20 years

Owned land and ships under construction are not deprecrated
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Notes to the company financial statements— (continued)

Impairment of fixed assets

Fixed assetls are reviewed for imparrment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable based on estimated future cash flows
Provision for impairment in value of fixed assets 1s made Iin the profit and loss account

Dry-dock costs

Dry-dock costs primarly represent planned major mantenance activites which are immediately
written off to profit and loss Capital expenditures incurred dunng a dry-dock are capitalised as ship
improvements on a compenent basis and depreciated over their estimated usefu! lives, with the
estimated net book value of assets being replaced wntten off

Stocks

Stocks consist of provisions, gift shop and art merchandise held for resale, fue! and supplies and are
stated at the lower of cost or net realisable valueg

fRevenue and expense recognition

Turnover comprises sales to third parties (excluding VAT and similar sales and port taxes) Guest
cruise deposits represent unearned revenues and are initially recorded as customer deposit habilities
when received Customer deposits are subsequently recognised as cruise revenues, together with
revenues from onboard and other activities, which includes transportation and shore excurston
revenues and all associated direct costs of a voyage, upon completion of voyages with durations of
ten mights or less and on a pro rata basis for voyages in excess of ten mights Future travel discount
vouchers issued to guests are typically recorded as a reduction of revenues when such vouchers are
utihsed Cancellation fees are recognised in revenues at the time of cancellation Revenues and
expenses from tour and travel services are recognised at the time the services are performed or
expenses are incurred

Selling expenses

Marketing and promotion costs are expensed as incurred, except for brochures and media production
costs, which are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to the profit and lpss account as
brochures are consumed or upon the first ainng of the advertisement

Leases

Rentals under operaling leases are charged to the income statement on a straight ine basis over the
life of the lease

Pension costs

The Company operates both defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes The net deficit or
surplus for each defined benefit pension scheme 1s calculated in accordance with FRS17, based on
the present value of the defined benefit obligahon at the balance sheet date less the tair value of the
plan assets The calculation i1s performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method
The discount rate Is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated bonds or local equivalent
that have matunity dates approximating to the terms of the Group’s obhgations To the extent that the
benefits vest immediately, the expense I1s recognised immediately in the iIncome statement
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Notes to the company financial statements— (continued)

Actuarial gains and losses that anise in calculating the Company’s obligation in respect of a plan are
recognised 1n the penod in which they anse directly in the profit and loss reserve

The operaling and financing costs of defined benefit pension plans are recognised separately in the
income statement, current service costs are spread systematically over the expected average remarming
service lives of employees and financing cosls are recognised In the periods within which they arise

Contributions, including lump sum payments, in respect of defined contribution pension schemes and
multi-employer schemes where 1t 1s not possible to identify the Company’s share of the scheme, are
charged to the income statement as they fall due

Denvatives and other financial instruments

Carnival plc uses foreign currency swaps, non-denvative financial instruments and interest rate swaps
to manage is exposure to certain foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate risks, such as to
hedge certain major capital expenditures or lease commitments of the Company in currencies other
than the functional currency Derivative financial instruments are accounted for at fair value Subject
to specific critena, dernvative financial instruments, financial assets and financial llabiities may be
designated as forming hedge relabionships, as a result of which, changes in fair value are offset in the
Income statement or recogmsed directly in the statement of total recognised gains and losses,
depending on the nature of the hedge relationship Hedging derwatives fall into three classtfications
fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and hedges of a net investment Fluctuations in value of farr
value hedge dervatives are offset against the changes in the value of the underlying hedged item, for
the Company the underlying hedged tems are princtpally contracted ship capital commitments
Fluctuations in value of cash flow hedge dervatives are taken to reserves until the underiying hedged
item is recognised in earnings Changes in value of hedges of a net investment are recogmsed in
reserves, offsetting the change in the translated value of the hedged net investment In the event that
a previously hedged investment 15 disposed of, the accumulated amount recognised In reserves
ansing from hedging i1s required to be removed from reserves and reflected in net income

Foreign currencies

The presentation currency of the Company 1s the U S dollar The Company comprises several
branches, which generate earnings and hold assets in different currencies, principally pounds sterling,
U3 dollars and Australian dollars Each branch determines its functional currency by reference to
the relevant economic environment Transactions in currencies olher than a branch’s functionai
currency are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary asset and
liability balances denominated in currencies other than a branch’s functional currency are remeasured
into the branch's functional currency, at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Exchange differences ansing from the retranslation of the opening net assets of non US dollar
functional currency branches, non U S dollar equity investments and of related hedges are taken to
reserves, together with the differences ansing when the profit and loss accounts are translated at
average rates and compared to rates ruling at the year end Other exchange gans and losses are
taken to the profit and loss account
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Notes to the company financial statements— (continued)

2 Profit and loss account

In accordance with s230 of the Companies Act 1985 the Company has not presented its own profit
and loss account The profit attnbutable to shareholders of the Company for the year was $364 4m
(2005 $1977m) The profit and loss account compnses $1,368 1m (2005 $1,119 9m) of distnibutable
reserves and $1,679 3m {2005 $1,679 3m) of undistnbutable reserves

The audit fee of the Company was $0 8m (2005 $0 5m) and fees payable for other services pursuant
to legislation were $0 1m (2005 rul)

Directors’ remuneration 1s disclosed in Part Il of the Remuneration Report within Annex B of the Proxy
Statement which accompanies these accounts The average number of Company shoreside employees
during the year was 1,195 (2005 1,138) Wages and salanes were $71 2m (2005 $60 0m), social
security costs were 57 Om (2005 $5 9m) and pension costs were $3 9m (2005 $3 3m)

Dividend disclosures are provided in note 6 to the Carnival ple consolidated financial statements

3 Goodwill

Us sm
Cost at November 30, 2006 and 2005 2151

Due to the endunng nature of the Company’s brands and continued investment in the brands and new
ships, goodwill is regarded as having an indefinite life and i1s not amortised In the opinion of the
directors this departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985, for goodwill to be
amortised, 15 adopted so that the financial statements give a true and farr view It i1s not possible to
quantify the effect of this departure because no finite ife for goodwill can be identified

4 Ships
Dwned
UsSsm
Cost
Cost at December 1, 2005 3,526 3
Exchange movements 304 8
Additions 1140
Disposals (246 2)
Cost at November 30, 2006 3,698 ¢
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation at December 1, 2005 (865 9)
Exchange movements (79 2)
Charge for year (130 8)
Disposals 198 7
Accumulated depreciation al November 30, 2006 (877 0)
Net book value
At November 30, 2006 2,8219
At November 30, 2005 2,660 4

Ships under construction included in the above for the Company totalled $141 4m (2005 $57 3m)
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Notes to the company financial statements— (continued)

5 Other fixed assets

Equipment
and
motor
vehicles
USsSsm
Cost
Cost at December 1, 2005 397
Exchange movements 40
Additions 39
Disposals (4 4)
Cost at November 30, 2006 432
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation at December 1, 2005 (24 9)
Exchange movements (2 3}
Charge for the year (6 3}
Disposals 39
Accumulated depreciation at November 30, 2006 (29 6)
Net book value
At November 30, 2006 136
At November 30, 2005 148
6 Investment in subsidiaries
USsSm
At Decemnber 1, 2005 50350
Exchange movements 290 4
Additions 484 4
Impairment (57 0)

At November 30, 2006 57528

Addions to investment in subsidiaries include $484 4m In respect of further investment n previously
owned subsidianes

The principal operating subsidianes at November 30, 2006 were

Country of Percentage of equity
Incorporation/  share capital owned at
Registration November 30, 2006 Business Description
P&O Princess Cruises
International Ltd England 100%" Shipowner
Alaska Hotel Properties LLC USA 100% Hotel operations
Royal Hyway Tours Inc USA 100% Land tours
Tour Alaska LLC USA 100% Rail tours
CC US Ventures, Inc USA 100% Holding company
Costa Crociere Sp A ltaly 99 98% Passenger cruising
Cozumel Cruise Terminal S A
deCV Mexico 100% Port operaticns
Global Fine Arts, Inc USA 100% Art sales and picture framing
Holland Amenca Line Inc USA 100% Hotel operations and

land and rail tours
THeld directly by the Company
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Notes to the company financial statements— (continued}

7 Stocks

Consumables and other provisions
Goods for resale

8 Debtors

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Cther debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

9 Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year

Bank loans

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to Carnival Corporation group companies
Amounts owed to subsidiangs

Corporation tax

Other creditors

Accruals

Deferred income

Diwvidends payable

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans, loan notes and bonds

Between one and five years

Bank loans

Other creditors

Over five years

Sterling bonds 2012

Euro bond 2013

Bank loans

39

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
UsS Sm USsm
313 341
87 72
400 413
As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
Us $m Us sm
1758 1009
1252 322 3
796 930
357 1077
4163 6239
As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
US $m Us sm
(82 7) (237 3)
(33 3) (57 6)
(315 1) (564 9)
(2,583 3) (2,437 5)
02 (14)
(20 6) (27 7)
{134 4) (147 9
{498 5) {440 0)
(58 6) (531)
(3,726 7) (3,967 4)
As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30,2005
USsSm Ussm
(1,137 6) (904 6)
{32 6) (19 0)
(387 5) (339 9)
(983 2) —
(365 1) (225 9}
{2,906 0) {1,489 4)




Notes to the company financial statements— (conkinued}

Bank loans and overdrafts mclude amounts of $143 Om (2005 $149 8m) secured on ships Further
detalls of nterest rates on bank borrowings are given In note 25 to the Carnival ple consolidated
financial statements The deeds of guarantee i1ssued In conunction with the formation of the DLC,
and subsequent guarantees issued, effectively result in Carnival plec guaranteeing all of Carnival
Corporation’s indebtedness and eertain other monetary obligations Carnwval Corporation has provided
reciprocal guarantees over the Company’s and certain of its subsidianes’ indebtedness Further
details of arrangements under the DLC structure are given in note 3 of the Carnival Corporation & plc
2006 Annual Report

The maturity of bank loans, bonds and overdrafts I1s as follows

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005
uUsSsm USsm
Within one year (82 7} {237 3)
Between one and two years 827) (50 4)
Between two and five years (1,054 9) (854 2)
Between five and ten years (1,706 5) {511 2)
Over ten years {29 3) (54 6)

{2,956 1) (1,707 7}

10 Provisions for liabdities

Provisions in the company relate to vacant leasehold properties which are expected to be settled over
the next 5 years and other post employment obligations The latter provisions accounted for most of
the change during the year

11 Net pension habilities

The Comnpany’s nel pension habilities represent substantially all of the Group’s funded employee
benefit plans Detalled disclosures relating to these plans are included in note 21 to the Carnival ple
consolidated financial statements

12 Share capital and reserves

Disclosures relating to the Company’s share capital are provided 1n notes 16 and 17 to the Carnwval
plc consehdated financial statements

Share-based payments

Share options over Carnival plc shares, granted under the Carnival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan,
typically vest three years after the date of the grant

Awards over 70,004 restricted share awards were made to certain officers and senor managers Of
these awards 60,004 vest unconditionally after three years and 10,000 vest unconditionally after five
years and they are all equity settled In addition under the Carnival plc Deferred Bonus and
Co-Investment Matching Plan, certain senior managers are able to invest a percentage of any annual
bonus in Carnival plc shares, with a view to receiving a matching award if certain predetermined
performance targets are achieved The compensation expense related to these share awards 1s
calculated by reference to the Carnival plc share price on the date of grant and expensed to the
income statement over the vesting penod
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Notes to the company financtal statements— (continued)

Details relating to share options and restricted share awards are given in note 20 to the Carnival plc
consolidated financial statements

Share premuum Qther Profit and
account reserves  loss account Total
US $m USssm Ussm ussm
At December 1, 2005 756 356 2,760 4 2,8716
Prior penod adjustment {note 15) — — 388 388
756 356 2,799 2 29104
Exchange movements — — 1087 1087
Issue of shares 163 — — 16 3
Net loss on dervative contracts — — (21 4) (214)
Net actuanal gain on defined benefit
pension schemes - — 146 14 6
Retained profit for the financial year — — 146 3 146 3
At November 30, 2006 99 356 3,0474 31749

At November 30, 2006 Group “Other reserves” represent the difference between the market and
nominal value of shares 1ssued as inihial constderation of $35 6m In respect of the purchase of 48%
of AIDA Cruises Limited in November 2001 The shares 1ssued In respect of the mnitrial consideration
were accounted for in accordance with the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 1985

13 Commitments

Al November 30, 2006 the Company had contracted capital commutments relating to shup construction
contracts amounting to $1 2bn (2005 $1 1bn) Ship capital commitments at November 30, 2006 include
contract payments to the shipyards, design and engineering fees, construction oversight costs,
various owner supplied items and capitalised interest

Subsequent to the year end the Company contracted for one new ship with an estimated cost of
$0 7bn, further details of capital commitments are given in note 6 to the Carnival Carporation & plc
2006 Annual Report

14 Derivative financial instruments

Virtually all the derivalive financral instruments i1ssued by the Group are 1ssued by Carnuval ple,
detailed disclosures relating to the nature and fair values of these instruments are given in note 25 to
the Carnival plc consolidated financial statements

In addion, the Company was party to a series of interest rate swaps with one of its wholly owned
subsidianes These interest rate swaps, which are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements,
do not satisfy the crtena for hedge accounting Accordingly, the change in farr value of these
instruments 1 taken to profit and loss account In 2006 this resulted In a finance charge of $6 7m
(2005 $25 1m)
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Notes to the company financial statements— (contimnued)

15 Prior year adjustments

The adoption of FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits”, FRS 20 “Share-based Payments”, FRS 21 “Events
after Balance Sheet Date”, FRS 25 “Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation”, FRS 26
“Financial Instruments Measurement” and the change in dry-dock costs recognition, in these financial
statements represent changes in the Company's accounting policies The impact of these changes
on the Company’s 2005 balance sheet 15 shown below

2005

As originally Financial 2005
stated Dividends Dry-dock Pension Instruments  As restated
UsSsm ussm UssSm Ussm ussm USsSm
Goodwill 2151 — — — —_ 2151
Tangible assets
Ships 26604 — — —_ — 2,660 4
Other fixed assets 148 — — — — 148
tnvestments—subsidianes 50350 — — — —_ 50350
7.9253 — — — — 7,9253
Current assets
Stocks 413 -_ —_ — — 413
Debtors 5726 — (33 4) — 847 6239
Cash at bank and 1n hand 2198 _ — — — 2198
8337 - (334) — 84 7 8850
Creditors amounts falling
due within one year (4,020 2) 531 — — {©3) {3,967 4)
Net current habilities (3,186 5) 531 (33 4) — 84 4 (3,082 4)
Total assets less
current habilities 4,738 8 531 {33 4) — 84 4 48429
Creditors amounts falling due
after more than one year (1,488 9) - — — {05 (1,489 4)
Provisions for liabilities (25 4) — — — — (25 4)
Net pension habihties — — - {64 8) — (64 8)
32245 531 {33 4) (64 8) 839 3,263 3
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 3529 — — — —_ 3529
Share prermium account 756 — — — —_ 756
Other reserves 356 — — —_ _— 356
Profit and loss account 2,760 4 831 (33 4) (64 8) 839 2,799 2
Equity shareholders’ funds 3,2245 531 (33 4) (64 8) B39 3,263 3
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Report of the independent auditors to the members of Carnival plec

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Carnival ple for the year ended
November 30, 2006 which comprise the balance sheet and the related notes These parent company
fimancial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have also
audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report in Annex B to the Proxy Statement that
15 described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Carnival plc for the year ended
November 30, 2006

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsitulittes for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report
and the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibility ts to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Thus report, including the opinton, has
been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body In accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We da not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose
hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting

We report to you our opirion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and
fair view and whether the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opimien the information given in the Diectors’ Report
15 consistent with the parent company financial statements In addition we report to you If, in our
optnion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not receved all the
nformation and explanations we require for our audit, or If information specified by law regarding
Directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1$ not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with
the audited parent company financial statements The other information comprises only pages 1to 3
and 32 to 47 of the Carnival Corporation & ple 2006 Annual Report and the Proxy Statement and
related Annexes, other than the auditable part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained In
Annex B to the Proxy Statement We consider the implications for our report If we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements
Our responstbilities do not extend to any other information
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit m accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements and the part of
the Directers’ Remuneration Report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements, and of whether the accounting polictes are appropnate to the company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion

In our opimon
* the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company’s affairs as at
November 30, 2006,
s the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
udited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

the information given in the Direglegs' Report 1s consistent with the parent financial statements
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered AccourtanTs and Heqistered Auditors
1 Embankment Place, London
20 February 2007

The maintenance and integnity of the publication of the Carnival pic financial statements on the Carnival websites
15 the responsibility of the Company, the work camed out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were initrally presented on the website

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legisiation in other junsdictions
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Annex A

CARNIVAL PLC DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Directors’ Report

Camival plc and Carnival Corporation are separate legal entiies (together referred 1o In this report as
“Carnival Corporation & plc”) and each company has its own board of directors and committees of the
board However, as 1s required by the agreements governing the dual listed company (“DLC”) structure,
there 15 a single management team and the boards of directors and members of the commuttees of the
boards are 1dentical

Principal activities

Carnival Corporation & plc ts the largest cruise vacation group in the world, with a portfolio of cruise
brands in North America, Europe and Australia Together, these brands operate 81 ships totating
144,000 lower berths with 20 new ships scheduled to enter service between March 2007 and June 2011
Carmval Corporation & plc also operates the leading tour companies in Alaska and the Canadian Yukon,
Holland Amenca Tours and Princess Tours Carnival Corporation & plc has a multi-brand strategy,
which provides products and services appealing to the widest possible target audience across all major
sectors of the vacation industry

Business review and future developments

The directors consider that the most meaningful presentation of the Carnival plc group’s results and
financial position under the DLC structure s by reference to information provided for Carmival Corporation
& plc under US GAAP which 1s included in the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report, which
accompames the proxy statement Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations contained on pages 32 to 44 in the Carmival Corporation & ple 2006 Annual
Report contains a review of the business and sets out the principal activities, operations, performance,
financial position and ikely future developments of the Carmival Corporation & ple group In addition,
that discussion rdentifies the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties with related mitigating factors that might
atfect the Carnival Corporation & plc group's future performance Further information 1s also provided in
the Chairman’s statement on pages 2 and 3 of the Carmival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report

The consolidated net income for the Carrival ple group (being Carmival plc and its subsidiary undertakings)
under applicable international financial reporting standards was $744 7m (2005 - $524 1m) For the
avordance of doubt, this does not include the results of Carnival Corporation

On December 15, 2006, Carnival pic announced it had signed a letter of intent with TUI AG to form a
joint venture company to develop, market and operate two crutse brands — Carmival pic’s existing AIDA
Cruises and a new TUI Cruises brand - both designed for the German-speaking holiday market Under
the proposed transaction, TUl will imtially purchase five percent of the jomt venture 1n 2007 and 1s
expected to purchase another 20 percent in 2010

Dividends

During the year ended November 30, 2006, Carnival Corporation and Carrival pic paid four quarterly
dividends totalling $1 00 per ordinary share (2005 - 70 U S cents) On October 18, 2008, Carnival plc
announced a quarterly cash dividend of $0 275 cents per ordinary share The dividend was paid on
December 8, 20086, to shareholders of record on Novemnber 17, 2007

Although the dividend 1s declared in U S cents, 1t 1s paid in sterling to the holders of ordinary shares i
Carnival plc unless they elect to receive their dvidends in U S dollars  The dvidend wil! be converted
into stering at an exchange rate set approximately 10 days pror to the actual payment

Holders of the Carnival plc’s Amencan Depositary Shares (“ADSs”) are paid their dividend n U S
dollars
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On September 21, 2004, Bedell Trustees Limited, the trustee for the Carnival pic Deferred Bonus and
Co-Investment Matching Plan, waived its nght to all dividends payable by Carnival plc  Dividends paid
during the year over which nights were waived amounted to $152,468 25

Share capital

Changes in Carnival pic's share capital dunng the year are given in note 16 to the audited IFRS
consohdated financial statements of Carnival plc (the “Carnival plc Accounts™)

The preference shares of Carnival pic, which have been allotted but not 1ssued, are entitted, in prionty
to the holders of any other class of shares in Carnival plc’s share capital, to a cumuiative fixed dividend
of 8% per annum The preference shares carry no voting nghts and rank behind the ordinary shares in
relation to a winding-up and certain types of return of capital The Carnival pic subscriber shares have
no dividend nghts nor voting nghts nor any nghts to payment of capital upen a distributton of assets by
Carnval plc  The preference shares and subscnber shares are unlisted

Detatls of options over ordinary shares and restricted stock units granted to employees are given in note
20 to the Carmival plc Accounts

In October 2004, Camival Corporation and Carnival plec announced that their boards of directors had
authornised the repurchase of up to an aggregate of $1 billion of Carmival Corporation and Carnival
plc shares That program was completed and in June 2006 Carmival Corporation and Carnival plc
announced that their boards of directors had authonzed the repurchase of up to an additional $1 bilhon of
Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc shares Shareholder approval ts not required to buy back shares
of Carnival Corporation, but 1s required under the Companies Act 1985 to buy back shares of Carnival
plc Accordingly, at the annual general meetings held on Apnl 20, 2008, the authonty for Carnival plc to
buy back its own shares was approved This authonty enabled Carnival pic to buy back up to 10,633,211
ordinary shares of Carnival plc (being approximately 5% of Carnival pic’s ardinary shares in1ssue) That
approval expires at the conclusion of Carnival plc’s 2007 annua! general meeting  As of January 31,
2007, Carmival Corporation has purchased 26,666,649 shares of Carnival Corporation for $1 2 billion and
Carnival Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Carnival Cerpeoration, has purchased 650,000 shares of
Carnival plc for $25 million

Directors

in accordance with the Carnival Corporation & plc Corporate Governance Guidelines, A Kirk Lanterman
has not been nominated for re-election as a director at the April 16, 2007 annual general meeting, having
reached the age of 75 Mr Lanterman has been a director of Carrival Corporation since April 1992 and
a drector of Carmival ple since April 2003 He has been non-executive Chairman of the Board of Holland
Amenca Line Inc (“HAL"), a subsidiary of Camival plc, since December 2004 He was Chatrman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of HAL from November 2003 to November 2004 From August 1999
to November 2003, he was Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of HAL

The names of the other persons who served as directors of Carmival Corporation and Garnival plc during
the 2006 financial year, and biographical notes about each of the directors, including the penod for which
they held office dunng the 2006 financial year, are contained in the proxy statement to which this report
1s annexed Details of the directors’ membership on board committees are set out in the Carnival plc
Corporate Governance Report attached as Annex C to the proxy statement

On January 22, 2007, the board appointed Laura Weil as a director of Carnival Corporation and
Carnival plc  She has been nominated for election as a director at the Apnl 16, 2007 annual general
meeting Biographical notes about Ms Weil are contained in the proxy statement to which this report
Is annexed

Details of the directors’ remuneration and their interests in the shares of Carnival Corporation and
Carnival plc are set out in Part I the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report attached as Annex B
to the proxy statement
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Substantial shareholdings

As at the date of this report, Carnival plc has been notified of the following matenal interests of 3% or
more in Carmival pic’s 1ssued ordinary share capital

Percentage of

No of shares 1ssued capital
Baillie Gifford & Co 13,561,146 6 am
Carnival investments Limited 42,329,877 19 9@
Legal & General Group plc 11,350,409 53®
The Capital Group Companies, Inc 16,984,669 BoW

{1}  Bailhe Gitiord & Co and its subsidianes or affiiates have an indirect mterest in these shares

(2) These shares carry no voung nghts or nghts on hiquidation unless Carnival Corporation owns over 90% of all the Carnival
plc shares

(3) Legal & General Group pic and/or its substdiaries have an interest in these shares

(4} Interests of The Capital Group of Companies, Inc and its affiliates Caprial Research and Management Company, Capital
International S A , Capital International Limited and Capital Guardian Trust Company

Save for the above, no person has reported any matenal interest of 3% or more or any non-matenal
Interest exceeding 10% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of Carmval ple

Corporate Governance

A report on corporate governance and compltance with the Combined Code appended to the UK Listing
Authonity’s Listing Rules 1s contained n the Carnival pic Corporate Governance Report attached as
Annex C to the proxy statement The Part | of the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report is
included in the proxy statement and Part Il of the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report is attached
as Annex B to the proxy statement

Corporate and Social Responsibility
Heatlth, safety and the environment

On April 20, 2006, the boards established the Health, Environmental, Safety & Secunty (“HESS")
Committees comprised of three independent directors  The pringipal function of the HESS Committees
15 to assist the boards in fulfiling thewr responsibility to supervise and monitor Carnival Corporation &
pic’s health, environmental, safety and secunty pohcies, programs, iniiatives at sea and onshore, and
comphance with related legal and regulatory requirements

Carnival Corporation & plc has corporate Health & Safety and Environmental policies that management
reviews annually

The boards recognise that Carrival Corporation & plc need to ensure there 15 a consistent standard of
operation throughout its fieet in keeping with its leading position in the cruise industry  In this regard,
the Carnival Corporation & pic Mantime Polcy & Compliance Department works with the operating
companies to develop corporate-wide standards on heaith, environmental, safety and security 1ssues in
order to provide fleet-wide conststency

The operating comparues of Carnival Corporation & plc have successfully completed implementation
and certification of their respective environmental management systems to the 1SO 14001 standard
Certifications have beenissuedto the company’s operating units by four differentinternationally recogrized
maritime regulatory agencies in recegnition of Carnival's commitment to systematic management of its
processes, products and services to minimize environmental impact

Monitoring of compliance with corporate policies and corporate standards i1s maintained through a
senes of audits performed by the Maritime Policy & Compliance Department, which reports to the HESS
Committees
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Carnival Corporation & plc's Health & Safety and Environmental policies and Annual Environmental
Report are available on the Carnival Corporation & plc website at www carnivalcorp com or www
carnivalplc com

Employees

Carnival Corporation & pic own and operate a portfolio of cruise brands in North Amenca, Europe and
Australia comprised of Carnival Crutse Lines, Holland Amenica Line, Princess Cruises, Seaboumn Cruise
Line, Windstar Crutses, AIDA Cruises, Costa Cruises, Cunard Line, Ocean Village, P&O Cruises, Swan
Hellenic, and P&0O Crutses Australia  Individual brands employ a variety of methods, such as intranet
sites, management bnefings, newsletters and reward programmes to keep employees informed of the
performance, development and progress of Carnival Corporation & plc

Senior employees within Carnival Corporation & plc are ehigible to participate i esther the Camrval plc
2005 Employee Share Plan or the Carnival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan, further details of which are
provided in Carnival pic’s Directors’ Remuneration Report attached as Annex B to the proxy statement
These schemes reinforce the philosophy of encouraging senior employees to contribute directly to the
achievement of Carnival Corporation & pic’s goals and of rewarding individual and collective success

It1s the policy of Carmival Corporation & plcthat disabled persons should recerve full and fair consideration
for all job vacancies for which they are suitable applicants and training and career deveiopment 1s
encouraged as for all other employees It I1s the policy of Carnival Corporation & plc to seek to retan
employees who become disabled whilst in its service wherever possible and to provide specialist training
where appropnate

Charitable donations

Carnival Corporation & plc provides support to chanties by way of donations in cash and/or gifts in kind
Carnival Corporation has established the Carnival Foundation (the “Foundation”), which assists 1t In
its commitment to ennch and better the hives of communites where 1t does business and/or where its
employees live and work The Foundation considers applications for chantable support from indnviduals
and organisations and, according to an assessment of the ments of each application, determines whether
it 1s appropnate to support particular causes or projects  Its pnimary funding interests include human and
social needs, art and culture, health services and educaton

During the financial year ended November 30, 2008, the Carnival plc group made chantable donations
totalling $1 6 million (2005 - $1 4 million) of which $1 0 mullion (2005 - $1 1 million) was in respect of
charitable organisations m the United States

Political contributions

Carnival plc did not make any political contributions to any European Unton (“EU”) political organisation
during the year ended November 30, 2006 (2005 - nif) Carnval pic subsidarnes made poltical
contributions to organisations outside the EU of $0 3 mullion (2005 - $0 1 million)

Creditor payment policy

It 1s Carnival plc’s policy that payments to suppliers are made in accordance with those terms and
conditions agreed between the company and its suppliers, provided that all trading terms and conditions
have been complied with At November 30, 20086, the company had an average of 12 days purchases
outstanding in trade creditors

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The directors are satishied that the auditors are aware of all information relevant to the audit of Carnival
plc’s consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended November 30, 2006 and that they
have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make them aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that Carnival ple’s auditors are aware of that information
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Auditors

The independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in
office and a resolution that they be re-appointed will be proposed at the annual general meeting

By order of the board

Arnaldo Perez
Company Secretary
February 20, 2007
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

UK company law requires the directors of Carnival pic to prepare financial statements for each financial
year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Carruival pic and the Carnival plc group and of
the profit or loss of the group for that penod

In preparing those financial statements the directors are required to

s Select sutable accounting pohicies and then apply them consisiently,
¢  Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

& State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explamned in the financial statements

The appiicable accounting standards referred fo above are UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
for Carnival plc and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted in the EU for the Carnival
plc group

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of Carnival plc and the Carnival plc group and to enable them
to ensure that the financial statements and the Carnival pic Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with
the Comparies Act 1885 and, as regards the Carnival plc group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation Thay are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of Garnival plc and the Carnival
plc group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularntes

By order of the board

Arnaldo Perez
Company Secretary
February 20, 2007
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Carnival plc IFRS Summary Financial Information

The Summary Financial Information does not give all the information needed to gain as fulf an
understanding of the results and state of affairs of the Camuval ple group (being Carnival plc and its
subsidiary undertakings) as the full Carnival plc UK Annual Report and Accounts  To receive a free
copy of the full Carnival pic Annual Report and Accounts which consists of the Proxy Statement (which
includes the Directors’ Report and Directors’ Remuneration Report), the Camival Corporation & pic
2006 Annual Report and the Carnival ple 2008 financial statements for this or future years, please
contact our registrar, details of which can be found on page 48 of the Carmival Corporation & plc 2006
Annual Report The Carnival plc group standalone financial information excludes the results of Carnival
Corporation and 1s prepared under applicable international financial reporting standards, whereas the
Carnival Corporation & plc financial statements include the results of Carnival Corporation and Carnival
plc prepared under US GAAP

Summary Group income statements

Twelve Twelve
months to months to
Nov 30, Nov 30,
2006 2005
U S Sm us $m
Revenues 4,375 1 41010
Costs and expenses
Operating
Cruise
Commussions, transportation and other 704 6 691 2
Onboard and other 1737 1776
Payroll and related 3850 388 1
Fuel 3153 2387
Food 2041 2027
Other ship operating 606 8 5870
Other 263 4 226 4
Total 2,652 9 25117
Selling and administrative 546 7 580 5
Depreciation and amortisation 3406 3353
35402 34275
Operating income 8349 6735
Interest Income 151 117
Interest expense, net of capitalised interest {112 5) (132 5)
Qther ncome {expense), net 54 4]
(92 0) (125 5)
income before iIncome taxes 742 9 548 0
Income tax benefit (expense), net 18 (239)
Net income 744 7 524 1
Carnival plc standalone earnings per share {(in U.S. doliars)
Basic 350 247
Diluted 349 248
Dividend per share 1025 0 800

See accompanying notes to the Summary Fiancial Information

Withun the DLC structure the most appropnate presentation of Carnival pic’s results and financial
position 15 considered o be by reference to the US GAAP consolidated financial statements of
Carnival Corporation & plc, which are included within the Carnival Corporation & pic 2006 Annual
Report (see note 1) For information, we set out below the US GAAP consolidated earnings per
share included within the Carrival Corporation & plc consolidated financial statements for the twelve
rmonths ended November 30, 2006 and 2005 (in U S dollars}

DLC Basic earmings per share 2006 285 2005 280

DLC Dituted earnings per share 2006 277 2005 270




Summary Group balance sheets

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables, net
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities

Short-term debt

Amounts owed to Camival Corporation
Accounts payable

Accrued habilittes and other

Customer deposits

Total current habiltties -

Non-current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other long-term habiliies and deferred income

Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares
Share prermium
Retamned earnings
Other reserves

Total shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to the Summary Financial Information

As at As at
Nov 30, Nov 30,
2006 2005

USs s$m Ussm
1,049 9 7780
2101 242 8
103 4 1025
1277 119 4
1,491 1 1,242 7
8,0955 6,901 4
747 @ 692 4
1258 826
10,459 4 8,919 1
4125 1,269 9
2098 297 1
1759 2304
3722 374 5
7180 6217
1,888 4 2,793 6
2,876 3 1,516 5
2199 179 2
4,984 6 4,489 3
3537 3529
919 756
3,448 8 28927
1,580 4 1,108 6
5,474 8 44298
10,459 4 8,919 1

Approved by the board of directors on February 20, 2007 and signed on its behalf by

Micky Arison
Howard S Frank

Report (see note 1)

Within the DLC structure the most appropnate presentation of Carnival plc’s results and financial
position 15 considered to be by reference to the US GAAP consolidated financial statements of
Camival Corporation & plc, which are included wittun the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual
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Notes to the Summary Financial Information

1  Basis of preparation

From December 1, 2005, the Group 1s required to prepare its financial statements in accordance
with international Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Umion and
implemented in the UK Prior to that date the resulis were prepared under UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles  As the 2006 Financial Statements include comparatives for 2005, the Group’s
date of transition to IFRS 1s December 1, 2004 and the 2005 comparatives are restated to IFRS

Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc operate a dual isted company (“DLC”), whereby the businesses
of Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc are combined through a number of contracts and through
provistons in Carnival Corporation’s articles of incorporation and by-laws and Carmival plc’s memorandum
of associabon and articles of association Although the two compantes have retained therr separate
legal 1dentities they operate as If they were a single economic enterprise Each company’s shares
continue to be publicly traded, on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE™} for Carnival Corporation and
the London Stock Exchange for Carnival ple  In addition, Camival plc American Depository Shares are
traded on the NYSE The contracts goverrung the DLC structure provide that Carnival Corporation and
Carrival plc each continue to have separate boards of directors, but the boards and senior executive
management of both companies are identical Under the contracts governing the DLC the Carnival
Corporation & plc consolidated earnings accrue equally to each unit of Carnival Corporation stock and
each Carnival plc share

In order to provide the Carnival Corpeoration and Carnival ple shareholders with the most meaningful
picture of therr econamic interest in the DLC formed by Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc, consolidated
financial statements and management commentary of Carnival Corporation & plc have been included
in the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report The consolidated Carnival Corporation & plc
financial statements have been prepared under U S GAAP on the basis that all significant financial and
operating decisions affecting the DLC companies are taken on the basis of US GAAP information and
consequences

The standalone Carnival ple consohdated IFRS Summary Financial Statement 1s required to satisfy
statutory reporting requirements in the UK and does not include the results or shareholders’ equity
of Carmival Corporation  However, the directors consider that within the DLC arrangement the most
appropniate presentation of Carnival plc’s results and financial position 1s by reference fo the U S GAAP
consoldated fiancial statements of Camival Corporation & plc, which are inciuded in the Carnival
Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report that accompanies this document

Carmval pic operates cruise ships and North American related landside assets under varnous brand
names as follows Costa, Cunard, P&0O Cruises, Swan Hellenic, Ocean Village and AIDA Cruises In
Europe, P&0O Crurses (Australia) in Australia and New Zealand and Holland America Tours and Princess
Tours In North Amenca

2. Reclassification of prior year amounts

Dunng 2006 Carnival Corporation & plc adopted a new global chart of accounts in connegtion with the
implementation of a new worldwide accounting system As a result of moving to a common chart of
accounts certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current penod presentation
The principal effect on the previously reported IFRS results for the year ended November 30, 2005 was
to reduce revenue by $251 2m, reduce operating costs by $250 Om and reduce interest and other costs
by $12m

3. Dry-dock costs

Duning 2006 Carnival plc elected to change its accounting policy relating to dry-dock costs, pnmartly
comprising planned major maintenance activities, so as to conform with that of Carmival Corporation
The Group’s previous accounting policy was to defer the cost of these dry-dock activities, and expense
them over the estimated peniod of benefit, generally twelve months or in some instances the penod to
the next scheduled dry-dock, which can be up to thirty months The costs incurred dunng the course
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of a dry-dock are now immediately written off to profit and loss Capitai expenditures incurred during a
dry-dock continue to be capitalised as ship improvements on a component basis and depreciated over
therr estimated useful lives, with the estimated net book value of assets being replaced writian off

The effect of iImmediately recogrusing dry-dock costs 1s to reduce current assets at November 2005
by $47 5m with a corresponding reduction In shareholders’ equity Net income for the year ended
November 30, 2005 was reduced by $8 5m
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Annex B

CARNIVAL PLC DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
PART I

Certain information required to be included in the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report 1s set
forth in Part | (which 1s also known as the Report of the Compensation Committees) which can be
found beginning on page 45 of the proxy statement o which this report 1s annexed The Report of the
Compensation Cormmittees should be read m conjunction with this Part |l

As explamedin Part |, Parts | and [ of this report form part of the audited consohdated financrat statements
of Carnival ple far the financial year ended November 30, 2006 Carnival plc and Carnival Corporation
are separate legal entities (together referred to in this report as “Camival Corporation & pic™ and each
company has Its own board of directors and Compensation Commitiees However, as Is required by the
agreements governing the dual hsted company (“DLC”} structure, there is a single management team and
the boards of directors and members of the committees of the boards are identical

Both Parts | and It of this report have been prepared in comphance with the Directors’ Remunerahon
Report Regulations 2002 incorporated into the UK Companies Act 1985 and with the July 2003 Combined
Code on Corporate Governance, the UK Companies Act 1985 and the Listing Rules of the UK Listing
Authonty Sections 1 to 7 below compnse the “auditable part” of this report

Sterling and Euro denominated amounts are converied to U S dollar amounts at the average exchange
rates for the year ended November 30, 2006 of £1 $1 825 (2005 - £1 $1 836) and €1 $1 245 (2005 -
€1 §1 258) unless otherwise stated

Tetal Remuneration Analysis
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Mon-performance Related Remuneration = the aggregate of base saiary, benefits and fixed bonus, if any
Performance Related Remuneration = the aggregate of vanable bonus, restricted shares, restricted share units and options

The following chart shows the relative values of performance related and non-performance related
components of the remuneration of executive directors of Carnival Corporation & pic i 20086, excluding
pension benefits

The performance related and non-performance related components of the remuneration shown in the
above table were calculated using actual salary, benefits and performance-related bonuses, the face
value of restncted shares and restncted share units and expected value of options awarded n respect
of the financial year ended November 30, 2006 The expected value of the options Is calculated using
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the Black-Scholes option pricing model  The approach used in developing the assumptions upon which
the Black-Scholes valuatton was done 1s consistent with the requirements of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No 123 (revised 2004}, “Share-Based Payment ”

Non-Executive DiRECTORS

Service contracts

Non-executive directors do not have service contracts, but instead have a letter of appointment setting
out the services they are to prowvide to Carnival Corporation & plc and the other terms and conditions of
their appointment  Their appointments and subsequent appointments are subject to annual election or
re-election by shareholders

In November 2004, Holland America Line Inc {"HAL") entered into a Consulting Agreement {the
“Consuling Agreement”) with Mr Lanterman The Consulting Agreement expired in accordance with its
terms on November 30, 2006 Dunng the term of the Consuiting Agreement, Mr Lanterman provided
such consulting services and other assistance as was required by HALs President on strategic, financial
and histoncal analyses and other various services specified by HAUs President, up to a maxmum of
1,000 hours annually The Consulting Agreement contains confidentiality and indemnification provisions
HAL has indemnified Mr Lanterman from any losses ansing from his provision of the consulting services
in accordance with the Consulting Agreement, subject to customary exceptions Durning the financial
year 2008, Mr Lanterman received compensation of approximately $788,000 under the terms of the
Consulting Agreement He did not participate in any incentive compensation plans offered by HAL or
any affilate of HAL, but was eligible for medical and dental insurance and certain other benefits

Cther than Mr Lanterman who agreed not to receive compensation for his services as a non-executive
director, non-execuhive directors are entitled to receive a basic annual fee of $40,000 a year, an attendance
fee per board meeting of $5,000 ($2,000 if meeting attended by telephone), equity compensation in
the form of options to acquire shares of Carnival Corporation common stock, restricted shares and/or
restricted share units and reimbursement for travel, meals and accommodation expenses attendant to
their board membership If Carnival Corporation & plc requests that the directors’ spouses attend a
special evenl, directors are reimbursed for travel expenses incurred  In addition, non-executive directors
receive further compensation for serving as chawman ar member of a board committee as follows

Retainer Attendance fee
Chair Member In person By telephone
Audit Committees 15,000 7,500 3,000 1,500
Al! other Committees 7,500 3,750 2,500 1,250

For purposes of calculating fees, a board or committee meeting of Carnival Corporation and a concurrent
or related board or committee meeting of Carnival pic constitute a single meeting

In accordance with prevaiiing remuneration practice in the U S, non-executive directors have histonically
received aptions as part of thewr compensation In 2005 the plan under which options were awarded was
amended to permit restricted shares and restricted share units to be awarded Baraness Hogg, Sir John
Parker and Stuart Subotnick elected to receive restricted share awards and Armnold W Donald elected to
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recewve restncted share units and share options Duning fiscal 2006, the following awards were made to
non-gxecutive directors pursuant to the terms of the Amended and Restated Carnival Corporation 2001
Outside Director Stock Plan descnbed below

Number of
Number of Restrnicted Shares/
Non-Executive Director Options Restricted Share Units
Richard G Capen, Jr 10,000 —
Arnold W Donald 5,000 1,250
Richard J Glasier 10,000 —
Baroness Hogg — 2,500
Modesto A Maidique 10,000 —
Sir John Parker —_ 2,500
Stuart Subotrick — 2,500
Uz Zucker 10,000 —

The exercise price for the options 1s $47 83, being the average of the high and low market pnices of
Carnival Corporation common stock on the date of grant The options, restncted shares and restncted
share units vest ratably over a five-year period  The options, restnicied shares and restricted share units
shall alsc vest in full upon the death or disability of the director, and shall continue to vest in accordance
with the onginal five-year vesting schedule and are not forfeited If a director ceases to be a director
for any other reason after serving as a director for at least one year The oplions expire on the 100
anniversary of the grant date

Pensions

The non-executive directors do not receive any pension benefits However, 1n 1999 and years pnior
thereto, Mr Lanterman deferred receipt of a portion of his annual bonus In exchange, Carmval
Corporation and Mr Lanterman entered into a Retirement and Consuliing Agreement, which provides
that Carmival Corporation will pay tum the deferred bonus amounts plus interest in monthly instalments
over the 15 years following his retirement, which commenced on January 1, 2005

Share Ownership Guidelines

All non-executive directors should own at least 5,000 shares (inclusive of unvested restricted shares,
restricted share units and shares in a trust beneficially owned by the director) of either Camival Corporation
common stock or Carnival ple ordinary shares  The boards have mandated that al! directors serving In
2006 achieve this guidelng by October 2007 New directors must achieve this guideline no later than
two years from the date of their inthal election to the boards by the shareholders

Product Familiarization

All non-executive directors are encouraged to take a cruise for up to 14 days per year for product
farmiharization and pay a fare of $35 per day for such cruises  Guests traveling with the non-executive
director in the same stateroom will each be charged a fare of $35 per day Al other charges associated
with the cruise (e g, air fares, government fees and taxes, gratuties, ground transfers, tours, etc) are
the responsibility of the non-executive director

Long Term Incentive Plan

Amended and Restated Carnival Corporation 2001 Quiside Director Stock Plan

In accordance with the Amended and Restated Carmival Corporation 2001 Qutside Director Stock Plan
(the “Outside Director Stock Plan™), awards of share options, restricted shares and restncted share units,
or any combination thereof, may be made to non-executive directors

Each non-executive director elected or appointed to the boards of directors annually receives an award
representing 10,000 “points” Each option to purchase one share represents one point and each share
of restricted share award and each restrnicted share unit represents four points
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The maximum number of shares that may be subject to awards under the Qutstde Director Stock Pilan
1s 1,000,000

The exercise price of each option granted under the Outside Director Stock Plan 1s equal to the market
price of a share of common stock on the date an option 1s granted  Options granted under the plan vest
and become exercisable in five equal annual instalments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant
date and expire ten years from the date of grant Awards of restricted shares and restricted share units
shall be granted on the same vesting schedule as share options No performance conditions are applied
to the vesting of options and share awards

Mr Lanterman has agreed not to receive compensation for hus services as a non-executive director
and, as a result, did not receive any share ophions or awards under the Qutside Director Stock Plan  In
additon, Baroness Hogg and Sir John Parker, as UK directors, have elected not to receive share options
under the plan in accordance with UK best practice They have, however, accepted restrnicted share
awards under the Outside Director Stock Plan

TotaL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

The graph below represents the total shareholder return performance of Carmival plc from
November 30, 2001 to November 30, 2006 For compansen, the graph also shows the total shareholder
return of the FTSE 100 index
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RemuneratioNn QutcoMe During 2006

The following sections contain detailled information on the remuneration of directors dunng the year
ended November 30, 2006 The information set out in Sections 1 to 7 below has been subject to audit

1.

Directors’ Emoluments

Executive Directors

The emoluments of the exacutive directors of Camival Corporation and Carnival ple for the 2006 financial
year, excluding pension benefits, are set out In the following table

2006 2005

Annual Restricted

Performance Shares and
Base Salary Cash Bonus Share Units Benefits Total Total
$000 $000 $000 S000® $000 $000
Micky Anson 850 2,600 3,131 510 7,091 7,342
Robert H Dickinson 763 1,119 1,524 161 3,567 4,565
Howard S Frank 750 2,500 2,609M 438 6,297 6,380
Pier Luigi Foschi®@® 1,139 1,247 506 266 3,158 2,857
Peter G Ratcliffe 1,150 935 1,424005 g2© 3,571 3,533

m

2

(3)

)

5)

{6}

Messrs Anson, Dickinson, Frank and Ratcliffe were each awarded resinicled shares or restnicled share units under the
Carnival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan over 60,000, 40,000, 50,000 and 10,000 shares in Carnival Corporation common
stock respectively The value of the resincted shares or resincted share units awarded has been calculated by reference
to the closing market price at the date of grant being $52 18, $38 10, $52 18 and $48 90, respectively Mr Foschi was
awarded 10,000 restnicted share unis under the Carnival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan  The value of the units awarded
to Mr Foscht has been calculated by reference to the closing market price af the date of grant, being £25 96, transiated
into U § dollars at the exchange rate of $1 95 £1 The restrnicted shares and restnicted share units awarded are subject to
forfeiture 1n Irmited circumstances  Due to this remote possibility, they are therefore regarded as remuneration for the year
of award These resincied share and restricted share unit awards are included in the table of directors’ interests disclosed
below Details of the Carnival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan and Carnival pic 2005 Employee Share Plan are described in
Pari | of the Camival ple Directors’ Remuneration Report in the proxy statement to which this report 1s annexed
Represents the estimated value of benefits-in-kind including personal use of corporate arcraft, personal arr travel, chauffer,
car, personal use of sporting event tickets, private health insurance, private ¢lub membership, he msurance premiums,
and tax return preparation and tax planning services provided by a third party No director was paid expense allowances
chargeable to UK income tax in respect of quabfying services

Mr Foschr’'s compensation was pard in Euros  His 2006 bonus in the amount of €958,899 has been translated into U S
dollars at the exchange rate of $1 30 €1, being the exchange rate on the date his bonus was approved by the Compensation
Commuttees

Represents 50% of Mr Ratclifie’s 2006 bonus which 1s payable in cash The other 50% of his annual bonus 15 payable
in the form of Carnival ple share awards pursuant to the Carmval plc Deferred Bonus and Co-Investment Matching Plan
described above and included in the next column under “Restricted Shares and Share Units®

$489,000 of the total value of share awards shown were granted 1o Mr Ratcliffe as restricied share units under the
Carmval Corporation 2002 Stock Plan as descnbed in note (1) above $934,500 of the 1otal value of share awards shown
will e granied to Mr Ratchife under the Carnival plc Deferred Bonus and Co-Invesiment Matching Plan as part of his
annual bonus as described in note (4) above

includes employee contnbutions made on behalf of Mr Ratcliffe under the P&O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme

During the 2006 financial year, Howard S Frank and Robert H Dickinson served as non-execuiive
directors of compares outside the Camival Corporation & plc group, for which they received fees
totalling $14,200 and $1,000, respectively, which they retained




Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the non-executive directars of Carnival Corporation and Carrival plc for 2006 1s set
out in the following table

2006 2005
Restrnicted
Shares and Other
Fees Share Units Emoluments Total Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Richard G Capen, Jr 102 — — 102 100
Arnold W Donald 103 600 — 163 158
Richard J Glasier 110 —_ — 110 116
Baroness Hogg 91 12010 —_ 211 210
A Kirk Lanterman — —_ 793@ 793 785%
Modesto A Maidigue 92 — —_ 92 89
Sir John Parker 111 1200 — 231 244
Stuart Subotnick 119 1200 — 239 239
Uz Zucker 91 — — 91 93

(1) Arnold W Donald, Baroness Hogg, Sir John Parker and Stuar Subotnick were each awarded resincted share or restricted
share unit awards under the Amended and Restated Carnival Corporation 2001 Qutside Director Steck Plan over 1,250,
2,500, 2,500 and 2,500 shares in Garmival Corporatton common stock, respectively  The value of the shares awarded has
been calculated by reference to the market value at the date of grant, being $47 83 The shares awarded are not subject
to forfetture and are therefore regarded as remuneration for the year of award These restncted share awards are included
in the 1able of directors’ interests disclosed below The share options recerved by the non-executive directors, as opposed
1o restricted share awards, are disclosed below

(2) Includes $788,000 (2005 - $722,000) compensation received pursuant to the Consuting Agreement with HAL as descnbed
above

Former Executive Director Compensation
Upon the completton of the DLC transaction, Lord Sterling was appointed as Life President of P&O Cruises
and Special Adwiser to Micky Anson in his capacity as Chairman and CEQ of Carmival Corporation &

plc As Special Adwiser, Lord Sterling 1s entitled to fees for his services at a rate of £25,000 per anhum
payable in quarterly instalments in arrears

2  Carnival ple Deferred Bonus and Co-Investment Matching Plan

Cirectors’ interests in the Carnival plc Deferred Bonus and Co-Investment Matching Plan at the beginning
and the end of the 2006 financial year are as follows

At Dec 1, At Nov 30, Performance penod
2005 Grant" 2006 end date®
Peter G Ratcliffe 8,863 — 8,863 Nov 30, 2006
14,812 — 14,812 Nov 30, 2007
— 16,553 16,553 Nov 30, 2008

(1)  Mr Ratchife was granted 16,553 share awards in respect of his 2005 bonus, in February 2006 The market price of
each share compnsing this award on the day of grant was £31 24 and the value of the share award was disclosed in the
“Surmmary Compensation Table” in the proxy statement for the year ended November 30, 2005 The retention period
for such awards ends on the announcement of the financial results of Carnival Corporation & pie far the year ending
November 30, 2008

(8) The performance pernod applicable to each award 15 three years




3. Carnival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan

The number of shares of Carmival Corporation commeon stock subject to options at the beginning and
end of the 2006 financial year for each executive director I1s as foliows

Actual/
Weighted-
average
exercise Earliest date
Dec 1, Nov 30, price from which Latest
2005 Granted Exercised 2006 $ exercisable expiry date
Micky Arison 1,080,000 — — 1,080,000 34 05" Jan 12,1989 Oct 18, 2014
120,000 — — 120,000 49 099 Oct 5,2005 Oct 5 2014
120,000 — 120,000 47 83" QOct 16, 2007 Oct 18, 2013
Robert H Dickinson 480,000 —  (176,000) 304,000 40 g2 Aug 1,1999  Aug 2, 2015
80,000 — —_— 80,000 52 192 Aug 1,2006 Aug 1, 2015
80,000 - 80,000 38 46 Aug 1, 2007 Aug 1,2013
Howard S Frank 900,000 — (440,000) 460,000 40 36"  Jan 12,1999 Oct 18, 2014
100,000 — — 100,000 49 Q9@ Oct 5,2005 Ot 5, 2014
100,000 - 100,000 47 83" QOct 16, 2007 Oct 16,2013
Peter G Ratcliffe 50,000 — —_ 50,000 4361 Aprl 21, 2005  Apri 21, 2014
50,000 — — 50,000 5023®  Apnl 14, 2006 Apnl 14, 2015
50,000 — 50,000 5138 Feb 21,2007 Feb 21,2013

(1) Weighted-average price of share options which

November 30, 2006

(2) Weighted-average pnce of share options which

November 30, 2006

have an ophon price below the market price of a share as at

have an opton pnce above the market pnce of a share as at

Detalls of the Carrival Corporation share options exercised by executive diectors in 2006 are as

follows

Robert H Dickinson

Howard S Frank

Exercise Market price at Earliest date
Number price date of exercise Gam from which
exercised S § s exercisable Expiry date

16,000 2257 49775 435,280 Oct 8§, 2002 Oct 8, 2011
80,000 298125 48775 1,697,000 Jan 8,2002 Jan 8,2011
80,000 33035 49775 1,339,200 Aug 71,2002 Aug 1, 2011
31,800 26 40625 54 075 879,866 Jan 12,1999 Jan 12, 2008
68,200 26 40625 53 965 1,879,507 Jan 12,1998 Jan 12,2008
80,000 2257 53 965 2,511,600 Oct 8,2002 Oct 8, 2011
160,000 26 8125 53 965 3,864,400 Jan 8,2002 Jan 8,201
40,000 298125 54 300 979,500 Jan 8,2002 Jan 8, 2011
60,000 27875 53 965 1,665,400 Dec 2,2003 Dec 2,2012

{1)  The fotal gain made by executive directors from share option exercises dunng the financial year ended November 30,

2006 was $15 052 mulkon {2005 § 3 269 mihon)

The highest and lowest prices of Carnival Corporation’s common stock during the year ended
November 30, 2006 were $56 14 and $36 40, respectively The closing price of Carmival Corporation’s
common stock at November 30, 2006 was $48 99
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4  Carnival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan

The number of Carnival ple ordinary shares subject to options at the beginning and end of the 2006
financial year for each executive director is as follows

Actual/
Weighted-
average Earliest date
Dec 1, Nov 30, exercise from which Latest
2005 Granted 2006 price exercisable expiry date
Pier Luigi Foschi 61,200 —_ 61,200 £29 0ot Oct 18,2006 Oct 18, 2015

— 50,000 50,000 £31 98 Feb 21,2007 Feb 21,2013

(1) Weghied-average pnce of share options which have an option price above the market pnce of a share as at
November 30, 2006

5 Carnmival plc Executive Share Option Plan

The number of Carnival pic ordinary shares subject to options at the beginming and end of the 2006
financial year for each executive director 1s as foliows

Actual/
Weighted-
Dec 1, Nov 30, average Earhest date from Latest
2005 2006 Exercised exercise price  which exercisable expury date
Prer Luigi Foschi 287,064 2B7,064 — £26 40 Feb 26,2005 Oct 18, 2014
Peter G Ratclife 51,188 0 {51,188) $24 37® April 15,2006  Apnt 15, 2013

(1)  Weighted-average pnice of share options which have an option pnce above the market pnee of a share as at
November 30, 2006
{2)  Actual price of share options which have an option pnce above the market price of a share as at November 30, 2006

Detaits of the Carmival plc share options exercised by executive directors in 2006 are as follows

Exercise  Market price at
Number price date of exercise Gan Earhest date from
exercised $ $ sm which exercisable Expiry date

Peter G Ratcliffe 51,188 24 37 48 5348 1,236,948 Apnl 15, 2006  Aprl 15, 2013

(1)  The total gain made by executive directors from share ophion exercises during the financial year ended November 30,
2006 was $1 237 milion (2005 no share ophions exercised)

The highest and lowest mid-market prices of Carnival plc’s shares dunng the year ended
November 30, 2006 were £33 975 and £20 225, respectively The mid-market pnce of Carnival pic’s
shares at November 30, 2006 was £24 75




6. Amended and Restated Carnival Corporation 2001 Outside Director Stock Plan

The number of shares of Carnival Corporation common stock subject to options at the begmning and
end of the financial year ended 2006 for each non-executive director I1s as follows

Actual/
Weighted-
average Earhest date
Dec 1, Nov 30, exercise from which Latest
2005 Granted Exercised 2006 price $t0 exercisable expiry date
Richard G Capen, Jr 64,000 — — 64,000 3856@ Apnl 19,2000 Oct 18,2015
10,000 — 10,000 4783 Oct 16,2007 Oct 186, 2018
Arnold W Donald 39,000 — — 39,000 3480@ Apnl17,2002 Oct 18,2015
5,000 — 5,000 4783 Oct 16,2007 Oct 16, 2016
Richard J Glasier 20,000 — — 20,000 4627 July 20, 2005 Oct 18, 2015
10,000 — 10,000 4783 Oct 16,2007 Oct 16, 2016
Modesto A Maidique 58,000 — — 58,000 41009 Apnl 19,2000 Oct 18,2015
10,000 — 10,000 4783 Oct 16, 2007 Oct 18,2016
Stuart Subotrick 34,000 —_ — 34,000 3306@ Apnl17,2002 July20, 2014
Uzi Zucker 33,200 — — 33,200 3938% Apni17,2002 Oct 18,2015
10,000 — 10,000 4783 Oct 16,2007 Oct 18, 2016

There are no share options In respect of shares
November 30, 2006
Weighted-average price

1 whose market price 15 below the oplion price of a share as at
2

None of the non-executive directors exercised share options in 2006
7. Pensions

Executive Directors

The contribution payable to the Princess Crutses Retirement Savings Plan inthe U S described tn Part |
of the Carnval ple Directors’ Remuneration Report in the proxy statement to which this report is annexed
by Carnival plc for Mr Ratcliffe in respect of the 2006 financial year was $11,260 |n addition, employee
contributions of $18,976 were made on behalf of Mr Ratchiffe under the P&O Princess Cruises Pension
Scheme in respect of the 2006 financial year Future accruals ceased effective Apnl 5, 2008

Details of the retirement benefits of executive directors arising from their participation in defined benefit
pension arrangements are set out below

Transfer
value of
Increase
Increase In accrued
Accrued n benefits less Transfer Transfer Increasen
benefit! accrued Increase inflation value®  value® transfer Benefits
at benefits 1n accrued and net of at at value net of patd
Nov. 30, including benefits net  directors’ Dec.1, Nov.30, drectars’ during
2006 wmflation  of inflation contrnibutions 2005 2006 contributions the year
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 5000
Micky Arison 133 4 2 14 1,031 1,127 96 0
Robert H Dickinson 1,158 273 254 2,945 9,661 13,404 3,743 0
Howard S Frank 1,733 287 257 3,069 17,648 20,686 3,048 0
Peter G Ratchffe 854 106 79 1,446 13,504 15,587 2,083 0

)

The accrued benefif 1s that pension which would be paid annually on retirement at the normal retirement age under the

vartous defined benefit schemes described in Part | of the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report in the proxy
statement to which this report 1s annexed based on service to November 30, 2006

@
GNN!

All transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice in accordance with UK Actuanal Guidance Note
The transler values of the accrued enlllement represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would

need to transfer 10 another pension provider on transferring the scheme’s liabibity in respect of the directors’ pension
benefits They do not represent sums payable to indiwvidual directors and, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully to

annual remuneration
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Non-Executive Directors

Under Mr Lanterman’s Retirement and Consulting Agreement descnbed in the proxy statement to
which this report1s annexed, if he should die before the end of the 15 year period commencing on his
retirement, the then present value of any unpaid balance of the total amount payable to Mr Lanterman
under the agreement would be paid to hus estate following his death In calculating the present value, an
interest rate of 8 5% wouid be applied, being the rate of return agreed under Mr Lanterman’s Retirement

and Consulting Agreement

Details of the retirement benefits of non-executive directors artsing from their paricipation in defined
benefit post employment arrangements are set out below

Transfer
value of
decrease
Increase in accrued
n benefits less Transfer Transfer Decrease
Accrued accrued Decrease inflation value ® wvalue® ntransfer Benehits
benefitat benefits 1n accrued and net of at at value net of paid
Nov 30, Inciluding benefits net  directors’ Dec 1, HMov 30, directors’ during
2008 inflation ofinflation contnibutions 2005 2008  contnbutions the year
5000 $000 5000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
A Kuk Lanterman 1,999 o] (41) (397) 20,014 19,273 (741) 1,999

0

Under Mr Lanterman's Retirement and Consulting Agreement described in the proxy statement to which this report is

annexed, he 1s entitied 10 annual payments of $1,998,924 every year for a penod of 15 years during s retirement

2

The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice i accordance with UK Actuamal Guidance Note

GN11 The transfer value of the accrued entitlement represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would need to
transfer to another pension provider on transferning the scheme's hability in respect of the director’s pension benefits They
do not represent sums payable to the director and, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully io annual remuneration

8 Dhrectors’ Interests in Carnival Corporation common stock and Carnival plc ordinary shares

Details of the directors’ interests are set out below

Carmvat pic Carnival Corporation
Dec 1, Nov 30, Dec 1, Nov 30,

Direclors 2005 2006 2005" 2006*
Micky Arisont — — 187,094,943 187,214,942
Robert H Dickinson® — — 296,000 264,000
Howard S Frank® — — 329,717 310,237
Pier Luigi Foschi — — — —
Richard J Glasier — — 3,000 3,000
A Kirk Lanterman® — — 166,702 166,770
Peter G Ratchffe — — 27,9745 27,9744
Richard G Capen, Jr® — — 7,802 2,802
Arnold W Donald® — — 3,050 3,050
Baroness Hogg 1,874 1,874 2,500 5,000
Modesto A Maidique — — — 2,000
Sir John Parker 5,004®  10,004@® 2,500 5,000
Stuart Subotmick — — 4,500 7,000
Uz Zucker — — 60,000 60,000

* As part of the establishment of the DLC structure, Carnival plc issued a special voting share to Carnival Corporation, which
transferred such share to the irustee of the P&O Princess Special Voling Trust (the “Trust™, a trust established under
the laws of the Cayman Islands Shares of beneficial interest in the Trust were transferred to Carnival Corporation The
irust shares represent a beneficial interest in the Carnival plc special voling share Immediately following the transfer,
Carmval Corporation distributed such trust shares by way of a dwidend to holders of shares of common stock of Carnival
Corporation Under a pamng agreement, the trust shares are pared with, and evidenced by, certificates representing

shares of Carnival Corporation common stock on a one-for-one basis

In additon, under the painng agreement, when

a share of Carmival Corporation common stock 1$ 1ssued o a person after the implementation of the DLC structure, a
paired trust share will be 1ssued at the same time to such person  Each share of Carnival Corporation common siock and
the paired trust share may not be transferred separately The Carnwval Corporation commaon stock and the trust shares
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(including the benehoal interest in the Carmival plc special voting share) are histed and trade together on the New York
Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “CCL " Accordingly, each holder of Carnival Corporation common stock is also
deerned o be the beneficial owner of an equivalent number of irust shares

As of November 30, 2006, includes {1} 106,114,284 shares of common stock held by the MA 1994 B Shares, L P, (n)
2,592,895 shares of common stock held by the Nickel 2003 GRAT, {(m} 2,807,545 shares of common stock held by the
MNickel 2006 GRAT, (rv) 881,747 shares of common stock held by Nickel 2003 Revocabie Trust, (v) 538,393 shares of
commaon stock held by Nickel 1997 lrrevocable Trust, {vi) 72,847,639 shares of common stock held by the Artsfare 2005
Trust No 2, Artsfare 2006 Trust No 1, Artsfare 2006 Trust No 2 and Eternity Four Trust by virtue of the authonty granied
to Micky Anson under the last will of Ted Anson, and (vi) 1,432,438 shares of common stock held by Artsfare 2003 Trust,
all of which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Micky Anson

As of November 30, 2008, includes 264,000 shares of common stock owned by Bickinson Enterpnses Limited Partnership
(the “Dickinson Partnership”}  The general partner of the Dickinson Partnership 1s Dickinson Enterpnses, Inc , which 1s
wholly owned by a revocable trust estabhished for the benefit of Mr Dickinson and s heus {the “Dickinson Trust™) Under
the terms of the mstrurment governing the Dickinson Trust, Mr Dickinson has the sole nght 1o vote and direct the sale of
the commeon stock indirectly held by the Drckinson Trust

Includes 4,000 shares of common stock owned by the Jackson S Woolworth Irrevocable Trust and the Cassidy B
Woolworth Trust (Mr Frank is trustee), as to which Mr Frank disclaims beneficial ownership

Includes 8,000 shares of commeon stock held by the Helen K Lanterman Trust {Mr Lanterman is trustee)

Includes 13,892 shares held by Mr Ratchffe's wife

Includes 2,000 shares owned by the Capen Trust, of which Mr Capen i ¢o-trustee  Also includes 802 shares of common
stock owned by Ambassador Capen’s wife as to which he disclaims benefictal ownership

Includes 1,800 shares owned by The Arnold and Hazel Donald Chantable Trust (Mrs Donald 1s trustee)

includes 7,000 shares owned by GHM Trustees Limited, the trustee of Sirr John Parker's Fixed Unapproved Resincted
Retirement Scheme of which Sir John Parker 1s a discretionary beneficiary

Peter G Raiclffe, together with other senior executives of the Carmval plc group, who are participants
of the Carnival plc Deferred Bonus and Co-Investment Matching Plan, are potentially beneficianes of the
Bedeli Trust and therefore deemed to be techrucally interested in the 92,205 Carnival plc ordinary shares
held by the trust for the purposes of satisfying vesting of shares under the plan

The following changes in the above share interests occurred between December 1, 2006 and
January 31, 2007

Carnival Corporation

Directors Jan 31, 2007 Dec 1, 2006

Micky Arison 187,274,942 187,214,942

Arnold W Donald 1,250 3,050

Howard S Frank 290,264 310,237

A Kirk Lanterman 166,788 166,770
On behalf of the board

d Arnold W Donald
Chairman of the Compensation Committees

February 20, 2007
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Annex C

CARNIVAL PLC CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPCRT

Corporate governance

Carnival Corporatron and Carmival plc (together referred to as “Carnival Corporatron & plc”) operate
under a dual isted company structure with primary hstings nthe U S and the UK Accordingly, Carnival
Corporation & plc has implemented a single corporate governance framework consistent, to the extent
possible, with the governance practices and requirements of both countries Where there are customs
or practices that differ between the two countries, Carnival Corporation & plc has sought to be comphant
with UK best practices whenever possible Carnival Corparation & plc believes that the resulting corporate
governance framework described below effectively addresses the corporate governance requirements
of both the U S and the UK

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Carnival Corporation & plc has adopted corporate governance guidehnes ({the “Guidelines”) that set
forth the general governance pnnciples approved by the boards of directors  These prnciples are
summarized below and are available on the company’s website

* A majority of the members of each of the boards must be independent

®  The boards will each have at all tmes an Audit Committee, a Compensation Commuttes, Health,
Environmental, Safety & Secunty {*HESS") Commitiee and a Nominating & Governance Committee
(the "“Caommittees”) All the members of these Committees will be iIndependent directors under the
cntena established by the New York Stock Exchange and the London Stock Exchange Each
Committee has its own charter, which pnncipally sets forth the purposes, goals and responsibilities
of the Committees

e  The Nominating & Governance Committees will review with the boards, on an annual basis,
the requisite skills and characternisttcs of new board members, as well as the composition of the
boards as a whole The Nominating & Governance Committess will assess and recommend board
candidates for appoiniment as directors

¢  The responsibilities of the directors are laid out in the Guidelines and cover matters such as the
directors duties to Carnivat Corporation & pic and its shareholders, attendance at meetings and the
annual review of Carnival Corporation & plc’s long-term strategic plans and the principal 1ssues that
Carnival Corporation & plc will face in the future

¢  The non-executive directors shall designate a senior independent director to preside at meetngs
of the non-executive directors and at board meetings in absence of the Chairman, and to serve as
the principal haison for non-executive directors

®  Directors have free and full access to officers and emplayees of Carnival Corporation & ple, to the
advice and services of the Secretary to the boards and to independent professional advice at the
expense of Carnival Corporation & pic, as necessary

e  The Compensation Committees will recommend the form and amount of director and senior
executive compensation in accordance with the policies and principles set forth 1n 1ts charter and
conduct an annual review thereof In particular the Compensation Commitiees will annualiy review
the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and his performance to ensure that the
CEO s providing the best leadership for Carmival Corporation & plc tn the long and short-term

¢  The Nominating & Governance Comimitteses will maintain onentation programs for new directors
and continuing education programs for all directors

& The boards will conduct an annual performance evaluation to determine whether they, therr
Commuttees and individual directors are functioning effectively
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¢  The non-executive directars will meet at least annually under the direction of the semior independent
director to conduct an appraisal of the Chairman’s performance

s Al shareholders may commumcate with the boards by addressing all communications to the
Secretary, who must forward any tem requinng immediate attentron to the senior independent
non-executive director, who must n turn notify the boards of any matters for discussion or action as
appropnate

Carnival Corporation & plc will continue to monitor governance developments in the UK to ensure a
vigorous and effective corporate governance framework of the highest international standards

Set out below 1s a statement of how Carnival Corporation & plc has applied the principles of Section 1
of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance, issued in 2003 {the “Combined Code”) durning the
financial year ended November 30, 2006

Board composition

Each of the boards of directors is currently compnsed of 15 members five executive directors and
ten non-executive directors Because Mr Lanterman had reached the age of 75, 1n accordance with
the Carnival Corporation & plc Corporate Governance Guidelines, he has not been nominated for re-
election to the boards  As a resuli, following the Apnt 2007 annual general meeting, each of the boards
of directors will be compnised of 14 members, nine of whom will be non-executive directors Al direclors
are required to submit themselves to annual re-election  The biographical details of the members of the
boards {other than Mr Lanterman) are contained in the proxy statement to which this report 1s annexed
All directors have been subject to a formal performance evaluation during the year as described below

Board balance and independence

All of the non-executive directors, with the exception of Mr Lanterman {a former executive director), are
considered by the boards to be independent directors  Messrs Capen, Maidique, Subotnick and Zucker
have been non-executive directors for more than nine years from the date of ther first election to the
board of Carnival Corporation, however notwithstanding thrs, the boards have determined that each of
those directors 1s independent for the fallowing reasons

Consistent with US practice, the boards believe that length of tenure should be one of the factors
considered with respect to the independence of directors, but tenure alone should not result in the loss
of Independence Automatic loss of independence slatus for directors due to tenure would effectively
operate as a term mit for independent directors and result in the loss of the valuable contnbutions of
directors who have been able to develop over ime increasing imsight into Carnival Corporation & ple and
its operations The boards prefer to rely on vigorous annual evaluations of individual directors o review
therr objectivity and independence, as well as therr overall effectiveness as directors  All directors are
also subject to annual re-election by shareholders following individual evaluations and recommendations
by the Nominating & Governance Committees Performance evaluations conducted dunng the year are
descnbed below

The non-executive directors of Carnival Corporation & plc participate in the Amended and Restated
Carnivai Corporation 2001 Qutside Director Stock Plan (the “Outside Director Plan™), details of which are
descnbed in the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report, which 1s attached as Annex B to the proxy
statement The two UK non-executive directors, Baroness Hogg and Sir John Parker, receive restricted
share awards under the Amended and Restated Carmival Corporation 2001 Qutside Director Stock Plan
Two U S non-executive directors, Messrs  Subotmick and Donald elected to receive all or a portion of
therr equity grant in 2006 in the form of restricted shares or restncted stock units  The remaiing non-
executive directors received their equity grants in 2006 in the form of share options  Participation in
stock option plans by non-executive directors 1s a common practice in the US and the boards do not
believe that such participation affects the iIndependence of the participating directors

Stuart Subotnick, the senior independent non-executive director, approves board agendas and meeting
scheduies to ensure the flow of relevant information to the boards Each board member 1s entitled to
suggest the inclusion of items on the agenda and to raise at any board reetings subjects that are not
on the agenda for that meeting




Directors’ indemnities

As at the date of this report, indemnities are in force under which Carnival Corporation & plc have
agreed to indemnify the directors of Carnival Corporation & plc, to the extent permitted by law and
Carmival Corporation’s articles of incorporation and Carnival plc’s articles of association, in respect of all
losses ansing out of, or in connection with, the execution of their powers, duties and responsibilites, as
directors of Carnval plc

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The CEQ of Carmival Corporation & plc, Micky Arison, also serves as Chairman of the boards The
combination of the roles of Chairman and CEQ 1s not compliant with the Combined Code Unlike the
prevailling practice in the UK, a majonty of the Fortune 500 companies inthe U S have chairpersons that
are also the CEO or have other significant relationships with therr comparies beyond board duties The
boards believe that the presence of a majonty of non-executive directors, as well as the requirement that
all Commuttees be compnsed exclusively of non-executive directors, provides an appropnate balance of
power and authonty The role of the senior independent non-executive director also helps to ensure that
power and information are not concentrated in one or two Individuals  As a further measure to enhance
their effectiveness, the non-executive directors meet outside the presence of the executive directors at
least quarterly under the chairmanship of the senior independent non-executive director 1In addition,
the non-executive directors meet penodically with the Chairman of the boards with no other executive
directors present

The boards believe that the separation of the roles of chairman and CEQ 1s best addressed as part of
the succession planning process, and that it 1s in the best interests of Carnival Corporation & plc and
its shareholders for the boards to make an appropnate determination, consulting with shareholders as
appropnate, as and when a new chairman or CEO may be nominated in the future

Board procedures and responsibilities

Meetings of the boards are held on a regular basis to enable the boards to properly discharge therr
responsibiliies  Dunng the financial year ended November 30, 2006, the board of directors of Carnival
plc held a total of nine meetings and acted on one occasion by unamimous wniten consent  All board
meetings dunng the year were attended by the full board with the exception of Messrs Dickinson,
Glasier and Ratcliffe who attended eight of the nine meetings The agenda for each board meeting
1s prepared by the Charman and reviewed and approved by the semior independent non-executive
drrector, in addition to the meeting schedules, and, as descrnibed above, any director can coninbute to
the agenda

Non-executive directors are required to allocate sufficient time to meet the expectations of their role
The consent of the Chairman and the senior independent non-executive director must be sought
before accepting additional directorships that might affect the time a non-executive director of Carnival
Corporation & plc 1s able to devote to that role

Executive directors may not serve as a non-executive board member on more than one FTSE 100 or
Fortune 100 company nor as the Chairman of such a company

Board structures and delegation to management

As set outin the Guidelines, the basic responsibility of the directors 1s to exercise their business judgment
in what they reasonably believe 1o be In the best interests of Carnival plc and its shareholders The
boards have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to them for decision, which includes
the approval of annual and intenm results and financial statements, dvidends, significant changes in
accounting policy, matenal acquisitions and disposals, matenal agreements, major capital expenditure,
annual operating budgets, strategic plans, treasury policy, nsk management policy, matenal changes to
employee incentive schemes as well as approval of share option grants or other share-related benefits,
and health, safety and environmental policies
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Details of the Committees of the boards are set out in the section below In addition, any matters
reserved for the boards that anse between formal board meetings that need to be resoived are delegated
to an executive commitiee, compnsing any two executive directors and a non-executive director  Any
resoluttons made by the executive committee are ratified by the board of directors at the following board
meeting

The strategic management and direction of and significant commercial decisions in relation to global
operations of Carnival Corporation & plc, except to the extent reserved to the full boards under therr
schedule of reserved matters, 1s delegated by the boards to boards of subsidiary companies within the
group and to management commuttees of the boards, which 1n tum delegate to iocal management as
appropriate

Commuttees of the boards

The following Commitiees, which have wniten charters setting out their authonty and duties, copies
of which can be found on Camival Corporation & pic’s website at www carnivalcorp com or www
carnivalple com, have operated throughout the year with the exception of the HESS Committees which
were established effective April 20, 2006 The HESS Committees were formed to focus more tme
and attention to Carnival Corporation & plc's health, environmental, safety and secunty policies and
programs

Auoir CoMMITTEES

Until July 6, 2008, the Audit Committees of the boards were comprised of five Independent non-executive
directors Stuart Subotrick {chairman), Richard G Capen, Jr, Amold W Donald, Sir John Parker and
Richard J Glaser Effective July 6, 2006, Modesto A Maidique joined the Audit Committee and Arnold
W Donald and Sir John Parker resigned Mr Giasier became the chairman and Richard G Capen, Jr
and Stuart Subotnick continued to serve as members Laura Weil was appointed o the Audit Committee
on January 22, 2007 As a result, the Audit Committees are now compnised of five independent non-
executive directors The board of Carnival plc has determuned that Richard J Glaster has “recent and
relevant financial expenence” for the purposes of the Combined Code

The Audit Committees are scheduled to meet at least eight times a year and at other times 1 required,
with a muinimum of four meetings per year as required by the Audit Committees’ charter The Chief
Operating Officer, the Chief Financial and Accounting Officer and the Vice President - Audit Services,
who 1s responsible for internal control and nisk assessment within Carnival Corporation & ple, and the
external auditors normally attend meetings at the invitation of the Audit Committees Duning the year,
12 meetings of the Carmival plc Audit Committee were held, which were atiended by all members of the
Audit Committees

The main role and responsibilities of the Audit Committees are to review the significant nsks or exposures
of Carnival Corporation & ple, the adequacy of internal controls, the quarterly, intenm and annual
consolidated financial statements, any formal announcements relating to the Carnival Corporation
& pic’s performance, the appainiment, replacement, reassignment or dismissal of the head of audit
services, to haise with, and assess the effectiveness and independence of, the external auditors and to
review compliance with the Carrival Corporation & plc Code of Business Conduct and Ethics  The Audit
Commuttees have established and monitor the procedures for receipt of employee complaints regarding
any alleged fraud or violations of law

in fulfiling its responsibilites durning the year, the Audit Committees have

® Reviewed the quarterly, intenm and annual financiat results, including accounting matters and key
factors affecting financial results and future forecasts,

®  Rewviewed financial statement and related disclosures, proposed ilings with the U S Securities and
Exchange Commussion and draft press releases,

* Reviewed the form and content of the financial statements to be presented to shareholders of the
Carnival plc at the half year and at the year end, including the transition to International Financial
Reporting Standards,
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s  Confirmed receipt of certification letters, disclosure controls and procedure checklists and loss
contingency memas from all companies,

e Received bnefings on Carnival Corporation & plc’s Sarbanes-Oxley 404 comphance program,

¢  Rewviewed reporting from the independent auditors concerning the audit work performed, identified
internal control weaknesses and accounting issues, and all relationships between the independent
audrtors and Carmival plc,

®  Reviewed and approved fees for audit and non-audit related services provided by Carnival pic's
independent audrtors,

e Untithe estabiishmentofthe HESS Committees, received quarterly reporting from the Environmental
Comphance group regarding the status of Carnival Corporation & plc's Environmental Compliance
Plan and vessel audiing program, as well as any instances of non-compliance and planned
remedial action,

¢ Recewed reporting, as well as quarterly briefings, from Carnival ple’s Audit Services {“AS™
Depariment concerning results from their internal auditing work  Reporting included significant
findings, any identified control weaknesses and management plans for remedial action,

¢  HRewiewed annual AS company-wide nsk assessment, hustoncal audit coverage and audit plan for
the upcoming year,

¢ Reviewed AS reporting concerning progress against therr audit plan, department staffing and
professional qualifications, and the status of management action plans for previously 1ssued
reports,

¢ Reviewed the status of complaints received through Carmwva! Corporation & ple's third-party
administered hotline and other channels, and

s Rewiewed and approved revisions to the Audit Committee charter and Carnival pic’s Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics

CowmpensaTion COMMITTEES

Until July 6, 2008, the Compensation Committees of the boards were compnsed of three independent
non-executive directors Modesto A Maidique (chairman), RichardJ Glasier and Sir John Parker
Effective July 6, 2008, Arnold W Donald and Baroness Hogg jomed the Compensation Committees
and Modesto A Maidique and Sir John Parker resigned  Mr Donald was appointed as chairman  As
a result, the Compensation Committees continue to be compnsed of three independent non-executive
directors

The Compensation Committees are scheduled to meet at least four tmes a year and at other times as
required Executive directors are invited to attend for appropnate items, but are excluded when therr
own performance and remuneration are under review During the year, six meetings of the Carnival plc
Compensation Committee were held, which were attended by all members with the exception of Mr
Glasier who attended five of the six meetings

The Compensation Committees are responsible for the evaluation and approval of the director and
officer compensation plans, policies and programmes of Carnval Corporation & pic  They annually
review and approve corporate goals and abjectives relevant to the CEO’s compensation and determine
and approve the CEO’s compensation They also annually determine and approve the compensation of
all other executive directors and make recommendations to the boards with respect to the compensation
of all other directors and certain senior officers The Compensation Committees are empowered to
retain any compensation consultant to be used to assist in the evaluation of compensation 1ssues

HESS CommiTTEES

The HESS Committees were established on April 20, 2006 The HESS Committees are comprised of
the foliowing three independent non-executive directors  Sir John Parker (chairman), Arnold W Donald
and Baroness Hogg
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The HESS Comimittees are required to meet at least four times per year as required by the HESS
Committees’ charter Since the formation of the HESS Committees, two meetings of the Carnival plc
HESS Committee were held, which were attended by all members

The principal function of the HESS Commuttees 1s to assist the boards in fulfilling their responsibility to
supervise and menitor Carnival Corporation & plc's health, environmental, safety and secunty policies,
programs, mnittatives at sea and onshore, and comphance with health, environmental, safety and secunty,
legal and regulatory requirements The HESS Committees receive quarterly reporting from the Carnival
Corporation & plc Mantime Policy & Compliance Department regarding the status of Carnival Corporation
& plc's Environmental Compliance Plan and vessel auditing program, as well as any instances of non-
compliance and ptanned remedial action

NominaTiNG & GoveRnaNcE COMMITTEES

Untit July 6, 2006, the Nominating & Governance Committees of the boards were compnsed of three
independent non-executive directors Uz Zucker (chairman), Baroness Hogg and Stuart Subotnick
Effective July 6, 2006, Sir John Parker joined the Nominating & Governance Comrmittees and Baroness
Hogg resigned As a result the Nominating & Governance Committees continue to be compnsed of
three iIndependent non-executive directors

The Nominating & Governance Committees meet penodically as required During the year, four
meetings of the Carnival plc Norminating & Governance Commuttee were held, which were attended by
all members

The pnneipal function of the Norminating & Governance Commuttees 1s to assess and recommend to
the boards candidates for appointment as directors of Carnival Corporation & plc and members of
the Commitlees They are also responsible for establishing procedures to exercise oversight of the
evaluation of the boards and management and the maintenance of onentatton programmes for new
directors, continuing education for all directors and for annually reviewing and reassessing the agequacy
of the Corporate Governance Guidelines and recommending any proposed changes to the boards for
approval

Information and professional development

The Secretary I1s required to ensure that members of the boards are given appropnate documentation
in advance of each meeting and directors are required to devote adequate preparation ime reviewing
documentation ahead of each meeting The Secretary 15 also responsible for adwising the boards
through the Chairrman on all corporate governance matters

All directors have access to advice and services of the Secretary and are permitted to take independent
professional advice, at Carruval Corporation & plc’s expense, as he or she may deem necessary to
discharge his or her responsibilities as a director A director 1s required to inform the senior independent
non-executive director of his or her intention to do so

Directors are offered the opportunity to attend training programmes of their choice

Board performance evaluation

Dunng the year, the Nominating & Governance Committees conducted performance evaluations of the
members of our boards of directors, the boards and therr Committees  The performance review of
Micky Anson, in his role as Chairman, was conducted separately by the non-executive directors, ed by
the senior independent non-executive director, Stuart Subotnick, taking into account the views of the
execulive directors

As part of the boards’ evaluation exercise, each director was required to complete a questionnaire about
the performance of the boards and theirr Committees All questionnaires were reviewed and assessed
by the Norminating & Governance Committees
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In addition, the Nominaiing and Governance Commitiees reviewed the individual performance of each
drrector focusing on his or her contnbution to Carmival Corporation & plc and specifically focusing on
areas of potential improvement  In making their assessment, the Nominating & Governance Committees
reviewed considerations of diversity, age, skills and expenence in the context of the needs of the boards
and with the aim of achieving an appropnate balance on the boards

The Nominating & Governance Committees also discussed and reviewad with non-executive directors
any significant ime commitments they have to other companies in addition, the number of directorships
held by non-executive directors was taken into account, in Iine with Camival plc's pohicy on multiple
appointments

The Nominating & Governance Committees reported the results of the reviews to the boards, concluding
that each director was an effective member of the boards and has sufficient ime to carry out properly
their respective commitments to the boards, Committees and all other such duties as were required
of them 1t s the view of the Nomuinating & Governance Commuttees that the boards continued to
operate effectively durnng the year Accordingly, all current board members are recommended to the
shareholders for election or re-election

During the year the Nominating & Governance Committees also reviewed therr own performance against
therr respective charters by completing queshonnaires that were provided to the Charman  The results
of such reviews were discussed among the members and reported to the boards The boards concluded
that the Nominating & Governance Committees continued to function effectively and continued to meet
the requirements of their respective charters

Directors’ remuneration

The Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report 1s attached as Annex B to the proxy statement to which
this report 15 annexed A resolution to approve the Direclors’ Remuneration Report will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting

Relations with shareholders

The formal channels of communication by which the boards commuricate to shareholders the overall
pertormance of Carnival Corporation & plc are the Annual Reports, UK preliminary announcement and
half year statement, joint Annual Report on Form 10-K, joint Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and joint
Current Reports on Form 8-K, filed with the US Secunties and Exchange Commisston, the proxy
statement and press releases

Senior management of Carnival Corporation & plc meet penodically with representatives of institutional
shareholders to discuss their views and to ensure that the strategies and objectives of Carnival Corporation
& plc are well understood Issues discussed with institutional shareholders include performance,
business strategies and any corporate governance concerns

Presentations are made ic representatives of the investment community penodicaily in the U S | the UK
and elsewhere Results of each fiscal quarter are reviewed with the investment community following
each quarter on conference calls that are broadcast live over the Internet

The boards recerve penodic bnefings from management regarding feedback and iformation obtained
from Carmival Corporation & plc’s shareholders and brokers  During 2008, Carnival Corporation & plc’s
management and tts corporate brokers made presentations to the boards regarding shareholder 1ssues
The boards' members were also provided copies of reports prepared by key market analysts

Shareholders will have the opportunity at the forthcoming annual general meeting, notice of which 1s
contained in the proxy statement to which this report 1s annexed, to put questions to the boards, including
the Chairmen of the Commitiees of the boards

The boards have implemented procedures to facilitate communications between shareholders and the
boards Shareholders who wish to communicate with the boards should address their communications
to the attention of the Company Secretary of Carnival Corporation & plc at 3655 NW 87th Avenue,
Miarmy, Flonda 33178-2428 US A The Secretary maintains a log of all such communications and
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promptly forwards to the senior independent non-executive director, Stuart Subotnick, those, which the
Secretary believes, require iImmediate attention, and also penodically provides the seruor independent
non-executive director with a summary of alf such communications and any responsive action taken The
senor Independent non-executive director notifies the boards or the Charman of the relevant Committees
of the boards of those matters that he believes are approprate for further action or discussion

Interested parties who wish to communicate with the senior independent non-executive director should
address therr communications to the attention of Stuart Subotrick at 3655 NW 87th Avenue, Miamy,
Flonda 33178-2428 U S A

Annual meetings of shareholders

As we have shareholders in both the UK and the U S, we rotate the location of the annual meetngs
between the UK and the US each year in order to accommodate shareholders on both sides of the
Atlantic Last year we held our annual meetings in Miami, Flonida, and this year we will be holding them
in Southampton, Umited Kingdom

This year the annual meetings will be held at the Southampton Guildhall, West Marlands Road, Civic
Center, Southampton, Hants S014 7LP, United Kingdom on April 16, 2007 The meetings will commence
at 300 pm (UK time), and although techrically two separate meetings (the Carnival plc meeting will
begin first), shareholders of Carnival Corporation may attend the Carnival pic meeting and vice-versa

We are also offenng an audio webcast of the annual meetings  If you choose to listen to the webcast, go
to our website, www carnivalcorp com or www carnivalple com, shortly before the start of the meetings
and follow the instructions provided

Directors’ responsibility

The statement of directors’ responstbilittes in relation to the Carnival plc financial statements follows the
Carnival plc Directors’ Report in Annex A of the proxy statement

Independence of auditors

The Audit Committees are responsible for engaging a firm of auditors of appropnate independence
and experience and for the approval of all audit and non-audit fees and terms  The policy of the Audit
Committees 1s to undertake a formal assessment of the auditors’ independence each year, which
Includes

& areview of non-audit services provided and related fees,

e  discussion with the auditors of a written report detailing all relationships with Carmival Corporahion
& ple and any other party that could affect the independence or the objectivity of the auditors, and

¢  evaluation with the boards of the performance of the independent auditors

The Audit Committees have impliemented procedures relating to the provision of services by Carnival
Corporation & plc’s independent auditors  These include

s requinng the pre-approval by the Audit Commitees of all audit and permissible non-audit
services,

. mainienance of a schedule of certain non-audit services, including consultancy, investment banking
and legal services, which Carnival Corporation & plc 1s specifically prohibited from obtaining from
its audit firm, and

e  procedures which control, and In certain circumstances, protubit, the recruitment of staff formerly
employed by the external audit firm and involved in the audit of Carmival Corporation & ple

An analysss of the fees payable to the external audit firm in respect of both audit and non-audit services
during 2006 and the policy on audit committee pre-approval and permissible non-audit work of the
independent auditors 15 set out in the proxy statement under the heading “Independent Registered
Certified Public Accounting Firm”
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Going concern

On the basis of current financial forecasts and available borrowing facilthes, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that Carnival Corporation & plc has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and, accordingly, consider that it 1s appropnate to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the consohdated financial statements of Camival plc

Internal control and nsk management

Internal control and nsk management within Carruval Corporation & plc’s bustness units 1s an ongoing
process embedded n each of the operations It 1s designed to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant nsks faced by the urits A system of internal controls designed to be capable of responding
quickly to evolving rnisks in the business has been established, compnsing procedures for the prompt
reporting of matenal internal control weaknesses and significant deficiencies together with the appropnate
corrective action

Carnival Corporation & plc has adopted the Committee of Sponsonng Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (*COS0") guidance for implementing its internal control framework as part of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act Section 404 comphance plan COSO is considered to be the model internal control framework
and references the same internal control objectives and components as are used by the Turnbull
Guidance which assists UK boards in assessing the efiectiveness of a company’s nsk and control
processes under the Combined Code

The corporate executive management team receives penodic information regarding internal control
Issues arising at the business units  The pnimary focus of this aspect of the system 1s the corporate AS
Department that 1s responsible for monitoring the process, ensuning that issues common to more than
one business unit are identified and that all relevant matters are brought to the attention of the boards
as a whole The AS Department i1s supported by the corporate finance and legal groups, as well as the
CEOQ, Chief Operating Officer and the Chief Financial and Accounting Officer (the “Certifying Officers”)
The Certifying Officers are required by rules of the US Secunties and Exchange Commission to file
written certifications on a quarterly basis certifying, among other items, that they have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee all significant defictencies and matenal weaknesses i the design
or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
Carnival Corporation & pic’s ability to record, process, summarnize and report financial information and
any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in Carnwal Corporation & plc's internal control over financial reporting

In the UK, the directors of Carnival Corporation & plc are responsible for the Carnival Corporation & plc
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness but recognise that any such system can
provide only reasonable and not absclute, assurance against material misstatement or loss  The Audit
Committees review the adequacy of internal controls within Carnival Corporation & plc on an annual
basis m accordance with the framework of internal control as set forth by COSO and mirrored within the
Turnbull Guidance and in accordance with the charter of the Audit Committees

The system of internal control was in place throughout the year and has continued in place up to the date
of approval of this report  The system I1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of failure to
achieve bustness objectives The boards confirm that they have performed their annual review of its
effectiveness and that it 1s in comphance with the Turnbull Guidance

Statement of compliance with the Combined Code issued in 2003

Carnival Corporation & plc has comphed with the provisions set out In Section 1 of the Combined Code
throughout the year ended November 30, 2008, with the following exceptions

e the joint role of the Charrman and CEQ and independence of non-executive directors as explained
above,

e there are no performance condihons attaching to substantially all of the equity-based awards,

. certain non-executive directors recerve share options,
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e annual bonuses of US executive directors form part of their pensionable salary,
e 1o upper hmits are attached to annual bonuses, and

&  share incentives may vest in fewer than three years

The above matters of non-compliance, with the exception of the joint role of the Chairman and CEO
and independence of non-executive directors, are explained in the Carmival pic Directors’ Remuneration
Report attached as Annex B to the proxy statement
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CARNIVAL

PLC

IFRS Summary Financial Statement
(excluding Directors’ Report and
Directors’ Remuneration Report)

Year ended November 30, 2006

Registered number 4039524

The standalone Carnival plc consolidated IFRS Summary Financial Statement 1s required to satisfy
statutory reporting requirements in the UK and does not include the results of Carnival Corporation
However, the directors consider that within the DLC arrangement the most appropriate presentation
of Carnival plc's results and financral position 1s by reference to the U S GAAP financial statements
of Carnival Corporation & plc, which is included in the consohdated Carnival Corporation & plc 2006
Annual Report that accompanies this document




The Summary Financial Statement does not give all the information needed to gain as full an
understanding of the results and state of affairs of the Carruval pic group (being Carnival plc and its
subsichary undertakings) as the full Carnival ple UK Annual Report and Accounts To receive a free
copy of the full Carnival plc Annual Report and Accounts which consists of the Proxy Statement
(which includes the Directors’ Report and Directors’ Remuneration Report), the Carrival Corporation
& plc 2006 Annual Report and the Carnival ple 2006 financial statements for this or future years,
please contact our registrar, detatls of which can be found on page 48 of the Carnival Corporation &
plc 2006 Annual Report The Carnwal plc group standalone financial information excludes the results
of Carnival Corporation and 15 prepared under applicable international financial reporting standards,
whereas the Carnival Corporation & ple financial statements include the results of Carnival Corporation
and Carnival plc prepared under US GAAP




Carnival plc

Summary Financial Statement

The Summary Financial Statement of Carnival plc comprises the informalion on pages 1 to 4
heretn together with the Directors’ Repaort in Annex A to the Proxy Statement and Part | and Part Il
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report also within the Proxy Statement

Summary Group income statements

Twelve months to  Twelve months to

Nov 30, 2006 Nov 30, 2005
Us $m US Sm
Revenues 4,375 1 41010
Costs and expenses
QOperating
Cruise
Commussions, transportation and other 7046 6012
Onboard and other 1737 177 6
Payroll and related 3850 388 1
Fuel 3153 2387
Food 204 1 2027
OCther ship operating 606 8 5870
Other 263 4 226 4
Total 26529 25117
Selling and administrative 546 7 5805
Depreciation and amortisation 3406 3353
3,540 2 3,4275
Operating Income 834 9 6735
Interest income i51 17
Interest expense, net of capitalised interest (112 5) {132 5)
Other income {expense), net 54 {47)
(92 0) {125 5)
Income hefore iIncome taxes 7429 548 0
Income tax benelit (expense}, net 18 (23 9)
Net income 744 7 524 1
Carnival plc standalone earnings per share (iIn US dollars)
Basic 350 247
Diluted 349 248
Dividend per share 1025 0 800

See accompanying notes to the Summary Financial Statement

Within the DLC structure the most appropnate presentation of Carmival plc’s results and financial
posihion 18 considered to be by reference to the U S GAAP consoldated financial statements of
Carmiva! Corporation & pic, which are included within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual
Report (see note 1} For information, we set out below the U S GAAP consolidated earnings per
share included within the Carnival Corporation & plc consolidated financial statements for the
twelve months ended November 30, 2006 and 2005 (in U S dollars)

DLC Basic earnings per share 2006 285 2005 280
DLC Diluted earnings per share 2006 277 2005 270




Carmival plc

Summary Group balance sheets

As at As at
Nov 30,2006 Nov 30, 2005

Ussm USsm
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,049 9 7780
Trade and other receivables, net 2101 2428
Inventories 103 4 1025
Prepaid expenses and other 1277 1194
Total current assets 1,491 1 1,2427
Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net 8,0955 6,901 4
Goodwill 747 0 692 4
Other assets 1258 826
Total assets 10,458 4 8,918 1
Liabiities and shareholders’ equity
Current habihities
Short-term debt 4125 1,269 9
Amounts owed to Carnival Corporation 2098 2971
Accounts payable 1759 2304
Accrued liabilihes and other 3722 3745
Customer deposits 7180 6217
Total current liabilities 1,888 4 2,793 6
Non-current habihties
Long-term debt 2,876 3 1,516 5
Other long-term habilities and deferred income 2199 1792

4,084 6 4,489 3

Shareholders’ equity

Ordinary shares 3837 3529
Share premium 919 756
Retained earnings 3,448 8 28927
Other reserves 1,580 4 1,108 6
Total shareholders’ equity 5,474 8 44298

10,4594 8,916 1

See accompanying notes to the Summary Financial Statement

Approved by the board of directors on February 20, 2007 and signed on its behalf by
Micky Arison
Howard S Frank

Within the DLC structure the rmost appropnate presentation of Carnival pic’s results and financial
position 1s considered to be by reference to the US GAAP consolidaled financial statements of
Carnival Corporation & plc, which are included within the Carnival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual
Report (see note 1)




Carnival plc

Notes to the Summary Financial Statement

1 Basis of preparation

From December 1, 2005, the Group 15 required to prepare its financial statements i accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union and
implemented in the UK Prior to that date the results were prepared under UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles As the 2006 Financial Staternents include comparatives for 2005, the Group’s
date of transition to IFRS 1s December 1, 2004, the 2005 comparatives are restated to IFRS

Carmval Corporation and Carnival plc operate a dual isted company (“OLC"), whereby the businesses
of Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc are combined through a number of contracts and through
provistons In Carmival Corporation’s articles of incorporatton and by-laws and Carnival plc's
memorandum of association and articles of association Although the two companies have retained
their separate legal Wdentities they operate as if they were a single economic enterprise Each
company’s shares continue to be publicly traded, on the New York Stock Exchange (*"NYSE") for
Carnwal Corporation and the London Stock Exchange for Carmival plc In addition, Carnival ple
American Depository Shares are traded on the NYSE The contracts governing the DLC structure
provide that Carnival Corporation and Carnival pic each continue to have separate hoards of
directors, but the boards and semor execulive management of both companies are identical Under
the contracts governing the DLC the Carnival Corporation & plc consohdated earnings accrue
equally to each unit of Carnival Corporation stock and each Carnival plc share

In order to provide the Carnival Corporation and Carnival ple shareholders with the most meaningful
picture of their economic interest In the DLC formed by Carnival Corporatton and Carnival ple,
consolidated financial statements and management commentary of Carnival Corporation & plc
have been included in the Carmival Corporation & plc 2006 Annual Report The consclidated
Carnival Corporation & plc financial statements have been prepared under US GAAP on the
basis that all significant financial and operating decisions affecting the DLC companies are taken
on the basis of U S GAAP information and consequences

The standalone Carnival plc consolidated IFRS Summary Financial Statement is required to satisfy
statutory reporting requirements in the UK and does not include the results or shareholders’ equity
of Carnival Corporation However, the directors consider that withan the DLC arrangement the most
appropnate presentation of Carnival ple’s results and financial position 1s by reference to the U S
GAAP consolidated financial statements of Carmival Corporation & ple, which are included in the
Carnwval Corporation & ple 2006 Annual Report that accompanies this document

Carnwval ple operates cruise ships and North American related landside assets under various
brand names as follows Costa, Cunard, P&QO Cruises, Swan Hellenic, Ocean Village and AIDA
Cruises in Europe, P&0O Cruises (Australia) in Australia and New Zealand and Holland America
Tours and Princess Tours in North America

2 Reclassification of prior year amounts

Durning 2006 Carnival Corporation & pic adopted a new global chart of accounts in connection with
the implementation of a new worldwide accounting system As a result of moving to a common
char of accounts certain pricr penod amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
penod presentation The principal effect on the previously reported IFRS resulls for the year ended
November 30, 2005 was to reduce revenue by $251 2m, reduce operating costs by $250 Om and
reduce interest and other costs by $1 2m




Carnival plc

Notes to the Summary Financial Statement

3 Dry-dock costs

During 2006 Carnival plc elected to change its accounting policy relating to dry-dock costs,
primanly compnsing ptanned major maintenance activities, so as to conform with that of Carnival
Corporation The Group’s previous accounting policy was to defer the cost of these dry-dock
activities, and expense them over the estimated penod of benefit, generally twelve months or in
some Instances the period 1o the next scheduled dry-dock, which can be up to thuty months The
costs incurred duning the course of a dry-dock are now immediately written off to prolit and loss
Capital expenditures incurred during a dry-dock continue io be capitalised as ship improvements
on a component basis and depreciated over ther estimated useful lives, with the estimated net
book value of assets being replaced wntten off

The effect of Immediately recognising dry-dock costs 1s to reduce current assets at November
2005 by $47 5m with a corresponding reduction in shareholders’ equity Nel income for the year
ended November 30, 2005 was reduced by $8 5m




Independent auditors’ statement to the members of Carnval plc

We have examined the Summary Financial Statement of Garnival plc as defined on page 1

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Summary Financial Statement in accordance with
Uruted Kingdom law

Qur responsibility 1s to report o you our opinion on the consistency of the Summary Financial
Statement with the full annual financial statements, the Directors' Report and the Directors’
Rermuneration Report, and its compliance with the relevant requirements of Section 251 of the
United Kingdom Companies Act 1985 and the regulations made thereunder

We also read the other information contained in the Proxy Statement and the Carnival Corporation
& plc 2006 Annual Report and consider the implications for our report If we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Summary Financial Statement

This statement, including the opiion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members
as a body in accordance with Section 251 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose
We do not, In giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpese or to any
other person to whom this staternent 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work In accordance with Bulletin 1989/6, “The auditors’ statement on the
summary financial statement” 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board Our reports on the company’s
{full financial statements describe the basis of our audit opinions on those financial statements and
the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Opimion

In our opimon the Summary Financial Statement 1s consistent with the full annual financial statements,
the Directors' Report and the Directors” Remuneration Report of Carnival plc for the year ended
November 30, 2006 and complies with the applicable requirements of Section 251 of the Compantes
Act 1985 and the regulations made thereunder

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

20 February 2007

The audiiors’ report on the full financial statements for the year ended November 30, 2006 was
ungualified and did not include a statement under Section 237 (2) (accounting records or returns
inadequate or accounts not agreeing with records and returns) or Section 237 (3) (falure to obtain
necessary information and explanations) of the Companies Act 1985

The mantenance and integnty of the publication of the Carnival plc financial statements on the Camival websites
is the responsibility of the Company, the work camed out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were imtially presented on the website

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of iinancial statements may
differ from legistation in other junsdictions




CARNIVAL

CORPORATION

February 20, 2007

MICKY ARISON
Chairman of the Boards
Chief Executive Officer

To our Shareholders

On behalf of the boards of directors of each of Carnival Corporation and Camival plc, it 1s my pleasure
to invite you to attend our joint annual meetings of shareholders The annual meetings will be held at
The Southampton Guildhall, Southampton, United Kingdom on Monday, April 16, 2007 The meetings
will commence at 300 pm (UK ime), and although there are technically two separate meetings (the
Carnival plc meeting will begin first), shareholders of Carnival Corporation may attend the Carnival ple
meeting and vice-versa Because we have shareholders in both the United Kingdom and the United
States, we plan to continue to rotate the location of the annual meetings between the United States and
the United Kingdom each year in order to accommaodate shareholders on both sides of the Atlantic

We are also offering an audio web cast of the annual meetings  If you choose to Iisten to the web
cast, go to our website at www carnivalcorp com or www carmivalple com, shortly before the start of the
meetings and follow the instructions provided We will also be hosting an audio broadcast of the annual
meetings at our headquarters located at 3855 N W 87" Avenue, Miam, Florida  Although shareholders
will not be able to vote in Miami (they must submit a proxy to vote), they will be able to submit questions
to the directors in Southampton

You will find information regarding the matters to be voted on int the attached notices of annual meetings
of shareholders and proxy statement The Carnival Corporation Notice of Annual Meeting begins
on page 1 and the Carnival plc Notice of Annual General Meeting begins on page 3. Because of
the DLC structure, all voting will take place on a poll (or ballot)

We are also pleased to offer our shareholders the opportunity to electronically recewve future proxy
statements and annual reports over the internet By using these services, you are not only accessing
these matenals more quickly than ever before, but you will also help us reduce printing and postage
costs assoctated with their distribution as well as help preserve the earth’s valuable resources

Your vote 1s important  Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meetings in person, piease submit
your vote using one of the voting methods described in the attached materials  Submitting your veting
instructions by any of these methods will not affect your nght to attend the meetings in person should
you so choose

The boards of directors consider Carnival Corporation Proposals 1-9 (being Carnwal pic
Resolutions 1-22) to be in the best interests of Carnival Corporation & plc and the sharehoiders
as a whole Accordingly, the boards of directors unanimously recommend that you cast your
vote “FOR” Carnival Corporation Proposals 1-9 (being Carnival plc Resolutions 1-22).

Thank you for your ongoing support of, and continued interest in, Carnival Corporation & ple

Sincerely,

Micky Arison
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CARNIVAL

CORPORATION

3655 N W, 87" Avenue
Miami, Florida 33178

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF CARNIVAL CORPORATION SHAREHOLDERS

DATE
TIME

PLACE

WERB CAST
iITEMS OF BUSINESS

Monday, April 16, 2007
300pm (UK time), being 1000 a m (Miami time)

The Carnwval Corporation annual meeting will start directly following the annual
general meeting of Carnival pic

Southampton Guildhall

West Marlands Road

Civic Center

Southampton, Hants S014 7LP
United Kingdom

www carnivalcorp com or www carnwalplc com

1

To elect or re-elect 14 directors to the boards of each of Carmival Corporation
and Carnwval ple,

To re-appoint the independent auditors for Carnival pic and to ratfy the
selection of the independent registered certified public accounting firm for
Carnival Corporation,

To authonze the Audit Committee of Carnival plc to agree the remuneration
of the independent audrtors,

To receive the UK accounts and reports for Camival plc for the financial
year ended November 30, 2006 (in accordance with legal requirements
applicable to UK companies),

To approve the directors’ remuneration report of Carnival plc (in accordance
with legal requirements applicable to UK companies),

To approve mits on the authonty to allct shares by Camival pic {in
accordance with customary practice for UK companies),

To approve the disapplication of pre-emption nights for Carnival plc shares
{in accordance with customary practice for UK companies),

To approve a general authonty for Carnmival plc to buy back Carnival plc
ordinary shares in the open market (in accordance with legal requirements
apphcable to UK companies desinng to implement share buy back
programs),

To approve electronic commuricatons with Carnival plc shareholders (in
accordance with legal requirements applicable to UK compantes), and

10 To transact such other business as may properly come before the

meeting




RECORD DATE

MEETING ADMISSION

VOTING BY PROXY

You are entitled to vote your Carnival Corporation shares if you were a
shareholder at the close of business on February 16, 2007

Attendance at the meeting s limited to shareholders Each Carnivai
Corporation shareholder may be asked to present valid picture rdentification,
such as a driver’s license or passport Shareholders holding shares in
brokerage accounts (“under a street name”) will need to bring a copy of a
brokerage statement reflecting share ownership as of the record date

Please submit a proxy as soon as passible so that your shares can be
voted at the meeting in accordance with your instructions For specific
Instructions, please refer to the Questions and Answers begining on page
8 of this proxy statement and the mnstructions on your proxy card

On behalf of the Board of Directors

ARNALDO PEREZ
Semor Vice President,
General Counsel & Secretary

A proxy staternent and proxy card are enclosed All Carnival Corporation shareholders are urged to
follow the instructions attached to the proxy card and complete, sign, date and mail the proxy card
promptly The enclosed envelope for retumn of the proxy card requires no postage Any shareholder
attending the meeting in Southampton, United Kingdom may personally vote an all matters that are
considered, in which event the signed proxy will be revoked

This proxy statement and accompanying proxy card are being distributed on or about March 9, 2007




THIS NCTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 1S IMPORTANT {F YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT ASTO
THE ACTION YOU SHOULD TAKE, YOU IMMEDIATELY SHOULD CONSULT YOUR STOCKBROKER,
BANK MANAGER, SOLICITOR, ACCOUNTANT OR OTHER INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL ADVISER
AUTHORIZED UNDER THE UK FINANCIAL SERVICES AND MARKETS ACT 2000

IF YOU HAVE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ALL YOUR SHARES IN CARNIVAL PLC,
PLEASE SEND THIS DOCUMENT AND THE ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS TO THE PURCHASER
OR TRANSFEREE OR TO THE STOCKBROKER, BEANK OR OTHER AGENT THROUGH WHOM
THE SALE OR TRANSFER WAS EFFECTED FOR TRANMSMISSION TO THE PURCHASER OR
TRANSFEREE

CARNIVAL

PLC
Carnival House
5 Gamnsford Street
London SE1 2NE
United Kingdom

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF CARNIVAL PLC SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Carnival plc will be held at
The Southampton Guildhall, West Marlands Road, Civic Center, Southampton, Hants S014 7LP, United
Kingdom on Monday, April 16, 2007 at 300 pm (UK time), being 1000 am (Miami time), for the
purpose of considenng and, if thought fit, passing the resolutions described below

¢ Resolutons 1 through 19 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions For crdinary resolutions,
the required majority 15 more than 50% of the combined votes cast at this meefing and Carnival
Corporation’s annual meeting

¢ Resolutions 20 through 22 will be proposed as special resolutions For special resolutions, the
required majority 1s not less than 75% of the combined votes cast at this meeting and Carnival
Corporation’s annual meeting

To consider the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:
Re-election of directors

To re-elect Micky Anison as a director of Camrval Corporation and as a director of Carnival ple

2  To re-elect Ambassador Richard G Capen, Jr as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a
director of Carnival pic

3 Tore-elect Robert H Dickinson as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnival

plc

4  To re-elect Arnold W Donald as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnival
plc

5 To re-elect Pier Luigi Foschi as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnival
plc

6 To re-elect Howard S Frank as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnival
pic

7  To re-elect Richard J Glasier as a director of Carnval Corporation and as a director of Camival
plc




To re-elect Baroness Hogg as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnval plc

To re-elect Modesto A Maidique as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnival
plc
10 To re-elect Sir John Parker as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnival plc

11 To re-elect Peter G Ratchffe as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Camtval
plc

12 To re-elect Stuart Subotimick as a director of Carnival Corporation and as a director of Carnival
plc

13 To elect Laura Well as a director of Carrival Corporation and as a director of Carnival ple

14 To re-elect Uzt Zucker as a director of Carnival Cerporation and as a director of Carmival plc

Re-appointment and remuneration of Carnival plc auditors and ratification of Carnival
Corporation auditors

15 To re-appoint the UK firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditors of Carnival
plc for the peniod commencing upon the conclusion of the meeting until the conclusion of the next
general meeting at which the accounts of Carnival plc are laid and to ratify the selection of the U S
firm of PnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent registered certified public accounting
firm of Carnival Corporation for the period commencing upon the conclusion of the meeting until
the conclusion of the next annual meeting of Carnival Corporation after the date on which this
resolution 1s passed

16 To authonze the Audit Committee of the board of directors of Carnival plc to agree the remuneration
of the independent auditors

Accounts and Reports

17 To receive the UK accounts and the reports of the directors and auditors of Carnival pic for the
financial year ended November 30, 2006

Directors’ remuneration report

18 To approve the directors’ remuneration report of Carmival plc as set out in the annual report for the
financial year ended November 30, 2006

Allotment of shares

19 THAT the authonty and power conferred on the directors by Article 30 of Carrival plc's articles of
association be renewed for a period commencing at the end of the meeting and expinng at the end
of the next annual general meeting of Carnival pic after the date on which this resolution 1s passed
and for that penod the Section 80 amount shall be $21,239,657

To consider the following resolutions as special resolutions
Disapplication of pre-emption rights

20 THAT subject to passing ordinary resolutton 19 set out i the notice, the power conferred on the
directors by Article 31 of Carnival pic's articles of association be renewed for a period commencing
at the end of the meeting and expiring at the end of the next annual general meeting of Carmval plc
after the date on which this resolution 1s passed and for that penod the Section 89 armount shall be
$17,688,017




General authority to buy back Carmval plc ordinary shares

21 THAT Camval plc be and 1s generally and unconditionally authonized to make market purchases
{(within the meaning of Section 163(3) of the UK Companies Act 1985 (the “Comparies Act 1985")
of ordinary shares of $1 66 each in the capital of Carnival plc provided that

(8) the maximum number of ordinary shares authonzed to be acquired 15 10,655,432,
(by the muwmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share i1s $1 66,

() the maximum price which may be pard for an ordinary share 1s an amount (exclusive of
expenses) equal to 105% of the average middle market quotation for an ordinary share, as
denved from the London Stock Exchange (“LSE") Daily Official List, for the five business days
immediately preceding the day on which such ordinary share 1s contracted to be purchased,
and

(d) this authonty shall expire on the earher of (1) the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
Carnival plc to be held in 2008 and (1} 18 months from the date of this resolution {except in
relation to the purchase of ordinary shares, the contract of which was entered into before the
expiry of such authority)

Electronic Communications with Carnival plc Shareholders

22 THAT Carnival plc may send or supply any document or information that 1s required or authorized
to be sent or supplhed to a shareholder or any other person by Carnival plc by a prowision of the
Companies Acts (as defined in section 2 of the UK Companies Act 2006 (the “Companies Act
20086"), or pursuant to Carnival pic's articles of association or to any other rules or regulations
to which Carnival plc may be subject, by making it avallable on a website, and the provisions of
Schedule 5 to the Companies Act 2006 shall apply whether or not any document or information
1s required or authonized to be sent by the Companies Acts, Carmval plc’s articles of association
or any other rules or regulations to which Carnival plc may be subject and this resolution shall
supersede any provision In Carnival pic's articles of association to the extent that it 1s inconsistent
with this resolution

By Order of the Board Registered Office

Carnival House

5 Gainsford Street

London SEtT 2NE
- United Kingdom

Registered Number 4039524

Arnaldo Perez
Company Secretary

February 20, 2007




Voting Arrangements for Carnival ple Shareholders

Carnival plc shareholders can vote in either of two ways

* by aitending the meeting and votingn person or by attorney or, in the case of corporate shareholders,
by corporate representatives, or

* by appointing a proxy to attend and vote on their behalf, using the proxy form enclosed with this
notice of annua! general meeting

Voting 1n person (or by attorney)

If you come to the annual general mesting, please bring the attendance card (attached to the enclosed
proxy form) with you This will mean you can register more quickly 1If you appaint an attorney to attend
instead of you, he or she should bnng an onginal or certified copy of the power of attorney under which
you have authornized them to attend and vote

In order to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, a corporate shareholder may appont an
individual to act as its representative The appointment must comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1985 The representative should bring evidence of their appointment, including any
authonty under which itis signed, to the meeting [f you are a corporation and are considering appointing
a corporate representative to represent you and vote your shareholding in Carnival plc at the annual
general meeting you are strongly encouraged to pre-register your corporate representative to make
registration on the day of the meeting more efficient In order to pre-register, please fax your Letter
of Representation to Carnival plc's registrar, Lloyds TSB Registrars, on 01903 833168 from within the
United Kingdom or +44 1903 833168 from elsewhere

Voting by proxy

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 1s entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
aftend and (on a polf) vote n his or her stead A proxy need not be a shareholder of Carnival plc

To be effective, a duly completed proxy form and the authonty (if any) under which 1t 1s signed, or a
notanally certiied copy of such authonty, must be deposited (whether delivered personally or by post) at
the offices of Carnival plc’s registrars, Lioyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex,
BNI9 6AN, United Kingdom as soon as possible and 1n any event no later than 300 pm (UK time)
on Apnl 14, 2007 Altematively, a proxy vote may be submitted via the internet in accordance with the
instructions set out on the proxy form

In the case of joint registered holders, the signature of one holder on a proxy card will be accepted and
the vote of the senior holder who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to
the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders For this purpose, senionty shall be determined by
the order in which names stand on the register of sharehoiders of Carnival plc in respect of the relevant
Jjoint holding

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service 10 be vald, the appropnate
CREST message (a “CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with
CRESTCo’s specifications and must contain the information required for such instructions, as described
in the CREST Manual The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy
or an amendment to the Instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be vald, be
transmitted so as to be received by the 1ssuer’s agent (ID 7RA01) by the latest tme(s) for receipt of proxy
appointments specified in the notice of meeting For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be
the time (as determined by the imestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from
which the 1ssuer’s agent 1s able to retneve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescrbed
by CREST After this ime any change of instructions to proxies appomted through CREST should be
communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where appicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note
that CRESTCo does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages
Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy




instructions 1t 1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member
1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), 1o
procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary
to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time  in this
connechon, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voing service providers
are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning prachcal mitations of the
CREST systern and timings

Carnival plc may treat as invahid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation
35(5)(a) of the Uncertficated Secunties Regulahons 2001

Shareholders who are entitled to vote

Carnival ple, pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001, specifies that
only those shareholders registered in the reqister of members of Carnival plc at 1100 pm on Apr 14,
2007 shall be entitted to attend or vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares reqistered in
thewr name at that time Changes to the entnies on the register of members after 1100 pm on April 14,
2007 shall be disregarded n determining the nghts of any person 1o atiend or vote at the meeting

Documents available for inspection

Caoptes of the following documents will be availlable for inspection durning normal business hours on any
weekday (public holidays exciuded) at the registered office of Carnival plc from the date of this notice
untit and including the date of the meeting and at the place of the meeting for at least 15 minutes pnor
to and during the meeting

¢  the register of interests ot directors in the share capital of Carnival ple, and

¢ copes of all service agreements (including letters of appointment) between each director and
Carnwal plc

There are 22 Resolubons that require shareholder approval at the annual meeting this year The
directors unammously recommend that you vote in favor of Resolutions 1-22 (inclusive), and encourage
you to submit your vote using one of the voting methods described herein  Submitting your voting
instructions by any of these methods will not affect your nght to attend the meeting in person should you
s0 choose




QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
ABOUT THE PROXY MATERIALS AND THE ANNUAL MEETINGS

Q Why am | receiving these materials?

A

The board of directors of each of Carnival
Corporatton and Carnival plc (together,
“Carruwval Corporation & plc,” “we” or “us”)
15 providing these proxy matenals to you In
connection with our joint annual meetings
of shareholders on Monday, April 16, 2007
The annual meetings will be held at The
Southampton Guildhall, West Marlands
Road, Civic Center, Southampton, Hants
$014 7LP, United Kingdom The meetings
will commence at 300 pm (UK time), and
although techrucally two separate meetings
{the Carnival plc meeting will begin first),
shareholders of Carnival Corporation may
attend the Carmival plc meeting and vice-
versa For our US shareholders, we
will be hosting a live audio broadcast of
the annual meeting at our headquarters
located at 3655 NW 87" Avenue, Miami,
Flonda 33178 Shareholders in Miami will
be able to submit questions to the directors
in Southampton, but will not be able to vote
at that meeting

What information is contained in these
materials?

The nformation included In this proxy
statement relates to the proposals to
be voted on at the meetings, the voting
process, the compensation of directors and
our most highly paid executive officers and
certan other information required by U S
Secunties and Exchange Commussion rules
applicable to both companies We have
attached as Annexes A, B and C to this
proxy statement information that Carnival
plc s required to provide to its shareholders
under applicable UK rules

What proposals wiil be voted on at each
of the meetings?

The proposals to be voted on at each of
the meetings are set out In the notices of
meetings starting on pages 1 and 3 of this
proxy statement

What 1s the voting recommendation of
the boards of directors?

A.

Your boards of directors recommen that you
vote “FOR™ all of the proposals descnbed In
this proxy statement

How does the DLC structure affect my
voting rights?

On most matters that affect all of the
shareholders of Carnival Corporation and
Carnival plc, the shareholders of both
companigs effeciively vole together as
a single decision-making body  These
matters are called “joint electorate actions "
Combined voting 15 accomphshed through
the special voting shares that have been
issued by each company Certain matters
specifled in the organizational documents
of Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc
where the interesis of the two shareholder
bodies may diverge are called “class nghts
actions” These class nghts actions are
voted on separatefy by the shareholders
of each company If either group of
shareholders does not approve a class
nghts action, that action generally cannot
be taken by either company Al of the
proposals to be voted on at these annual
meetings are joint electorate actions, and
there are no class nghts actions

Generally,whatactionsarejointelectorate
actions?

Any resolution 1o approve an action other
than a class nghts action or a procedural
resolution (described below) 1s designated
as a joint electorate achon The actions
designated as joint electorate actions
include

¢ the appontment, removal, election or
re-election of any director of either or
both companies,

e |f required by law, the receipt or
adoption of the annual accounts of
both companes,

e the appointment or removal of
the independent auditors of either
company,

® 2 change of name by either or both
companies, or




o the implementation of a mandatory
exchange of Carnival plc shares for
Carnival Corporation shares based
on a change in tax laws, rules or
regulations

The relative voting nghts of Carnwval ple
shares and Carnival Corporation shares
are equalized based on a rato which we
refer to as the “equalization rato” Based
on the current equalization ratio of 1 1, each
Carmval Corporation share has the same
voting nghts as one Carrval plc share on
joint electorate actions

How are joint electorate actions voled
on?

Joint electorate actions are voted on as
follows

e  Carnval plc shareholders vote at the
annual general meeting of Carnival plc
(whether in person or by proxy) Voting
1s on a poll {or ballot) which remains
open for sufficient time to allow the
vote at the Carmival Corporation
meeting to be held and reflected In
the Carnival plc meeting through
the mechanism of the special voting
share An equivalent vote I1s cast at
the subsequent Carnival Corporation
meeting on each of the corresponding
resolutions through a special voting
share 1ssued by Carnival Corporation,
and

e Carnwval Corporaton shareholders
vate at the Carnival Corporation
annual meeting {(whether in person or
by proxy) Voting 1s by ballot (or on a
poll) which remains open for sufficient
time to allow the vote at the Carnival
plc meeting to be held and reflected
in the Carnival Corporation meeting
through the mechanism of the special
voting share  An equivalent vote 1s
cast on the corresponding resolutions
at the Carnival plc meeting through a
special voting share 1ssued by Carnival

ple

A joint electorate action ts approved if it s
approved by

e asimplemajonty of the votes castinthe
case of an ordinary resolution (or not
less than 75% of the votes cast in the
case of a special resolution If required
by apphcable law and regulations or
Carnwval plc's articles) by the holders
of Carnival plc’s shares and the holder
of the Carnival plc special voling share
as a single class at a meeting at which
a quorum was present and acting,

&  a simple majonty of the votes cast {or
other majonty if required by applicable
faw and regutations or the Camival
Corporation articles and by-laws) by
the holders of Carnival Corporation
shares and the holder of the Carnival
Corporation special voting share,
voting as a single class at a meeting
which a quorum was present and
acting, and

. a minimum of one-third of the total
votes avatlable to be voted by the
combined shareholders must be cast
on each resolution for it to be effective
Formal abstentions {or votes withheld)
by a shareholder on a resolution will
be counted as having been “cast” for
this purpose

How are the directors of each company
elected or re-elected?

Resolutions relating to the election or re-
election of directors are considered as joint
electorate actions No person may be a
member of the board of directors of Carnival
Corporation or Carrwval ple without also
being a member of the board of directors of
the other company There are 14 nominees
for election or re-elechon to the board of
directors of each company this year Each
nominee currently serves as a director of
Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc Al
directors are to be elected or re-elected to
serve untl the next annual meetings and
until their successors are elected




What voles arerequiredto elect directors
or approve the other proposals?

Carnival Corporation Proposals 7, 8 and 9
{being Carnival pic Resolutions 20, 21 and
22) are required to be approved by 75% of
the combined votes cast at both meetings

Each of the other proposals, including the
election andre-election of directors, requires
the approval of a majonty of the combined
voles cast at both meetings Abstentions
(including votes withheld, except inthe case
of the election or re-election of directors
by Carnival Corporation shareholders as
discussed below) and broker non-votes
are not deemed votes cast for purposes of
calculating the vote, but do count for the
purpose of determining whether a quorum
15 present In the electon of directors by
Cammval Corporation shareholders, votes
withheld in respect of one or more nominees
countforthe purpose of determining whether
a quorum 1s present and are deemed votes
cast against such nominee or nominees

If you are a beneficial owner of Carnival
Corporation shares and do not provide the
shareholder of record with a signed voting
Instruchon card, your shares may constitute
broker non-votes, as described in “How I1s
the quorum determined?” In tabulating the
voting result for any particular proposal,
shares which constitute broker non-votes
are not deemed cast for purposes of
calculating the vote

Generally, what are procedural
resolutions?

Procedural resolutions are resolutions of a
procedural or technical nature that do not
adversely affect the sharehoiders of the
other company in any matenal respect and
are put to the shareholders at a meeting
The special voting shares do not represent
any votes on ‘“procedural resolutions”
The charman of each of the meetings
will determine whether a resolution s a
procedural resclution

To the extent that such matters require
the approval of the shareholders of either
company, any of the following will be
procedural resolutions

e that certain people be allowed to
attend or be excluded from attending
the meeting,

® that discussion be closed and the
question put to the vote (provided no
amendments have been raised),

® that the question under discussion not
be put to the vote (where a shareholder
feels the onginal motion should not be
put to the meeting at all, if such original
motion was brought during the course
of that meeting),

¢ {0 proceed with matters in an order
other than that set cut in the notice of
the meeting,

¢ {o adjourn the debate (for example, to
a subsequent meeting), and

e {0 adjourn the meeting

Where can I find the voting results of the
meefing?

The voting results will be announced to the
media and the relevant stock exchanges
and posted on our website at www
carnivalcorpcom and www carnivalplc
com, after both shareholder meetings have
closed The results will also be publshed
in our jomnt quarterly report on Form 10-G
tor the second quarter of fiscal 2007 ending
May 31, 2007

What is the quorum requirement for the
meelings?

The quorum reguirement for holding the
meetings and transactng business at the
meetings 15 one-thurd of the total votes of
all shareholders of both companies entitled
to be voted Shareholders may be present
in person (or by attorney) or represented by
proxy at the meetings

How 1s the quorum determined?

For purposes of determining a quorum
with respect to joint electorate actions, the
spectal voling shares have the maximum
number of votes attached to them as were
cast on such joint electorate actions, either
for, against or abstained, at the parallel
shareholder meeting of the other company,
and such maximum number of votes
(including abstentions) constitutes shares




entitled to vote and present for purposes
of determining whether a quorum exists at
such meeting

In order for a guorum to be validly constituted
with respect t0 meetings of shareholders
convened to consider a joint electorate
action or class nghts action, the special
voting entities must be present

Abstentions {including votes withheld) and
broker non-votes are counted as present for
the purpose of determining the presence
of a quorum Generally, broker non-votes
occur when shares held by a broker for a
benefictal owner are not voted with respect
to a particular proposal because (1) the
broker has not received voting instructions
from the beneficial owner and (2) the broker
lacks discretionary voting power to vote
such shares

Is my vote confidential?

Proxy nstructions, ballots and wvoting
tabulatons  that  identify  individual
shareholders are handied in a manner that
protects your voting privacy Your vote will
not be disclosed to third parties except
(1) as necessary to meet applicable legal
requirements, (2) to allow for the tabulation
of votes and certification of the vote or (3)
to facilitate a successful proxy soiicitation
by our beards of directors  Occasionally,
shareholders provide written comments on
their proxy card which are then forwarded
to management

Who will bear the cost of soliciting voles
for the meetings?

We will pay the entire cost of prepanng,
assembling, pnnting, mailing and distributing
these proxy matenals and soliciting votes
for the meetings We will also reimburse
brokerage houses and other custodians,
nomineesandtiducianesfortheirreasonable
out-of-pocket expenses for forwarding
proxy matenals to shareholders

Can | view
electrontcally?

the proxy matenals

This proxy statement will be posted on
our website at www carnivalcorp com and
www carmivalplc com We encourage you
to take advantage of the convenience of
accessing these matenals through the

internet as it 1s simple and fast to use, saves
time and money, and is environmentalty
friendly

What reports are filed by Carnival
Corporationand Carnival picwiththeU.S
Securties and Exchange Commission
and how can I obtain copies?

We file jont annual reports on Form 10-K,
joint quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and
joint current reports on Form 8-K with the
S Secunties and Exchange Commission
Copies of the Carmival Corporation & ple
jomnt annual report on Form 10-K for the
year ended November 30, 20086, as weli
as any |oint quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q or joint current reports on Form 8-K, as
filed with the U S Secunties and Exchange
Commission can be viewed or obtaned
without charge through the US Secunhes
and Exchange Commission's website at
www sec gov (under Carnival Corporation
or Carnival plc) or at www carnwvalcorp com
or www carnivalplc com  Copies will aiso
be provided to shareholders without charge
upeon written request to Investor Relations,
Carmival Corporation, 3655 NW 87th
Avenue, Miami, Flonda 33178 or Carnival
pic, Carnival House, 5 Gamnsford Street,
London SEt1 2NE, United Kingdom We
encourage you to take advantage of the
convenence of accessing these materals
through the internet as 1t 1s simple and
fast to use, saves time and money, and I1s
environmentally fnendly

May | propose actions for consideration
at next year's annual meetings?

Carnival  Corporation shareholders and
Carnival plc shareholders (to the extent
permitted under Carnival ple’s governing
documents and UK law) may submt
proposals for consideration at future
shareholder meetings, including director
nominations In order for shareholder
proposals to be considered for inclusion in
our proxy statement for next year's annual
meetings, the wntten proposals must be
received by our Secretary no later than
November 9, 2007 Such proposals also
will need to comply with U S Secunties and
Exchange Commssion regulations and
UK corparate law requirements regarding
the inclusion of shareholder propesals in
company sponsored proxy matenals Any
proposal of shareholders to be considered
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at next year's meetings, but not mcluded in
our proxy statement, must be submitted In
wriing by January 23, 2008

May I nominate individuals to serve as
directors?

You may propose director candidates for
consideration by our board’s Nominating &
Governance Committees In order to have
a nominge considered by the Nominating &
Governance Comrmittees for ¢lection at the
2008 annual meetings you must submit your
recommendation in wrniting to the attention
of our Secretary at our headquarters not
later than November 9, 2007 Any such
recommendation must include

the name and address of the
candidate,

a bnef bographical description,
including his or her occupation for
at least the last five years, and a
statement of the gualifications of the
candidate, taking into account the
factors referred to below In “Board
Structure and Committee Meetings
— Nomunations of Directors”, and

the candidate’s signed consent to
serve as a director if elected and to be
named in the proxy statement
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QUESTIONS SPECIFIC TO SHAREHOLDERS OF CARNIVAL CORPORATION

Carnival plc shareholders should refer to the "Questions Specific to Shareholders of Carmval plc”
beginning on page 16

Q

A:

What Carmival Corporation shares

owned by me can be voted?

All Carnival Corporation shares owned by
you as of February 16, 2007, the record date,
may be voted by you These shares mnclude
those (1) held directly in your name as the
shareholder of record, including shares
purchased through Carnival Corporation’s
Dividend Reinvestmert Plan and its
Employee Stock Purchase Plan and (2)
held for you as the beneficial owner through
a stockbroker, bank or other nominee

Wil I be asked to vote at the Carnival pic
annual meeting?

No  Your vote at the Carnival Corporation
annual meeting, for purposes of determining
the outcome of combined voting, 1s
automatically reflected as appropnate at
the parallel annual meeting of Carnival
plc through the mechanism of the special
voting share 1ssued by Carnival plc

What is the difference between holding
shares as a shareholder of record and
as a beneficial owner?

Most of the shareholders of Carmwal
Corporation hold their shares through a
stockbroker, bank or othernominee ratherthan
drectly in therr own name As summanzed
below, there are some distinchons between
shares held of record and those owned
beneficially

Shareholder of Record

If your shares are registered directly n your
name with Carnival Corperation’s transfer
agent, Computershare Investor Services LLC,
you are considered, with respect to those
shares, the shareholder of record, and these
proxy matenals are being sent directly to you
by us As the shareholder of record, you have
the nght to grant your voting proxy directly to
the persons named in the proxy or to vote in
person at the meeting Carmival Corporation
has enclosed a proxy card for you to use

Beneficial Owner

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage
account or by a bank or other nominee, you
are considered the beneficial owner of shares
held in street name, and these proxy matenals
are being forwarded to you by your broker or
nomines who 1s considered, with respect to
those shares, the shareholder of record As
the bensficial owner, you have the nght to
direct your broker on how to vote and are
also inwited to aftend the meeting However,
since you are not the shareholder of record,
you may not vote these shares in person at
the meeting Your broker or nominee has
enclosed a voting nstruction card for you to
use

How can I vote my Carmival Corporation
shares in person at the meeting?

Shares held directly 1n your name as the
shareholder of record may be votedin person
atthe annual meeting in Southampton {fyou
choose to do s0, please bring the enclosed
proxy card and proof of identification

Even if you plan to attend the annual
meeting, we recommend that you also
submit your proxy as descnbed below so
that your vote will be counted if you later
decide not to attend the meeting Shares
held in street name may be voted in person
by you only If you cbtain a signed proxy
from the record helder giving you the nghtto
vote the shares Please refer to the voting
instruction card included by your broker or
nominee

How can | vote my Carnival Corporation
shares without attending the meeting?

Whether you hold shares directly as the
shareholder of record or beneficially In
street name, you may direct your vote
without attending the meeting  You may
vote by granting a proxy or, for shares
held in street name, by submitting voting
instructions to your broker or nominee For
shareholders of record, you may do this
by signing your proxy card and mailing i
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in the enclosed envelope i you provided
specific voting instructions, your shares will
be voted as you mstruct If you sign but
do not provide instructions, your shares will
be voted as descnbed below in “How are
voles counted? Where your shares are
held in strget name, v most nstances you
will be able to do this over the internet at
www proxyvote com, by telephone or by
maill Please refer to the voting instruction
card included by your broker or nominee

We are also offering an audio web cast
of the annual meetngs If you choose
to Isten to the web cast, go to
our website at www carnivalcorp com
or www carnivalple com shortly before the
start of the meetings and follow the
instructions provided

Can | change my vote?

You may change your proxy instruction
at any time pnor o the vote at the annual
meeting For shares held directly in your
name, you may accomplhsh this by granting
a new proxy bearing a later date (which
automatically revokes the earher proxy) or
by attending the annual meeting and voting
In person  Attendance at the meeting will
not cause your previously granted proxy
to be revoked unless you specifically so
request For shares owned beneficially by
you, you may accomplish this by submitting
new voting mnstructions to your broker or
nominee

What does 1t mean if I receive more than
one proxy or voling instruction card?

It means your shares are registered differently
or are in more than one account Please
provide voting instructions on each proxy or
voting card you receve and mail each, as
directed

Who can attend the Carnival Corporation
meeting?

All Carmival Corporatton shareholders of
record as of February 18, 2007, or their duly
appointed proxies, may attend and vote at
the meeting Each shareholder may be
asked to present vahd picture identification,
such as a dnver’s license or passport

If you hold your shares through a stockbroker
or other nominee, you will need to provide
proof of ownership by bnnging erther a
copy of the voting instruction card provided
by your broker or a copy of a brokerage
statement showing your share ownership as
of February 16, 2007 together with proof of
identification  Cameras, recording devices
and other electronic devices will not be
permitted at the meeting

What class of shares are entitled fto
be voted at the Carmval Corporation
meeting?

Camival Corporation has only one class
of common stock outstanding Each share
of Camwval Corporaton common stock
outstanding as of the close of business
on February 16, 2007, the record date, 1s
entifled to one vote at the annual meeting
As of January 31, 2007, Carmival Corporation
had 623,064,298 shares of common stock
1issued and outstanding The trust shares of
beneficial mterestin the P&O Princess Special
Voting Trust that are paired with your shares
of common stock do not give you separate
voting nghts

How are votes counted?

In the election of directors, you may vote
“FOR” all of the nominees or you may
"WITHHOLD” your vote with respect to one
or more of the nominees In the election of
directors, a vote “withheld” on the Carmival
Corporation proxy card has the same effect
as a vote agamst the indicated nominee or
nominees You may voie “FOR,” “AGAINST”
or “ABSTAIN" for each of the other proposals
If you "ABSTAIN,” it has no effect on the
outcome of the voles, although abstentons
will be counted for purposes of determining if a
quorum ts present for joint electorate actions
If you sign your proxy card or broker vohng
instruction card with no further instructions,
your shares will be voted in accordance
with the recommendations of the boards of
directors
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What happens if additional proposals
are presented at the meeting?

OCther than the proposals descrnibed in this
proxy statement, Carnival Corporation does
not expect any matters to be presented for
a vote at the annual meeting If you grant a
proxy, the persons named as proxy holders,
Micky Anson, Carnival Corporation’s
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer, and Arnaldo Perez, Carnival
Corporation’s  Semor  Vice  President,
General Counsel and Secretary, will have
the discretion to vote your shares on any
additional matters properly presented for a
vote at the meeting If for any unforeseen

reason any of our nominees 1S unable to
accept nomination or election (which s
not anticipated), the persons named as
proxy holders will vote your proxy for such
other candidate or candidates as may be
nominated by the boards of directors

Who will count the vota?

A representative of Computershare Investor
Services LLC, our transfer agent, will
tabulate the votes and act as the inspector
of elections
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QUESTIONS SPECIFIC TO SHAREHOLDERS OF CARNIVAL PLC

Carnival Corporation shareholders should refer to “Questions Specific to Shareholders of Carmval
Corporation”™ beginning on page 13

Q. Whois entitled to attend and vote at the

A

annual general meeting of Carmval pic?

# you are a Carnwval plc shareholder
registered In the register of members of
Carnval plc at 1100 pm. (UK time} on
April 14, 2007, you will be entitled to attend
in person and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held in Southampton, United
Kingdom in respect of the number of
Carnival plc shares registered in your name
at that tme You may also appoint one or
more proxies to attend and (on a poli) vote
instead of you If you are a corporation you
may appoint a corporate representative to
represent you and vote your shareholding in
Carnwval plc at the annual general meeting
to be held in Southampton, United Kingdom
For further details regarding appointing a
proxy or corporate representative please
see below

We are also offenng an audio web cast
of the annual meetings If you choose to
listen to the web cast, go to our website at
www carnivalcorp com or www carnivalplc
com shortly before the start of the meetings
and follow the instructions provided For
your converience, we will also be hosting
a hve audio broadcast of the Camval ple
annual general meeting and the Carnival
Corporation annual meeting, at our
headquarters located at 3655 Nw 87"
Avenue, Miami, Flonda 33178, from 10 00
am (Miamu time) All Carnival plc and
Carnival Corporation shareholders and
their guests are welcome to attend the five
audio broadcast, although only Carnival plc
and Carnival Corporation shareholders will
be able to submit guestions to the directors
from Miam:  Please note further that only
shareholders attending the meetings to
be held in Scuthampton will be able to
vote in person Accordingly, Carnival pic
shargholders attending the audio broadcast
of the meetings in Miami will need to submit
a proxy to make thetr vote count

Will I be asked to vote at the Carnival
Corporation annual meeting?

No Your vote at the Carnival plc annual
generalmeeting, for purposes of determiming
the outcome of combined voting, will

automatcally be reflected as appropnate
at the parallel annual meeting of Carnval
Corporation through the mechanism of
a special voting share 1ssued by Carnval
Corporation

How do | vote my Carnival pic shares
without attending the annual general
meeting?

You may vote your Carnival plc shares at
the annual general meeting by completing
and signing the enclosed form of proxy
in accordance with the instructions set
out on the form and returning it as soon
as possible, but in any event so as to be
received by Carnival plc’s registrar, Lloyds
TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing,
West Sussex, BN99 6AN, by not later than
300 pm (UK tme) on Aprl 14, 2007
Alternatively, a proxy vote may be submitted
via the internet in accordance with the
instructions set out in the proxy form It
0s also possible to appoint a proxy via the
CREST system, please see the Carnival plc
Notice of Annual General Meeting for further
details Voting by proxy does not preclude
you from attending the annual general
meeting and voting in person should you
wish to do so

If you are a corporation you can vote
your Carnival plc shares at the annual
general meeting by appointing a corporate
representative Youarestrongly encouraged
to pre-register your corporate representative
to make registration on the day of the
annual meeting more efficient In order
to pre-register you would need to fax your
Letter of Representation to Carnival pic's
registrar, Lioyds TSB Registrars, on 01903
833168 from within the United Kingdom or
+44 1903 833168 from elsewhere

Corporate representatives themselves are
urged to arnive at least two hours before
commencement of the annual general
meeting to assist Carnival plc’'s registrar
with the appropnate registration formalities
Whether or not you intend to appoint a
corporate representative, you are strongly
encouraged to return the enclosed form of
proxy to Carnival plc's registrar
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Can | change my vote given by proxy or
by my corporate represeniative?

Yes, In certan circumstances You
may change your proxy vote by either
completing, sigring and dating a new form
of proxy i accordance with its instruchions
and returning it to Carnival pic's regestrars
by no later than 300 pm (UK tme) on
Apnl 14, 2007, or by attending and voting
in person at the annual general meeting  If
you do not attend and vote 1n person at the
annual general meeting and wish to revoke
the appomtment of your proxy or corporate
representative you must do so by delivering
a notice of such revocation to Carnival plc's
registrars at least three hours before the
gtart of the annual general meeting

What class of shares are entitied to be
voted at the Carnival plc meeting?

Carmival plc has only one class of ordinary
shares inissue Each Carnival plc ordinary
share In 1ssue as of the close of business
on April 14, 2007, ts {on a poll) entitled to
one vote at the annual general meeting
As of January 31, 2007, Carnival plc had
213,108,640 ordinary shares i1ssued and
outstanding However, the 42,329,877
Carnival plc ordinary shares indirectly heid
by Carntval Corporation have no voting
nghts (n accordance with Camival plc's
articles of associahion)

& How are votes counifed?

A.

You may vote "FOR,” “AGAINST" or
“WITHHOLD” your vote for each of the
resolutions  If you “WITHHOLD,” it has no
effect on the outcome of the votes, although
withheld votes will be counted for purposes
of determining if a quorum 1s present for
joint electorate actions
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STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Set forth below 1s Information concerming the share ownership of (1} all persons known by us to be the
beneficial owners of 5% or more of the 623,064,298 shares of Carnival Corporation common stock and
trust shares of beneficial interest in the P&O Princess Special Voting Trust outstanding as of January 31,
2007, (2) all persons known by us to be the beneficial owners of 5% or more of the 213,108,640 ordinary
shares of Carnival ple outstanding as of January 31, 2007, 42,329,877 of which are indirectly owned by
Carnival Corporation and have no voting nghts, (3) each of our executive officers named m the Summary
Compensation Table which appears elsewhere in this proxy statement, (4) each of our other directors
and (5) all directors and executive officers as a group

Micky Anson, Chairman of the board and Chief Executive Officer of each of Carnival Corporation and
Carnwval plc, certain other members of the Anson famity and trusts for their benefit {collectively, the
“Principal Shareholders”), beneficially own shares representing approximately 37% of the voting power
of Carnwal Corporation and approximately 29% of the combined voting power of Carmival Corporation
& plc and have informed us that they intend to cause all such shares to be voted in favor of the 14
nominees to the boards of directors named n thus proxy statement and in favor of Proposals 2 through
9 hsted in the accompanying Carrival Corporation Notice of Meeting The table begins with ownership
of the Principal Shareholders

The number of shares beneficially owned by each entity, person, director, nominee or executive ofiicer
1s determined under rules of the US Secunties and Exchange Commussion, and the information 1s
not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose Under such rules, beneficial
ownership tncludes any shares as to which the individual has the sole or shares voting power or
investment power and also any shares which the individual would have the nght to acquire as of April 1,
2007 (being 60 days after January 31, 2007) through the exercise of any stock option (“Vested Options”)
and the vesting of restricted share units

Beneficial Ownership Table
Amount and

Percent of Nature of
Amount and Nature Carnival Beneficial Percent of Percent of
of Beneheial Ownership  Corporation Ownershipof  Carnival plc  Combined
Name and Address of Beneticial  of Carmival Corporation Common Carmval ple Ordinary Voting
Owners or Identity of Group?  Shares and Trust Shares* Stock Ordinary Shares Shares Power**

Micky Anson 188,234,942R134) 30 2% 0 60 237%
Shan Arnson 2,480,908R>% bl 0 1) i

c/o SAFO LLC

10800 Biscayne Blvd

Miame, FL 33161
MA 1994 B Shares, L P 106,114,284 17 0% 1] 0 13 4%
MA 1994 B Shares, inc 106,114,284 17 0% 0 0 13 4%
Micket 2003 Revocable Trust 9417470 e D 0 b
Artsfare 2005 Trust No 2 32,866,264@H802 53% s} 0 41%

c/o SunTrust Delaware Trust

Company

1011 Centre Road

Suite 108

Wilmington, DE 19805
Artsfare 2006 Trust No 1 1,805,9431®03 e b 0 e

cfo SunTrust Delaware Trust

Company

1011 Centre Road

Suite 108

Wilmington, DE 19805
Artsfare 2006 Trust No 2 6,473 6238012 10% 0 0 b

c/o SunTrust Delaware Trust

Company

1011 Centre Road

Suite 108

Wiirmington, DE 19805
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Amount and

Percent of Nature of
Amount and Nature Carnrval Beneficial Percent of Percent of
of Beneficial Ownership  Corporation Ownershipot  Carmival plc  Combined
Name and Address of Beneficial  of Carnival Corporation Common Carnival plc Ordinary Voting
Owners or ldentity of Group®  Shares and Trust Shares* Stock Ordinary Shares Shares Power**
J P Morgan Trust Company of 3,759,010k e 0 0 -
Delaware
JMD-LMA Protector, Inc 41,145,830 6 6% 0 0 52%
Nickel 2003 GRAT 2,592,885kt e 0 4] o
Nickel Continued Irrevocable Trust 2,124,560 - 0 [¢] -
Eternity Two Trust 3,759,010=x3E b 0 0 b
Jafasa Continued Irrevocable 1,000,00012%3 bl 0 o} e
Trust
MBAILP 1,432,439=0100 - 0 s
Artsfare 2003 Trust 1,432,439@K00) ik 0 i
TAMMS Investment Company, 1,861,718@0 b 0 -
Limited Partnership
TAMMS Management Corporation 1,894,1572%) b 0 0 b
James M Dubin 118,544,961=@01 19 0% ¥} 14 9%
c/o Paul, Weiss, Rifkind,
Wharton & Garnison LLP
1285 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10019
JohnJ O'Neil 63,546,535@Ha012114) 10 5% 0 o 8 3%
c/o Paul, Weiss, Rifkind,
Wharton & Garnison LLP
1285 Avenue of the Amencas
New York, NY 10018
SunTrust Delaware Trust Company 41,145,8301203 6 8% 0 o 5 2%
1011 Centre Road
Suite 108
Wilmington, DE 19805
JMD Delaware, Inc 8,525,000=%316)7) 14% 0 0 11%
Krught Protector, Ing 65,546,535@@104 10 5% Q Q 8 3%
Ciigroup In¢ 64,132,382 10 3% o 81%
398 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10043
Citigroup Institutional Trust 61,813,92519 9 9% 0 4] 7 8%
Company
824 Market Street
Wilmington, DE 19801
Robert H Dickinson 504,00008 b 0 0 e
Pier Luign Foschi fi] b 118,00007 e e
c/o CostaCrociere Sp A
Via Xll Ottobre, 2
16121 Genoa
italy
Howard § Frank 650,2650 bk 0 o] i
Pater G Ratclffe 57,9749 ke 29 bl bt
c/o Princess Cruise Lines
24305 Town Center Drive
Sania Clarita, CA 91355
Ambassador Richard G Capen, Jr 49,2020 b 0 ] e
6077 San Elyo
Ranche Santa Fe, CA 92067
Arnold W Donald 26,6502 it 0 0 =

Juvenile Diabetes Research
Foundation International

1 North Brentwood Blvd
Suite 510

Clayton, MO 63105
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Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial

Ownership of

Carnival pic

Ordinary Shares

Percent of
Carnival Percentof Percent of

Carruval plc  Combined
Ordinary Voting

Shares Power**

Amount and Nature
of Beneficial Ownership  Corporation
of Carmival Corporation Common

Shares and Trust Shares” Stock

Name and Address of Beneficral
Owners or identity of Group'?

Richard J Glasier
122 Crystal Canyon Dnve
Carbondale, CO 81623

Baroness Hogg
c/o 3t Group plc
91 Waterloo Road
Lendon SE1 8XP
United Kingdom

A Kirk Lanterman
c/o Holland Amernica Line Inc
300 Eliott Avenue West
Seattle, WA 98119

Modesto A Mawdique
c/o Flonda Internatonal
University
Office of the President
University Park Campus
107th Avenue and S W
8th Street
Miami, FL 33199

Sir John Parker
cfo National Gnd pic
1-3 Strand
London WC2N 5EH
United Kingdom

Stuart Subotrick
c/o Metromedia Company
810 7th Avenue
29th Floor
New York, NY 10019

Laura Wel
220 East 734 Street
New York, NY 10021

Uzi Zucker
870 5th Avenue
New York, NY 10021

Capital Research and
Management Company
333 South Hope Street
Los Angeles, CA 90071

The Growth Fund of Amenca, Inc
333 South Hope Street
Los Angeles, CA 90071

Baillie Grfford & Co
Calton Square
1 Greenside Row
Edinburgh EH1 3AN
Scotland

The Capital Group Companies,
Inc and ther affthates
333 South Hope Street
Los Angeles, CA 90071

Legal & General Group plc andfor
Its subsidiaries
Temple Court
11 Queen Victona Street
London EC4N 458
United Kingdom

9,000/

5,000

166,788%

42,4007

5,000

7,000

75,6000

97,621,20029

36,100,000
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i57%

58%

0

1,874

10,0045

13,561,146

16,984,669

11,350,409

7 9%

10 0%

6 6%

—rn

4 5%

17%

21%

14%




Amount and

Percent of Nature of
Amount and Nature Carnival Beneficial Percent of Percent of
of Beneficial Ownership  Corporation Ownership of Carnival plc  Combined
Name and Address of Beneficial of Carnival Corporation Commoen Carnrval ple Ordinary Voting
Owners or ldentity of Group™  Shares and Trust Shares” Stock Ordinary Shares Shares Power**
All direciors and executive officers 187,570,636 30 4% 130,304 - 23 9%
asa group
(18 persons)
“ As part of the establishment of the DLC structure, Carnival plc1issued a special voting share io Carrmival Corporation, which

transferred such share to the trustee of the P&0 Pnincess Special Voting Trust {the “Trust™), a trust establhished under the
laws of the Cayman Islands Trust shares of beneficial mterest in the Trust were transferred to Carnival Corporation The
trust shares represent a beneficial interest in the Carrwval plc special voting share Immediately following the transfer,
Carnival Corporation distnbuted such trust shares by way of a divdend to holders of shares of Carnival Corporation
common stock Under a painng agreement, the trust shares of beneficial interest in the Trust are paired with, and evidenced
by, certificates representing shares of Carnival Corporation common stock on a one-for-one basis  In addition, under the
parring agreement, when a share of Carnival Corporation common stock 1s 1ssued to a person after the implementation of
the DLC structure, a parred trust share will be 1ssued at the same time to such person  Each share of Carnival Corporation
common stock and the parred trust share may not be transferred separately The Carnrval Corporation common stock and
the trust shares (Including the beneficial interest in the Carnival ple special voting share) are bsied and trade together on
the New York Stock Exchange (*“NYSE”") under the ticker symbol “CCL " Accordingly, each holder of Carnival Corporation
common stock 1s also deemed to be the beneficial owner of an equivalent number of trust shares

b As a result of the DLC structure, on most matters that affect all of the shareholders of Carmival Corporation and Carnival
plc, the shareholders of both companies effectively vote together as a single decision-making body Combined voting 1s
accomplished through the special voting shares that have been 1ssued by each company

“**  Less than one percent

{1}  The address of each natural person named, unless otherwise noted, 15 3655 N W 87 Avenue, Miam:, Flonda 33178 The
address of all other entities, unless otherwise noted, 15 1201 North Market Street, Wilmington, Delaware 12899

{2) The Principal Shareholders and others have filed a joint statement on Schedule 13D with respect to the shares of Carnival
Corporation common stock held by such persons

{3) TAMMS Investment Company Linited Parinership (“TAMMS"} owns 759,010 shares of commeon stock and holds 1,102,708
shares for Shar Anson TAMMS' general partner 1s TAMMS Management Corporation (“TAMMS Corp ™), which ts wholly-
owned by MBA I, L P (*MBA I} TAMMS’ Iimited partners are vanous trusts established for the benefit of certain members
of Mr Anison’s family {the “Family Trusts"} By virtue of the imited partnership agreement of TAMMS, TAMMS Corp may
also be deemed to beneficially own such 1,861,718 shares of common stock By virtue of its interest in TAMMS, JMD
Detaware, Inc and J P Morgan Trust Company of Delaware, as irustees of certain of the Family Trusts and Eternity Two
Trust's interest n TAMMS, may each be deemed to beneficially own the portion of the 759,010 shares of common stock
held by TAMMS which corresponds to their partnership interest in TAMMS  Such amounts are included in the number
of shares set forth next 1o its name in the lable above Because of authority granted under the trust instrument for the
Artsfare 2003 Trust, Mr Arnison may be deemed fo beneficially own the 1,432,439 shares held by the Artsfare 2003 Trust
by virtue of the imited partnership interest of MBA | in TAMMS

{4)  Includes {1) 960,000 Vested Options, (n) 2,807,545 shares of common stock held by the Nickel 2006 GRAT, () 2,592,805
shares of common stock held by Nickel 2003 GRAT, (v) 941,747 shares held by the Nickel 2003 Revocable Trust, {v}
106,114,284 shares of common stock held by the MA 1994 B Shares, L P, (v} 73,386,032 shares of common stock held
by the Artsfare 2006 Trust No 1, Artsfare 2006 Trust No 2, Artsfare 2005 Trust No 2, Eternity Four Trust and the Nickel
97-06 lrrevocable Trust by virtue of the authority granted to Mr Anson under the last wil of Ted Anson and {vi) 1 432,438
shares of common stock held by the Arisfare 2003 Trust by wvirtue of authomty granted under the trust instrument all of
which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Mr Anson

{5} The shares descnbed above include 1,102,708 shares of common stock held by TAMMS and 1,131,800 shares directly
held by Shan Arison

(6) MA 1994 B Shares, L P (“MA 1994, L P") owns 106,114,284 shares of common stock The general partner of MA 1994,
L P 13 MA 1994 B Shares, Inc {“MA 1894, Inc "}, which 1s wholty-owned by the Nickel 1994 “B” Trust, a trust established
for the benefit of Mr Anson and hus heurs {the “B Trust™) The sole lirmited pariner of MA 1994, L P 15 the B Trust  Under
the terms of the instrument goverring the B Trust, Mr Anson has the sole nght to vote and direct the sale of the common
stock indirectly held by the B Trust By wirtue of the hmited partnership agreement of MA 1994, L P, MA 1994, Inc may be
deemed to beneficially own all such 106,114,284 shares of common stock By wiriue of Mr Anson’s interest in the B Trust
and the B Trust’s interest in MA 1994, L P, Mr Arison may be deemed to beneficially own all such 106,114,284 shares of
common stock The trustee of the B Trust 1s JMD Delaware, Inc , a corporation wholly-owned by James M Dubin

(7)  Nickel 2003 Revocable Trust, a trust established for the benefit of Mr Anson and his heirs (the “Nickel 2003 Trust™) owns
941,747 shares of common stock Under the terms of the insirument goverrung the Nicke! 2003 Trust, Mr Arison has the
sole nght to vote and direct the sale of the common stock held by the Nickel 2003 Trust The irustee of the Nickel 2003
Truss ts JMD Delaware, Inc , 2 corporation wholly-owned by James M Dubin

(8) JMD-LMA Protector, Inc , a Delaware corporation, I1s the protector of the Artstare 2006 Trusi No 1, the Artsfare 2006 Trust
No 2 and Artsfare 2005 Trust No 2 JMD-LMA Protector, Inc has shared voling and dispositive power with respect io the
shares of common stock hetd by Artsfare 2005 Trust No 2, Artsfare 2006 Trust No 1 and Artsfare 2006 Trust No 2

(9y J P Morgan Trust Company of Delaware acts as trustee of Etermity Two Trust  As trustee of Eternity Two Trust, J P Morgan
Trust Company of Delaware has shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 3 000,000 shares of common stock
held by Etermity Two Trust and shared dispostiive power with respect fo 758,010 shares of common slock beneficially
owned by Eterrity Two Trust by virtue of s interest in TAMMS J P Morgan Trust Company of Delaware disclaims
beneficial ownership of the common stock held by Eternity Two Trust
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(10}

(1)

(i2)

(13)

(14)

{15)

(16)

(17}
(18)

(19)

(20)

21)

22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)

{27)
{28)

{29)

(30)
(31

MBA ! owns 1,400,000 shares of common stock and a mited partnership interest in TAMMS (See Note 3 above) MBA |
may be deemed to own 32,439 shares of common stock held by TAMMS which corresponds to its respective partnership
interest in TAMMS Corp  The Artsfare 2003 Trust owns a controling interest in MBA |, therefore, the Arisfare 2003 Trust
be deemed to beneficially own all such 1,432,439 shares of common stock

By wirtue of being the sole shareholder ot JMD Delaware, Inc and JMD-LMA Protector, Inc , a 50% shareholder of Knight
Protector, Inc, and the sole trustee of the Arisfare 2003 Trust, Mr Dubin may be deemed to own the aggregate of
118,543,961 shares of common stock beneficially owned by such entities, as 1o which he disclaims beneficial ownership
Mr Dubin beneficially owns 1,000 shares of common stock held directly

By wiriue of being a 50% shareholder of Knight Protector, Inc, Mr O'Nell may be deemed 1o own the aggregate of
65,546,535 shares of common stock beneficially owned by such entity, as to which he disclams beneficial ownership
SunTrust Delaware Trust Company acts as trustee for the Artsfare 2005 Trust No 2 the Artsfare 2006 Trust No 1and the
Artsfare 2006 Trust No 2

Knight Protector, Inc acts as protector of the Etermity Four Trust, and has shared dispositive power with respect 1o all
61,787,525 shares of common stock held by Eternity Four Trust, shared voting power with respect to 31,701,809 shares
of common stock held by Etermity Four Trust and sole voiing power with respect to 30 085,716 shares of common stock
held by Etermity Four Trust  Knight Protector, Inc acts as protector of the Etermity Two Trust, and has shared voting and
dispositive power with respect to 3,000,000 shares of common stock held by Eternity Two Trust and shared dispositive
power with respect to 759,010 shares of common stock beneficially owned by Eternity Two Trust by virtue of its mierest in
TAMMS

Citigroup Instituional Trust Company acts as trustee for the Eternity Four Trust According to Amendment No 2 to
Schedule 13G filed on February 8, 2006 by Citigroup tnc and Cirgroup Institutional Trust Company {formerly known
as Smith Barney Corporate Trust Company), as of December 31, 2005 Citigroup Institutional Trust Company (of which
Citigroup Inc 1s the sole member) has shared voting power over 26,400 shares of common stock and shared dispositive
power over 61,813,925 shares of common stock (61,787,525 shares of which are shares held by the Eternity Four Trust),
and Citigroup Inc has shared voling power over 1,456,082 shares of comman stock and shared dispostive power over
64,132,382 shares of common stock (61,787,525 shares of which are shares held by the Eternity Four Trust)

Includes (i) 240,000 Vested Options and (i) 264,000 shares of common stock owned by Dickinson Enterpnses Lirited
Parinership (the “Dickinson Partnership™) The general partner of the Dickinson Partnership 1s Dickinson Enterprises,
Inc , which 1s wholly owned by a revocable trust established for the benefit of Mr Dickinson and hus heirs {the “Dickinson
Trust™) Under the terms of the instrument governing the Dickinson Trust, Mr Dhickinson has the sole nght to vote and
direct the sale of the common stock indirectly held by the Dickinson Trust

Includes 108,000 Vested Options

Includes (1) 360,000 Vested Optrons and {n) 4,000 shares of common stock owned by the Jackson S Woolworth Irrevocable
Trust and the Cassidy B Woolworth Trust {(Mr Frank Is trustee), as to which Mr Frank disclams benehcial ownership
fncludes (1) 40,000 Vested Options and (1) 13,892 shares held by Mr Ratcliffe's wife Does not include Mr Ratchffe's
conditional nght to recerve 20,000 restncted share umits and 10,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the Carnival
Corporahion 2002 Stock Plan after a five-year retention penod, during which Mr Raicliffe does not have the nght to vote or
direct the sale of those shares

Does notinclude Mr Ratcliffe’s conditional right 1o receive 40,228 share awards under the Camwal plc Deferred Bonus
and Co-Investment Matching Plan after a three-year retention penod, during which Mr Raiclife does not have the nght to
vote or direct the sale of those shares

Includes (1} 46,400 Vested Ophons, (1} 2,000 shares owned by the Capen Trust, of which Mr Gapen 1s co-trusiee, and (i)
802 shares of common stock owned by Mr Capen's wife as to which he disclaims beneficial ownership

Includes 25,400 Vested Options

Includes 6,000 Vested Options

Includes 8,000 shares of common stock held by the Helen K Lanterman Trust (Mr Lanterman is trustee)

Includes 40,400 Vested Options

Includes 7,000 shares held by Whitefoord Limited on behalf of GHM Trustees Limited, the trustee for Sir John Parker's
Fixed Unapproved Restricted Retirement Scheme

Includes 15,600 Vested Options

As reflected in Amendment No 7 to Schedule 13G, dated August 10, 2008, as filed with the U 8§ Securities and Exchange
Commission

Based on notifications to Carmval plc of interests of 3% or more in the share capital of Carnival plc as required by the
Companies Act 1985

Includes 2,022,694 Vested Options

Includes 118,000 Vested Ophions
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Based upon a review of Forms 3 and 4 and amendments thereto furnished to Carmival Corporation and
Carruval plc dunng and with respect to their most recent fiscal year and upon wntien representations
from persons known to Carnival to be subject to Section 16 of the U S Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended {the “Exchange Act”) {a “reporting person”) that no Form 51s required to be filed for such
reporting person, all reporting persons filed on a timely basis reports required by Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2006

PROPOSAL 1 (Resolutions 1-14)
ELECTION AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The DLC structure requires the boards of Carmival plc and Carmival Corporation to be identical
Shareholders are required to approve the election and re-election of directors to each board There are
14 nominees for election or re-election to each board of directors  Each nominee currently serves as a
director of both compantes Al directors are to be elected or re-elected to serve until the next annual
meeting and until their successors are elected

With respect to each nominee set forth below, the information presented includes such person’s age,
the month and year in which such person first became a director, any other position held with Carnival
Corporation and Carnrval plc, such person’s pnncipal occupations dunng at least the past five years and
any directorships held by such nommee in public or certain other companies

The Nominaling & Governance Committees conducted performance evaluations on the members of our
boards of directors and reported the results to the boards Because A Kirk Lanterman has reached
the age of 75, in accordance with the Carmival Corporation & plc Corporate Governance Guidelines, he
has not been nominated for re-election to the boards The boards determined that each director was an
effective member of the boards and, therefore, that each director (other than Mr Lanterman) should be
proposed for election or re-glection

Accordingly, the boards of directors unamimously recommend a vote FOR the election or
re-election of each of the following nominees:

Micky Anson, age 57, has been Charrman of the board of directors of Carnival Corporahon since
October 1890 and a director since June 1987 He became a director and Chairman of the board of
directors of Carnival plc in Apnil 2003 He has been Chief Executive Officer of Carruval Corporation
since 19789 and became Chief Executive Officer of Carnival plc in Apnl 2003

Ambassador Richard G. Capen, Jr., age 72, has been a director of Carnival Corporation since Apnl 1994
and a director of Carnival plc since April 2003 He s currently a corporate director, author and business
cansultant  From 1992 to 1993, Ambassador Capen served as United States Ambassador to Spain
From 1983 to 1991, Ambassador Capen served as Vice Chairman of Knight-Ridder, Inc  Ambassador
Capen was the Chairman and Publisher of the Miami Herald from 1983 to 1989 Ambassador Capen 1s
a member of the boards of directors of the Fixed Income Funds of The Capital Group, the New Economy
Fund and Smallcap World Fund

Robert H. Dickinson, age 64, has been a director of Carnival Corporation since June 1987 and a
director of Carnival plc since April 2003  Since May 2003, Mr Dickinson has served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Carnival Cruise Lines dmvision of Carnival Corporation  From May 1993
through May 2003, Mr Dickinson was President and Chief Operating Officer of Carnival Cruise Lines

Arnoid W Donald, age 52, has been a director of Carnival Corporation since January 2001 and a
director of Carnival pic since April 2003 Since January 2006, Mr Donald has served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation International  From March 2000
to November 2005, Mr Donald was the Chairman of the Board of Merisant Company, a manufacturer
and marketer of tabletop sweetener products, including the Equal® and Canderel® brands From March
2000 to March 2003, he was also the Chief Executive Officer of Mensant Company From January
1998 to March 2000 he was Senior Vice-President of Monsanto Company, a company which develops
agncultural products and consumer goods, and prasident of its nutntion and consumer sector Prior
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to that he was President of Monsanto Company’s agnriculiural sector He 15 a member of the boards
of directors of Crown Holdings, Inc, The Laclede Group, Inc, Cil-Dni Corporation of America and The
Scotts Miracle-Gro Company

Pier Luigi Foschi, age 60, has been a director of Carnival Corporation and Carnival ple since April
2003 He has been Chief Executive Officer of Costa Crociere Sp A (“Costa”, a subsidiary of Carnival
pic, and chairman of its board since January 2000

Howard S Frank, age 65, has been Vice Chairman of the board of directors of Carnival Corporation
since October 1993 and a director since April 1992 He has been a director, Vice Chairman of the
board of directors and Chief Operating Officer of Carnival plc since Apnl 2003 He has served as Chief
Operating Officer of Carnival Corporation since January 1998

Richard J. Glasier, age €1, has been a director of Carnivai Corporation and Carnival plc since July
2004 From July 2002 to May 2005, Mr Glaster was President of Argosy Garning Company, an owner
and operator of casinos, and rts Chief Executive Officer from May 2003 untl October 2005 From
November 1995 to July 2002, Mr Glasier was Executive Vice President and Chiet Financial Officer of
Royal Caribbean Cruises Lid

Baroness Hogg, age 89, has been a director of Camival Corporation since Apnl 2003 and a director of
Carnival plc since October 2000 She 1s Chairman of 31 Group Plc and Frontter Economics Ltd She s also a
member of the board of directors of BG Group plc and a member of the Financial Reporting Council  Sarah
Hogg was Head of the Pnme Mirister's Policy Unit, with the rank of Second Permanent Secretary, from
1990101995 She also served as a non-executive director of The Peninsular and Onental Steam Navigation
Company between 1989 and October 2000 and Deputy Chairman of GKN plc from 1996 to May 2006

Modesto A. Maidique, age 66, has been a director of Carmival Corporation since April 1894 and a
director of Carnival plc since Apnl 2003 He has been President of Flonda International University
(“FIU") since 1986 Prior to assuming the presidency of FIU, Dr Maichque taught at the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, Harvard University and Stanford Universty Dr Maidique has also served as
Vice President and General Manager of the Semiconductor Division of Analog Devices, inc which he
co-founded 1n 1969, as President and Chief Executive Officer of Genome Therapeutics Carporation
{tormerly known as Collaborative Research, Inc), a genetics engineering firm, and as General Partner
of Hambrecht & Quist, a venture capital firm Dr Maidique i1s a director of National Sermiconductor, Inc

Sir John Parker, age 64, has been a director of Carnival Corporation since April 2003 and a director
of Carnival pic since October 2000 He was Deputy Chairman of Carnival plc from September 2002 to
Apnl 2003 He s the non-executive Chairman of National Gnd plc and Chairman of The Peninsular and
Ornental Steam Navigation Company He 1s also Senior Non-Executive Director of the Court of the Bank
of England and Chancellor of the University of Southampton He was formerly a non-executive director
of GKN plc, Brambles Industnes plc and BG Group pic, Chairman of Babcock International Group plc
and RMC Group plc and a President of the Royal Institution of Naval Architects Sir John Parker has
been a member of the General Committee of Lioyds Register of Shipping since 1983 and was Chairman
of its Technical Committee from 1993 untl 2002

Peter G Ratcliffe, age 58, has been a director of Carnival Corporation since Apnl 2003 and a director
of Carnival plc since October 2000 He was Carnival plc's Chief Executive Officer until Apnl 2003 He
1s now Chief Executive Officer of P&O Princess Cruises International comprised of Cunard Line, Ocean
Village, P&O Cruises, P&0 Cruises {Australia), Princess Cruises, Pnincess Tours and Swan Hellenic

Stuart Subotnick, age 65, has been a director of Carnival Corporation since July 1987 and a director
of Carmval plc since Apnl 2003  Mr Subotnick has been a general partner and the Executive Vice
President of Metromedia Company since July 1986 He 1s a director of Abovenet Inc and Metromedia
Interpationai Group, Inc

Laura Weil, age 50, has been a director of Carnival Corporation and Camival plc since January 2007
Ms Weil was the Chief Operating Officer and Sentor Executive Vice President of AnnTaylor Stores
Corporatton, a women’s apparel company, from October 2005 to May 2006 From December 1995 to
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Septernber 2005, she was the Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice Prestdent of American Eagle
Qutfitters, Inc , a clothing retailler She 1s now a retail consultant and director of Ultra Stores Corporation,
a privately held jewelry retailer

Uzi Zucker, age 71, has been a director of Carmival Ceorporation since July 13987 and a director of
Carnival plc since Apnt 2003 Mr Zucker was a Senior Managing Director of Bear, Stearns & Co until
he retired in Decernber 2002 Mr Zucker 1s now a private investor

PROPOSALS 2 & 3 (Resolutions 15 & 16)
RE-APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS FOR
CARNIVAL PLC AND RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR CARNIVAL CORPORATION

The Audit Committee of the board of directors of Carnival plc has selected the UK firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Carnival plc's independent auditors for the year ending November 30,
2007, subject to approval of our shareholders The Audit Commuttee of the board of directors of Carnival
Corporation has selected the US firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Carnival Corporation’s
independent registered certified public accounting firm for the year ending November 30, 2007
Representatives ofboththe U S and UK firms of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be presentatthe annual
meetings and will have an opportunity to make a statement If they desire to do so Representatives of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be available to respond to appropnate questions from shareholders

This resolution would re-appoint PncewaternouseCoopers LLP as the independent audntors of Carnival pic
until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are laid 1t 15 a requirement of Sechon
385(2) of the Comparies Act 1985 that Carnival plc appoint its ndependent audrtors at a general meeting
at which accounts are laid You are also being asked o authonze the Audit Committee of Camival plc to
determine the remuneration of PrncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditors of Carnival plc

Although ratificabion by our shareholders of the appointment of independent certified public accountants
for Carnival Corporation is notlegally required, our boards of directors believe that such action is desirable
If our shareholders de not approve Proposal 2, the Audit Committees will consider the selechon of
another accounting firm for 2007 and future years

The boards of directors unanimously recommend a vote FOR the re-appointment of the UK
firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Carnival ple's independent auditors for the 2007
fiscal year, the authorization of the Audit Committee of Carnival plc to agree the remuneration
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the ratification of the selection of the U.S. firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Carnival Corporation’s independent registered certified public
accounting firm for the 2007 fiscal year.

PROPOSAL 4 (Resolution 17)
RECEIPT OF ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS OF CARNIVAL PLC

The directors of Carnival plc are required by the Companies Act 1985 to present the financial statements,
the UK statutory Directors’ Report and the auditors’ report relating to those accounts to the Carnival plc
shareholders Accordingly, the directors of Carmival plc lay before the annual meetings the Carnival
plc accounts and the reports of the directors and audrtors for the financial year ended November 30,
2006, which have been approved by and signed on behalf of Carnival pic’s board of directors and will
be dehvered to Companies House in the UK following the annual meetings Shareholders are voting to
approve receipt of these documents, as UK iaw does not require shareholder approval of the substance
and content of these documents The UK statutory Directors’ Report and the summary financial
information for the financial year ended November 30, 2006 are aftached to this proxy statement as
Annex A The full accounts and reports of Carnival pic will be available for inspection pnior to and during
the annual meetings

The boards of directors unanimously recommend a vote FOR the receipt of the accounts and
reports of Carnival plc for the financial year ended November 30, 2006.
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PROPOSAL 5 (Resolution 18)
APPROVAL OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

The UK Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 incorporated into the Companies Act 1985
(the “DRR Regulations”) require comparies hsted on the Official List of the UK Listing Authonty to
prepare a directors’ remuneration report, which must be put 1o a shareholder vote Shareholders are
voting to approve adoption of the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report, which 15 in two parts
Part | also constitutes the Report of the Compensation Committees as required by regulations promulgated
by the US Securities and Exchange Commussion, and includes information that Carnival pic 1s required
to disclose in accordance with the DRR Regulations Part Il of the Carnival pic Directors’ Remuneration
Report 15 set forth as Annex B to this proxy statement and includes the additional information that
Carnival pic 15 required to disclose in accordance with the DRR Regulations, including information which
has been audited UK law does not require shareholder approval of the substance and content of the
Carnival pic Directors’ Remuneration Report  Accordingly, disapproval of the Camival plc Directors’
Remuneration Report will not require us to amend the report although under applicable UK guidelines
the boards and Compensation Committees are expected to take into account both the voting result and
the views of our shareholders in their application, development and implementation of remuneration
policies and schemes

The Carnival pic Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out the boards’ remuneration policy for the next
and subsequent financial years and other details required by the DRR Regulations and the Combined
Code appended to the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonity {the “UK Combined Code")

The boards of directors unanimously recommend a vote FOR the approval of the Carnival plc
Directors’ Remuneration Report

PROPCSALS 6 & 7 (Resolutions 19 & 20)
APPROVAL OF LIMITS ON THE AUTHORITY TO ALLOT CARNIVAL PLC SHARES
AND THE DISAPPLICATION OF PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS FOR CARNIVAL PLC

At the last Carnival plc annual general meeting, the shareholders of Carnival plc approved appropnate
hmits on the authonty and power granted io directors by Carmival plc’s articles of association to allot
ordinary shares of Carnival plc and to allot shares for cash without making a pre-emptive offer to existing
shareholders These prior authonzations fapse at the upcoming annual genera! meeting

Under Article 30 of Camival pic’s articles of association, the directors have, for a “prescrbed penod,”
unconditional authonty to allot ordinary shares in Carnival plc up to an aggregate nominal amount known as
the “Section 80 amount” The prescnbed penod and the Section 80 amount are approved by shareholders
passing an ordinary resolution By passing an ordinary resolution, shareholders are authorzing the board of
Camival plc to 1ssue, during the prescrnbed penod, up to an ameunt of shares having an aggregate nominal
value equal to the Section 80 amount, without further shareholder approval  In the absence of such approval,
the 1ssuance of any additonal shares would require shareholder approval

Under Article 31, the directors have, for the same prescribed penod, power to allot ordinary shares for cash
without making a pre-emptive offer to existing shareholders up to an aggregate nominal amount known as
the “Section 89 amount™ The Section 89 amount 15 approved by shareholders passing a special resolution
By passing a special resoluticn, shareholders are authonzing the board of Camival plc to 15sue, dunng the
same prescribed penod, an amount of shares having an aggregate nominal value equal to the Section 89
amount, for cash without first offering them to existing shareholders of Camival plc

Carruval Corporation’s articles of incorporation do not contain provisions similar to Articles 30 and 31
of Carnival plc’s articles of association and holders of Carmival Corporation shares do not have pre-
emption nights  Accordingly, no action 1s required in respect of Carnival Corporation’s authonty to allot
shares or to disapply pre-emption nghts

In common with many UK companies, resolutions to renew the prescribed penod and re-establish the
Section 80 amount and the Sechion 89 amount are normally proposed each year as the directors believe
occasions may anse from time to hme when 1t would be beneficial for shares {o be allotted and for
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shares to be allotted for cash without making a pre-emptive offer This is the purpose of Resolution 19
(an ordinary resolution) and Resolution 20 (a special resolutten) As usual, the prescribed period is the
period from the passing of the resolutions unbil the next annual general meeting

Guidelines 1ssued by the Association of Briish [nsurers, whose member insurance companies are some
of the largest institutional investors In UK listed compames, require the Section 80 amount to be imited
to the lesser of {a) the authonzed but unissued ordinary share capital and (b) one-third of the 1ssued
ordinary share capital By reference to Carnival pic's 1ssued ordinary share capital on January 31,
2007, the maximum Section 80 amount 1s $21,239,657 which 1s the nominal value of the authorized but
untssued ordinary share capital of Carnival plc and 1s equivalent to approximately 6% of Carnival plc's
1ssued share capital

Guidelines 1ssued by the Pre-emption Group, a group compnsing representatives of UK listed companies,
nvestment mstitutions and corporate finance practitioners and formed under the support of the LSE to
monitor the operation of the Guidelines, recommend that a resolution to disapply Section 89 of the
Companies Act 1985 should be imited to an amount of equity secunties nol exceeding 5% of the nommal
value of the company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital By reference to Carnival pic’s 1ssued ordinary
share capital on January 31, 2007, the maximum Section 89 amount 1s $17,688,017

The directors have no commitment or plans to allot additional shares of Carnival plc

Carnival plc’s authorized share capital 1s $375 million and £100,002 divided into 225,903,614 ordinary
shares of $1 66 each, two subscriber shares of £1 each, 89,998 preference shares of £1 each, a special
voting share of £1 and an equalization share of £1 As of January 31, 2007, there were 213,108,640
ordinary shares allotted and 1ssued The proposals you are voting on do not increase the authonzed
share capital of Carnival plc

The boards of directors unanimously recommend a vote FOR the approval of imits on the authority
1o allot Carnival pic shares and the disapplication of pre-emption rights for Carnival pic

PROPOSAL 8 (Resolution 21)
GENERAL AUTHORITY TO BUY BACK CARNIVAL PLC ORDINARY SHARES

In October 2004, Carmival Corporation and Carrival plc announced that therr boards of directors had
authorized the repurchase of up to an aggregate of $1 billion of Carnival Corporation and Carnwval plc
shares That program was completed and in June 2006 Carnival Corporation & Carnival plc announced
that their boards of directors had authonzed the repurchase of up to an additional $1 bilion of Carrval
Corporation and Carnival plc shares  Shareholder approval is not required for us to buy back shares of
Carmival Corporation, but 1s required under the Comparies Act 1985 for us to buy back shares of Carnival
plc Accordingly, last year Carmnival Corporation and Carnival plc sought and obtained shareholder
approval to effect market purchases {(within the meaning of Section 163(3) of the Companies Act 1985)
of up to 10,633,211 ordinary shares of Carmuval plc (being approximately 5% of Carmival pic's ordinary
shares in 1ssue) That approval expires at the conclusion of Carnival plc's 2007 annual general meeting
As a result, shareholder approval to effect market purchases of up to 10,655,432 ordinary shares of
Carnival plc (being approximately 5% of Carrval plc’s ordinary shares in 1ssue) 1s being sought Under
the terms of the Equalization and Governance Agreement entered into between Carnival Corparation
and Carnival pic on formation of the DLC structure, Carmival plc 1s restricted from repurchasing more
than 5% of its shares in any 12 month period from Apnl 17, 2005 until Apni 17, 2008

As of January 31, 2007, Garmval Corporation has purchased an aggregate of 26,666,649 shares of
Carnival Corporation for approximately $1 2 billion, and Carnival investments Linuted, a subsidiary of
Carnval Corporation, has purchased 650,000 shares of Carmival plc for approximately $25 milion The
boards of directors confirm that the authonty to purchase Carnival plc's shares will only be exercised
after careful consideration of prevailing market conditions and the position of Carnival plc  In particular,
the program will only proceed if we believe that it 1s in the best interests of Carnival Corporation, Carnival
ple and therr shareholders generally The boards of directors are making no recommendation as to
whether shareholders should sell any shares i Carnival plc and/or Carnival Corporatian
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If the boards of directors exercise the authonty conferred by Proposal 8 {Resolution 21), we would have
the option of holding the shares in treasury, or canceling them Shares held in treasury can be re-sold
for cash, used for employee share schemes or later cancelled The boards of directors think it prudent
to mamntain discretion as to deahng with the purchased shares

The boards of directors consider that any buy back of Carnwval plc may include the purchase of its
American Deposttary Shares (“ADSs™), each representing one ordinary share of Carnival plc, with a
subsequent cancellation of the underlying ADSs  If the underlying ADSs are so cancelled, Carnival pic
will either cancel or hold in treasury the ordinary share represented by such ADSs

The mimmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for each Carnival ple ordinary share 1s
$1 66, and the maximum pnce which may be paird I1s an amount (exclusive of expenses) equal to the
higher of (1) 105% of the average middle market quotations for an ordinary share, as denved from the
LSE Daily Official List, for the five business days wmmediately preceding the day on which such ordinary
share 1s contracted to be purchased, and (it) that stipulated by Article 5 of Commission Regulation (EC)
of 22 December 2003 (No 2273/2003)

As of January 31, 2007, there are options outstanding to subscribe for 3,264,249 ordinary shares and
Carnival plc has 1ssued 68,702 restricted share units, which represent approximately 16% of Carnival
plc’s 1ssued share capital If 10,655,432 ordinary shares of Carnival plc were purchased, these options
and restricted share units would represent approximately 1 6% of Carnival pic’s 1ssued share capital

The authority to purchase Carmval plc ordinary shares will expire at the conclusion of the Carnival pic
annual general meeting 11 2008 or on October 15, 2008, whichever is earlier (except in relation to any
purchases of shares the contract for which was entered before the expiry of such authority)

The boards of directors unanimously recommend a vote FOR the general authority to buy back
Carnival plc ordinary shares.

PROPOSAL 9 (Resolution 22)
APPROVAL OF ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS WITH CARNIVAL PLC SHAREHOLDERS

Carnival plc belleves it 1s n its best interests to take advantage of new Companies Act 2006 rules for
communications between companies, shareholders and others that came into effect on January 20, 2007

The key change made by the Companies Act 2006 1s that shareholders are assumed to have agreed to
Carnival plec publishing documents and information on a website i heu of delivering paper copies of the
matenals to the shareholders if certain conditions are met and procedures followed Shareholders can,
however, ask for a hard copy of any document at any time

One of the conditions 1s that Carnival plc’s shareholders have adopted a resolution permiting Carmival
plc to send or supply documents or information to shareholders by making them available on a website
Such approval covers all documents or information that Carnival plc may send to shareholders This
includes, but 1s not imited to, annual accounts and reports, summary financial statements, notices of
general meetings and any documents which Carmival plc 1s required to send to shareholders under the
Financial Services Authority’s Listing Rules or other rules to which Carnival ple1s subject  The resolution
supersedes any inconsistent provision in Carnival plc’s articles of association

If the resoiution 1s passed, Carnival plc will ask each shareholder individually to agree that Carnival pic
may send or supply documents or information by means of a website The request will explain that, if
Carnival plc has not received a response from the shareholder within 28 days, the shareholder will be
deemed to have agreed The request will be sent to all Carnival plc shareholders

Even If a shareholder fails to respond, and 1s deemed to have agreed to website publication, he or she
can ask for a hard copy of any document from Carnival pic at any tme Carnival plc will send the copy
free of charge within 21 days of receiving the reguest

Carnival plc will notify shareholders when a document or information 1s made available on the website
Shareholders may choose to receive this notification in hard copy or by e-malil
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The new arrangements are expected to save considerable admuinstrative, pnnting and postage costs,
while preserving shareholders’ nghts to recewve hard copy documents if they wish

Accordingly, shareholder approval permitting Carnival plc to send or supply documents or information to
shareholders by making them availlable on a website 1s being sought

The boards of directors unanimously recommend a vote FOR the approval of electronic
commumcations with Carnival plc shareholders
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BOARD STRUCTURE AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Independence of Board Members

The boards of directors have determined that each of the following direciors 1s an “independent director”
in accordance with the corporate governance frules of the NYSE as a result of having no matenal
relationshup with Carnival Corporation & plc other than (1) serving as a director and board commutiee
member, (2) receiving related fees as disclosed in this proxy statement and (3) having beneficial
ownership of Carnival Corporation and/or Carnival plc secunties as disclosed in the section of this proxy
statement entitled “Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management”™ Ambassador
Richard G Capen, Jr, Amold W Donald, Richard ) Giasier, Baroness Hogg, Modesto A Maidique, Sir
John Parker, Stuart Subotrick, Laura Weil and Uz Zucker

Board Meetings

Durning the year ended November 30, 2008, the board of directors of each of Carmival Corporation and
Carnival pic held a total of nine meetings and acted on one occasion by unammous wntten consent Each
Carnival Corporation director and each Carnival plc director attended either telephonically or in person
at least 75% of all Carnival Corporation & plc board of directors and applicable commitiee meetings

Qur Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that our non-management directors will meet privately
In executive session at least quarterly Since Mr Lanterman served as our consultant, he did not
participate in the executive sessions All of our other non-management directors, acting in executive
session, elected Stuart Subotnick as the Presiding Director to preside at these meetings Mr Subotnick
also acts as the senior independent director under the UK Combined Code

All board members are expected to attend our annuat meetings of shareholders At the 2006 annual
meetings, all of the board members of each company were in attendance except for Laura Weil who was
not a board member at that tme

Board Committees

The board of directors of each of Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc has established standing Audit,
Compensation, Executive, Health, Environmental, Safety & Secunty (*HESS”), and Nominating &
Governance Committees, which are comprised of the same directors for each company A majority of
the directors of each company and all of the members of the Audit Committee, Compensation Commuttee,
HESS Committee and Nominating & Governance Committee of each company are independent (as
defined by the listing standards of the NYSE and the UK Combined Code)

The membership and function of each committes 1s described below The Corporate Governance
Guidelines and copies of the charters of the Audit, Compensation, HESS and Nominating & Governance
Committees are avallahle on our website at www carnivaicorp com and www carmvalplc com and are
avallable in print to any shareholder upon request Each committee will penodically review its charter in
hght of new developments in applicable regulations and may make addiional recommendations fo the
boards to reflect evolving best practices

Addional information with respect to Carnival plc's corporate governance practices dunng the 2006
fmancial year 1s included in the Carmival ple Corporate Governance Report attached to this proxy
statement as Annex C
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Name of Committee
and Members

Functions of the Committee

Number of
Meetings/
Consent Actions
in Fiscal 2006

AUDIT
Richard J Glasier, Chair
Richard G Capen, Jr
Modesto A Maidique
Stuart Suboctmick
Laura Well*

COMPENSATION
Arnold W Donald, Chair
Richard J Glaster
Baroness Sarah Hogg

EXECUTIVE
Micky Anson, Charr
Howard S Frank
Uz Zucker

HESS (established Apnl 20,
2008)
Sir John Parker, Chair
Arnold W Donald
Baroness Sarah Hogg

*Appointed on January 22, 2007

Inspects the work and written reports of our
internal audit department

Reviews submissions from independent
auditors

Selects independent auditors and approves
fees for audit and non-audit services

Assists board oversight of
— the mntegnty of our financial statements,

— our comphiance with legal and regulatory
reguirements,

— the independent auditors’ quakficatons
and independence, and

— the performance of the internal audit
function and the independent auditors

Prepares the report of the Audit Commuttees
o be included in our proxy statement

Discharges the board’s responsibiities
relating to the compensation of independent
directors and executive officers

Administers stock incentive plans

Approves grants of stock, restncted share
units and option awards

Prepares the annual report on executive
compensation to be included in our proxy
statement

Makes recommendations to the board with
respect to ncentive compensation and
equity-based plans

Exercises the authonty of the full board of
directors in between board meetings

Reviews and recommends policies relative
to the protection of the environment and the
health, safety and secunty of employees,
contractors, customers and the public

Supervises and monitors health,
environmental, safety and secunty policies
and programs

Reviews with management significant
risks or exposures and achons required to
minimize such nsks

3
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Number ot

Meetings/
Name of Commuttee Consent Actions
and Members Functions of the Committee in Fiscal 2006
NOMINATING & e Develops and recommends to the boards 4
GOVERNANCE Corporate Governance Guidelnes reflecting
Uz Zucker, Chair the requirements applicable to companies
Sir John Parker listed for trading on the NYSE and the LSE

Stuart Subotnick . Identifies individuals quahfied to become

board members

¢ Recommends to the boards the director
nominees for the next annual meetings of
shareholders

. Recommends to the boards director
nominees for each committee

. Assists the boards with such other matters
as may be set forth in its charter from time to
time

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines address vanous governance 1ssues and principles, including
director qualifications and responsiilities, access to management personnel, director compensation,
director onentation and continuing education and annual performance evaluations of the boards and
directors Our Corporate Governance Guidelines are posted on our website at www carnivalcorp com
and www carnivalple com and s avalable in prnint to any sharehoider upon request

Nominations of Directors

Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc are two separate legal entities and, therefore, each has a separate
board of directors, each of which n turn has its own Normnating & Governance Committee As the DLC
structure requires that there be identical boards of directors, the Nominating & Governance Committees
make one set of determinations in relation to both companies

The Nominating & Governance Commuttees actively seek individuals quaiified to become board members
and recommend to the boards the norminees to stand for election as directors at the annual meetings of
shareholders or, If apphicable, at a special meeting of shareholders

When evaluating prospective candidates for director, regardless of the source of the nomination, the
Nominating & Governance Committees will consider, In accordance with therr charter, such factors, as
they deem appropnate, including

s the candidate's judgment,

¢ the candidate’s skill,

e dwversity considerations,

e the candidate’s expenence with businesses and other organizations of comparable size,

¢ the interplay of the candidate’s expenence with the expenence of other board members, and

¢ the extent to which the candidate would be a desirable addition to the boards and any committees
of the boards

The Nominating & Governance Committees will also use therr best efforts to seek to ensure that the
composition of the boards at all imes adheres to the independence requirements applicable to companies
histed for trading on the NYSE and the LSE The Nominating & Governance Committees may consider
candidates proposed by management, but are not required to do so  Other than the foregoing, there are
no stated minimum critena for director nominees
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The Nominating & Governance Committees identify norminees by first evaiuating the current members of
the boards willing to continue in service  Current members of the boards with skills and expenence that
are relevant to our business and who are willing to continue 1n service are considered for re-nomination,
balancing the value of continuity of service by existing members of the boards with that of obtaining a
new perspective If any member of the boards does not wish to continue in service or If the Nominating
& Govemance Committees or the boards decide not to re-nominate a member for re-election, the
Nominating & Governance Committees dentify the desired skills and expenence of a new nominee
in hght of the cntena above Current members of the Nominating & Governance Committees and the
boards are polled for suggestions as to individuals meeting the cntena of the Nommating & Governance
Committees The Nomunating and Governance Committees may engage a thid party search firm to
identify or evaluate or assist In identifying potential nominees Laura Weil, who was appointed to the
boards of directors in January 2007, was recommended to the Nominating & Governance Committees
by a non-management director

Procedures Regarding Director Candidates Recommended by Shareholders

The Nominaiing & Governance Committees will also consider shareholder recommendations of qualified
director nominees when such recommendations are submitted in accordance with the procedures below
In order to have a nominee considered by the Nominating & Governance Committees for election at the
2008 annual meetings, a shareholder must submit its recommendation in wniting to the attention of
our Secretary at our headquarters not later than November 9, 2007 Any such recommendaton must
include

. the name and address of the candidate,

¢  a bnef biographical description, including his or her occupation for at least the last five years, and
a statement of the qualifications of the candidate, taking into account the qualificaton requirements
set forth above, and

e the candidate’s signed consent to serve as a director If elected and to be named in the proxy
statement

Once we receive the recommendation, we will deliver to the candidate a questonnaire that requests
additional information about the candidate’s independence, qualificahons and other matters that
would assist the Nominating & Governance Committees in evaluating the candidate, as well as certain
information that must be disclosed about the candidate in our proxy statement or other regulatory filings,
if nominated Candidates must complete and return the questionnaire within the time frame provided to
be considered for nomination by the Nominating & Governance Committees

Communications between Shareholders and the Boards

Shareholders who wish to communicate with the boards should address therr communications to the
attention of the Secretary of Carmival Corporation and Carnival plc at 3655 NW 87™ Avenue, Miarmi,
Flornida 33178 The Secretary will maintain a log of all such communications, promptly forward to the
Presiding Director those which the Secretary believes require immediate attention, and alse penodically
provide the Presiding Director with a summary of all such communications and any responsive actions
taken The Presiding Director will notify the boards or the chairs of the relevant board committees as to
those matters that he believes are appropnate for further action or discussion

Communications with the Presiding Director

Interested parties who wish to communicate with the Presiding Director should address therr
communications to the attention of Stuart Subotnick at 3655 NW 87 Avenue, Miami, Flonda 33178
The Presiding Director will notify the boards or the chairs of the relevant board committees as to those
matters that he believes are appropnate for further action or discussion
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Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Carnival Corporation and Carnival plic's Code of Busingss Conduct and Ethics applies to all employees
and members of the boards of Carnival Corporation and Carnival plc  Our Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics 1s posted on our wehsite at www carnivalcorp com and www carnivalplic com and 1s availlable
In print to any shareholder who requests it The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics may be amended
penodically to remain in ine with best practices

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION AND STOCK OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

Our non-employee directors are entitled to receive an annual retainer of $40,000 per year, an attendance
fee per board meeting of $5,000 {$2,000 if meeting attended by telephone), equity compensation in the
form of options to acqurire shares of Camival Corporation common stock, restricted shares or restricted
share units, as further descnbed below, and reimbursement for travel, meals and accommodation
expenses attendant to their board membership  In certain circumstances, we request that the directors’
spouses attend a special event and we reimburse the directors for trave! expenses incurred In addition,
non-employee directors receive additional compensation for serving as chairman or a member of a
beard committee, as follows

Retatner Attendance Fee
In By
Chair Member Person Telephone
Audit Cormmmittees $15,000 $7,500 $3,000 $1,500
All other Committees $ 7500 §$3,750 $2,500 $1,250

For purposes of calculating fees, a board or committee meeting of Carmival Corporation and a
concurrent or related board or commuitiee meeting of Carnival pic constitute a single meeting Directors
who are employed by us or our subsidianies or acting as our consultants do not receive any additional
compensation for their board actiities

During fiscal 2006, each non-executive director recerved an award representing 10,000 “points” under
the Amended and Restated Carmival Corporation 2001 Qutside Director Stock Plan, with the exception
of A Kirk Lanterman who served as our consultant, did not participate Each option to purchase a share
of Carnival Corporatron common stock represents one point and each Carnival Corporation restricted
share or restricted share unit represents four points At the discretion of the Compensation Committees,
an award may be composed of options, restricted shares, restricted share units or a combination thereof
During fiscal 2008, the following awards were made to non-executive directors

Number of
Number of Restricted Shares/
Non-Executive Director Options Restricted Share Units
Richard G Capen, Jr 10,000 —
Arnold W Donald 5,000 1,250
Richard J Glasier 10,000 —
Baroness Hogg — 2,500
Modesto A Maidique 10,000 —
Sir John Parker — 2,500
Stuart Subotnick — 2,500
Uz Zucker 10,000 —

The exercise price for the options 15 $47 83, being the average of the high and low market prices of
Carnival Corporation common stock on the date of grant  The options, restricted shares and restricted
share units vest ratably over a five-year penod The options, restricted shares and restncted share units
shall also vest in full upon the death or disability of the director, and shall continue to vest in accordance
with the original five-year vesting schedule and are not forferted If a director ceases o be a director
for any other reason after serving as a director for at least one year The options expire on the 10th
anniversary of the grant date
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The following policies also apply to our non-executive directors

Stock Ownership Guidehnes All non-executive directors should own atleast 5,000 shares (inclusive
of unvested restnicted shares, restncted share units and shares in a trust beneficially owned by the
director) of either Carnival Corporation common stock or Camival plc ordinary shares The boards
have mandated that all directors serving in 2006 achieve thts guideline by October 2007 New
directors must achieve this guideline no later than two years from the date of their initial election to
the boards by the shareholders

Product Famifianization  All non-executive directors are encouraged to take a cruise for up to 14
days per year for product famiianzation and pay a fare of $35 per day for such cruises Guests
traveling with the non-executive directer in the same statercom will each be charged a fare of $35
per day All other charges associated with the cruise (e g, air fares, government fees and taxes,
gratuities, ground transfers, tours, etc) are the responsibility of the non-executive director

Carnival ple

Additional information with respect to Carnival plc's compensation and reimbursement practices during
fiscal 2006 for non-employee directors 1s included in Part 1l of the Carnival ple Directors’ Remuneration
Report, which 1s attached as Annex B to this proxy statement
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Although Carnival Corporation and Carrwval plc are two separate entities with separate officers, our
business Is run by a single management team The following table sets forth all compensaton awarded
to, earned by, or paid to our Chief Executive Officer and our four other most highly compensated executive
officers {each of whom are also members of our boards of directors) for the years ended November 30,
2008, 2005 and 2004

Summary Compensation Table

Long Term
Annual Compensation Compensation Awards Payouts
Number of
Restricted Securities
Other Annual Stock Underlying LTIP All other
Name and Principal Salary Bonus Compensation  Awards Options Payouts Compensation
Position Year {8) (8) {s)0 ($)Hma {#)y = ($) (S)
Micky Anson 2006 850,000 2,600,000 510,400 3,130,800 120,000 — —
Chairman and 2005 800,000 2,800,000 423,600 3,218,400 120,000 — —
CEO 2004 700,000  2,400,000® 389,500 3,475,200 120,000 -— —
Howard S Frank 2006 750,000 2,500,000 437,700 2,609 000 100,000 — —
Vice Chairman 2005 700,000 2,800,000 168,300 2,682,000 100,000 — —_—
and COO 2004 600,000 2,300,000 193,400 2 896,000 100,000 — —
RobertH Dickinson 2006 763,000 1,118,6617 160,900 1,524,000 80,000 - —
President and CEQ 2005 741,000 1,594,400 160,100 2,070,400 80,000 —_— —
of Carnival 2004 400,000  1,393,200M 137.600 1,849,200 80,000 — —
Cruise Lines
Peter G Ratcliffe 2006 1,150,000 934,500 62,000 1,423,500 50,000 746,4390 30,2380
CEQ of PAO 2005 1,100,000 902,000 58,900 1,420,300 50,000 — 67,0004
Princess Cruises 2004 1,106,000 814,000® 60,500 1,393,200 50,000 — 66,7000
International
Pier Luigi Foscht 2006 1,139,1750% 1,246,568 266,400 506,220 50,000 — —
Charman and 2005 1,097,00002  979,4000% 237,100 543,6001'% 50,0001 — e
CEQ of Cosla 2004  981,00002 1,033,000 150,000 —_ sl _ _

M

{2

3
@)
{5)
{6)

This column includes our aggregate ncremental cost of providing perquisites and personal benefits to the named
executive officers The amounts of personal benefits shown in thes column for fiscal 2006 that represent more than 25% of
the applicable executive’s total Other Annual Compensation include  personal use of the Carnival Corporation arrcraft of
$356,196 to Mr Anson and $321,402 to Mr Frank, personal ar travel of $89,818 to Mr Dickinson, private club membership
of $18,518 to Mr Ratchffe, and iving accommodations of $142,179 to Mr Foschi

Represents the value, based on the closing market price of Camival Corporation common slock on the NYSE or Camival
ple ardinary shares on the LSE on ihe date of grant  As of November 30, 2006, Messrs Anson, Frank and Dickinson
held 300,000 shares, 200,000 shares and 264,000 shares of restncted Carmival Corporation common stock, respectively
As of November 30, 2006, Mr Ratcliffe held 10,000 shares of restncted Carmival Cerporation common stock and 20,000
restncted share units  As of November 30, 2006, Mr Foschi did not own any shares of restncted Carnval Corporation
common stock or RSUs but owned 10,000 Carnwal plc restricted share units At November 30, 2006, based on the
closing price of Carnival Corporation common stock and Carmival plc ordinary shares on such date of $48 99 and £34 75
per share, respectively, such restncted shares of common stock and resincted share unis owned by Messrs Anson,
Frank, Dickinson, Ratcliffe and Foschi had a vatue of $14,697,000, $14,207,100, $12,933,360, $1,469,700 and $482,625,
respectvely (based on the November 30, 2006 exchange rate of $1 85 £1) Generally, the resincted shares will continue to
ves! following retirement after a certain age  Except for the restncted shares owned by Mr Ratchife, the restnicted shares
of Carnival Corporation common stock held by such executive officers have the same rights with respect to dvidends and
other distnbutions as all other outstanding shares of Camival Corparation common stock

Except as otherwise indicated, represents restncted shares and restncted share units in respect of Carnival Corporation
common stock No stock appreciation nghts were granted to any of the named executive officers

In certain mstances, restrncted shares, restricted share units and/or options are granted 10 executive officers dunng the
subsequent fiscal year in recognition of services rendered dunng the prior fiiscal year

Except for the options granted to Mr Foschi which are in respect of Carnival plc ordinary shares, represents options in
respect of Carnival Corporation common siock

Pursuant to Mr Anson's request, Carnival Corporation donated $2 5 milion of Mr Anson’s 2005 bonus to the Partnership
for Recovery, Inc , Flonda Hurncane Relef Fund, Save the Children and My Key West Emergency Relef Fund established
by the Community Foundation of the Flonda Keys to aid in hurncane relief efforts  The entire amount of Mr Anson's 2004
bonus was donated to the Amencan Red Cross International Response Fund, the U S Fund for UNICEF and Save the
Children Asia Earthquake/Tsunam Relief Fund to aid in the tsunami relief efforts i Asia and Afnca
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(9)

(10)

(1)

{12)

(13

(14)

(15)

Represents amounts payable to Mr Dickinson pursuant to the Carmival Cruise Lines Management incentive Plan {or tts
predecessors, as apphcable} pursuant to which key management employees of Carmival Cruise Lines participate in a
bonus pool pnmanly based on Carmival Cruise Lines’ return on invested capital

Represents cash amounts payable to Mr Ralchffe under hes employment agreement pursuant to which he recewes a
bonus contingent upon the net income of certain specified cnnse and tour brands, consising of Cunard Line, Ocean
Village P&Q Cruises, P&0O Cruises (Austraha), PEO Travel, Pnincess Cruises, Princess Tours and Swan Hellenic units
The cash amount represents 50% of Mr Ratcliffe’s bonus, the other 50% of which 15 payable in shares oi Carnival pic
pursuant to the Carmival plc Deferred Bonus and Co-Investment Matching Plan (the “Deferred Bonus Plan™ descnbed 1n
note (9) below

Represents (a) the value of 10,000 shares of restncted Carruval Corporation common stock or restricied share units, based
on the closing market price of Carmival Corporation common stock on the NYSE on the date of grant, and (b) the value of
awards over shares in Carnwval ple in respect of 50% of Mr Ratcliffe’'s annuat bonus descnbed in note (8) above Pursuant
to the lerms of the Deferred Bonus Plan, 50% of Mr Ratclifie's bonus 1s payable in the farm of a conditional nght to recetve
Carnval pic shares after a three-year retention period As of November 30, 2006, Mr Raltciiffe held 40 228 share awards
under the Deferred Bonus Plan, wiuch were granted in respect of us 2003, 2004 and 2005 bonuses At November 30,
2006, based on the closing pnice of Carnival plc ordinary shares on such date of £24 75, such 40,228 restnicted shares
had a value of £995,643 {or $1,941,504 based on the November 30, 2006 exchange rate of $1 95 £1), which shares have
the right to dividends during the retentton period

Represents the value of 13,732 Carnival plc ordinary shares at the February 23, 2006 closing price of £31 24 (based on
the February 23, 2006 exchange raie of $1 74 £1} acquired by Mr Ratcliffe on February 23, 2006 upon the distnibution of
the matching award and accumulated dividend under the Deferred Bonus Plan in respect of the bonus granted to hum by
P&0O Pnncess Cruises plc in 2003

Represents employer coninbutions made an behalf of Mr Ratchiffe under the Princess Cruises Retirement Savings Plan
in the amount of $12,300, $12,600 and $11,260 i fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, and employee contributions
made by Carmival plc on behalf of Mr Ratchife under the P&O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme in the amount of $54,400,
$54,400 and $18,976 in fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, future accrual of which ceased effective Apnl 5, 2006
Mr Foschr's compensation was payable in euro  His base salary has been transtated nto U S dollars at the average
exchange rate of the dollar for the 2004 fiscal year of §1 235 €1, 2005 fiscal year of $1 258 €1 and 2006 hiscal year of
$1245€1

Represenis amounts payable to Mr Foschi under an agreement pursuant 1o which he receives a base bonus (which
was €669,000 in 2006 and 2005 and €440,000 n 2004) plus addimonal amounts based on the percentage merease in
consoldated net income of Costa His bonus has been translated into U S dollars at the exchange rate of $1 22 €1
for 2005 and $1 30 €1 for 2006, being the exchange rates on the date his bonus was appraved by the Compensatton
Committees

Represents the value of restricted share units granted to Mr Foschi based an the closing price of Carnival ple ordinary
shares on the LSE on the date of grant transtated into U S dollars at the exchange rate of $1 74 £1 for fiscal 2005 and
%1 85 £1 for fiscal 2006

Fellowing the lzgal transfer of Costa from Camival Corporation to Carrival plc in December 2003, the Costa employees
participating m the Carnval Corporation 2002 Stock Plan and Carmival Corporation would have faced significant
negative tax consequences under ltalian law if the employees retained therr options  Accordingly, in February 2004,
the Compensaton Commitiees accelerated the vesting of all Carnival Corporation options granted 1o Costa employees
and approved a general exceptional grant of share ophions under Carnival pic’s Executive Share Option Plan to replace
the Carnmival Corporation options  Mr Foschi recerved options over 200,000 Carmival ple ordinary shares as part of this
general exceptional grant, being the number of Carnival Corporation stock optrons he had oulstanding at the time of the
transfer of Costa

In October 2004, Mr Foschi received an option over 58,264 Carnival plc ordinary shares which replaced the value of a
grant of 10,000 restricted shares of Carnival Corporation anginalty granted on January 30, 2004 The restncted shares
were rescinded because of significant negative 1ax consequences under ltalian law if Mr Foschi retained shares Mr
Foschi was also granted an option over 28,800 Carnival pic ordinary shares as part of a wider grant of options 1o Costa
employees Due to imitations under Carmival plc’s Executive Share Option Plan, we were unable to grant Mr Foschi the
50,000 annual grant of optiens that were historically granted to him  Accordingly, when our shareholdars approved the
adoption of the Carmival ple 2005 Employee Share Plan in April 2005, the Compensation Commitiees granted Mr Foschi
an addstional option over 21,200 Carnival plc ordinary shares

In October 2005, the Compensaton Committees granted Mr Foschr an option over 40,000 Camival ple ordinary shares in
heu of the 10,000 restricted shares he histoncally would have receved in 2004

Additional information with respect to Carnival pic’s compensation and reimbursement practices dunng
fiscal 2006 for non-employee (or non-executive) directors 1s included in Part Il of the Carnival plc
Directors’ Remuneration Report, which 15 attached as Annex B fo this proxy statement
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Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

The following table sets forth all stock options granted to our Chief Executive Officer and our four other
most highly compensated executive officers durng fiscal 2006

Individual Grants

Number of Percent of Total
Secunhbes Options Granted Grant Date
Underlying Options to Employees in  Exercise or Base Expiration Present Value

Name Granted {#)"W2 Fiscal Year® Price {§/Sh)¥ Date ()=
Micky Anson 120,000 501% 47 830 10/16/2013 1,470,000
Howard S Frank 100,000 417% 47 830 10/16/2013 1,225,000
Robert H Dickinson 80,000 3 34% 38 460 08/01/2013 734,400
Peter G Ratcliffe 50,000 2 09% 51 375 02/21/2013 622,500
Pier Luigh Foschi 50,000 2 09% 55 645 02/21/2013 608,000

(1)  Represents options granted in respect of Carnival Corporation common stock, except for options granted to Mr Foschi
which are in respect of Carnival plc ordinary shares No stock appreciation nghts were granted to the executive ofiicers
in fistal 2006

{2} Subject to accelerated vesting upon the death or disability of the option holder, each option 1s exercisable in amounts
equal to 20% of the aggregate number of shares underlying the option, on the first through fifth anniversarnes of the grant
date Generally, the options will continue te vest and are not forfeted following retirement

(3} Represents the percent of the aggregate of Carmival Corporation and Carnival plc options granted

(4) Exceptinthe case of options granted to Mr Foschi, represents fair market value of Carnival Corporation common stock at
date of grant 1n the case of options granted to Mr Foschi, represents average of the middle market quotations of Carnival
plc ordinary shares over the 30-day pertod preceding the date of the grant, which was higher than the middle market
quotation of such share on the date of grant The exercise pnice for the Carnival plc eptions granted on February 21, 2006
Is £31 98 These amounts have been converted to U S dollars based on the grant date exchange rate of $1 74 £1

{5}  The Black-Scholes option pncing model was chosen fo estimate the Grant Date Present Value set forth in this table of {a)
the Carnival Corparafion options at $12 45 per share at February 21, 2006, $9 18 per share at August 1, 2006 and $12 25
per share at October 16, 2006 and {b) the Carnival plc options at $12 16 per share at February 21, 2006 Our use of this
model should not be construed as an endorsement of its accuracy at valuing options  All stock option models require a
prediction about the future movernent of the stock pnce Several factors impact the expected option hie, including the
vesting schedule of the optrons  All of the ophions descrnbed above lapse on the seventh anniversary of the grant date
In addition, all of the options descnbed above vest ratably over five years Accorcdingly, the Grant Date Present Values
presented in the table were determined in part using the foliowing assumptions

Carnival Corporation Carmival plc
February 21, 2006 August1,2006 October 16,2006 February 21,2006
Expected volatiity 26 50% 29 50% 30 25% 26 50%
Risk free interest rate 4 46% 472% 4 64% 421%
Expected dividend yield 220% 3 25% 274% 220%
Expected option hie 4 75 years 4 75 years 475 years 4 75 years

The real value of the options in this table depends upon the actual performance of Carnrval Corporation common stock
and Carnival plc ordinary shares, as applcable, during the respective penod and upon when they are exercised The
approach used in developing the assumptions upon which the Black-Scholes valuation was done 1s consistent with the
requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment ”
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Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and
Fiscal Year-End Option Values™

The following table provides mformation on the values of the exercised and unexercised options

held by our Chief Executrve Officer and our four other most highly compensated executive officers at
November 30, 2006

Number of Securihies

Underlying Value of Unexercised
Shares Unexercised Options at In-the-Money Options at
Acquired Value Fiscal Year End (#) Fiscal Year End (5)

Name on Exercise{#)'¥ Realized($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Micky Arison _ — 838,000 384,000 13,926,030  1,985,520@
Howard S Frank 440,000 11,680,273 340,000 320,000 2,262,650  1,654,6002
Robert H Dickinson 176,000 3,371,480 240,000 224,000 1,812,200 1,398,560
Peter G Ratcliffe — _ 30,000 120,000 101,600 152,400

51,1889 1,236,947 0 0 o 0
Pier Luigi Foschi — —  108,000@ 290, 264@ o o

(1) Except as otherwse indicated, represents options granted n respect of Carnival Corporation common stock  No stock
appreciation nghts are held by any of the named executive officers

{2)  The value of the unexercised options I1s based upon the difference between the exercise pnce and the average of the high
and low market prices of Carmival Corporation common stock on November 30, 2006 of $48 69

{3) Represents stock options granted in respect of Carnival plc ADSs, each representing one ordinary share of Carmval plc

(4)  Represents stock options granted in respect of Carnival plc ordinary shares

(5) Based upon the difference between the exercise pnce and the mid-market pnce of Carnval plc ordinary shares on
November 30, 2006 of £24 75 (or $48 26 based on an exchange rate of $1 95 £1), there were no in-the-money options
held by Mr Foschi

Additonal information with respect to option values for the directors of Carnival ple for the financial year
ended November 30, 2006 1s included in Part Il of the Carmival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report,
which 1s attached as Annex B to this proxy statement

Compensation Agreements

2007 Base Salares

On January 22, 2007, the Compensation Committees approved the annual base salanes payable to the
named executive officers effective as of December 4, 2006 as follows

Name 2007 Base Salary
Micky Anson $ 850,000
Howard S Frank $ 750,000
Robert H Dickinson $ 763,000
Peter G Ratcliffe $1,150,000
Pier Luigy Foschi $1,189,500

(1) Mr Foschi's compensation 1s payable in euro His base salary of €915 000 {which s unchanged from his 2006 base
salary) has been franslated into U S dollars at the January 22, 2007 exchange rate of $1 30 £1
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Executive Long-Term Compensation Agreements

Carmival Corporation has entered intoc Executve Long-Term Compensation Agreements (the
“Compensation Agreements”) with Micky Arison, its Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
Howard S Frank, its Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief Operating Officer, and Robert H Dickinson,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Carnival Cruise Lines (each an “Officer”) The Compensation
Agreements provide that dunng the term of such Officer’s employment, Carnival Corporation will provide
long-term compensation (in addition fo his annual compensation consisting of a base salary and annual
bonus, which 1n the ¢case of Mr Dickinson s awarded under the Carmival Cruise Lines Management
incentive Plan) in the form of annual grants to each Otficer, contingent upon satisfactory performance
by the Officer, as follows Mr Anson, 60,000 restrncied shares of common stock and 120,000 options
to purchase common stock, Mr Frank, 50,000 restncted shares of common stock and 100,000 options
to purchase common stock, and Mr Dickinson, 40,000 restricted shares of common stock and 80,000
options to purchase common stock

The options vest in five equal annual instalfments beginning one year from the date of grant, and the
restricted shares of common stock cliff vest five years from the date of grant Unvested options and
restrcted shares of common stock are forfeited (f an Officer's employment 1s terminated for cause, if
he engages in competiion with Carnival Corporation or 1f he violates the nondisclosure provisions of
the Compensation Agreement, or if the Officer resigns prior to attaining a specified age other than as a
result of a terminal medical condition

Employment Agreement

Peter G Ratcliffe has entered into an employment agreement under which he acts as Chief Executive
Officer of P&O Princess Cruises International responsible for the Cunard Line, Ocean Village, P&O
Cruises, P&0O Cruses {(Australia), Pnncess Cruises, Princess Tours and Swan Hellenic units (the
“Covered Operations™ Mr Ratchffe’'s base salary 1s $1 15 millon, with an annual bonus based on a
specified percentage of the adjusted net income from the Covered Operattons Fifty percent of the
annual bonus 15 payable in cash, with the remaining 50% payable in the form of a right to receive shares
in Carruval plc after a retention penod of three years pursuant to the terms of the Deferred Bonus
Plan The employment agreement provides that Carmival Corporation will provide Mr Ratcliffe an annual
grant of options to purchase 50,000 shares of Carnival Corporation common stock, contingent upon his
satistactory performance The options vest in five equal annual installments beginning one year from
the date of grant Unvested options are forfeited if Mr Ratcliffe’'s employment i1s terminated for cause
or because he s 1n matenal violation of the non-competition, non-disclosure or intellectual property
provisions of his employment agreement

Mr Ratcliffe 15 also entitled to certain finge benefits available to other senor executives as well as
participation in the P&0O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme and the Princess Cruises Chief Executive
Officer Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

It Mr Ratchiffe’s employment agreement 1s terminated by Carnival plc without “cause” or I1s terminated by
Mr Ratcliffe with “good reason” (as such terms are defined in the employment agreement), Mr Ratcliffe
1s entitled to compensation equal to his base salary and a bonus equal to the bonus paid the year prior to
termination payable in monthly instaliments He s also entitied continuation for 12 months of certain other
benefits unless and until Mr Ratcliffe becomes eligible for similar benefits from another employer prior to
the expiration of 12 months from the date of termination  If Mr Ratcliffe's employment s terminated for
cause, he terminates his employment agreement without good reason or he matenally breaches the non-
disclosure or intellectual property provisions of the employment agreement, no addiional compensation
1s due Inthe event of termination for reasons other than for cause, Mr Ratchiffe retans his share awards
received under the Deferred Bonus Plan for the full retention penod, subject to certain exceptions

Service Agreement

In February 2005, Costa entered into a service agreement with Mr Foschi under which he acts as its
chairman and chief executive officer Mr Foschr's base salary 1s €915,000 (which may be subject to
Increases and includes non-competition compensation of €115,000 per year)), a guaranteed base bonus
of €669,000 plus addibonal amounts based on the compounded year-over-year percentage increases
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In consolidated net income of Costa from the base year (imited to an increase of 20% per year), and
certain fnnge benefits {Including a company car and iiving accommadations) The service agreement
also contains confidenbiality provisions

The onginal one-year term of Mr Foschi's service agreement 1s auiomatically renewed for an additional
year unless either party provides the other with 60 days notice of an intention not to renew If the
agreement 1s terminated by Costa for reasons other than Mr Foschi’s breach of hus obligations under
the agreement or because Mr Foschis revoked as a director of Costa for cause, or if Mr Foschi resigns
with cause under ltalian law or as a result of a change of control of Costa, Mr Foschi 1s entitled to a
termination payment equal fo his annual base salary, the annual non-competition compensation and a
bonus equal to the bonus paid the year prior to termination {unless in the case of a change of control an
alternative contractual arrangement 1s entered into with the new controling group)

Additional long-term compensation information for the directors of Carnival plc for the financial year
ended November 30, 2006 s included in Part | of the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report
included in this proxy statement as the Report of the Compensation Committees and Part 1l of the
Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report, which 1s attached as Annex B to this proxy statement
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

Carmival Corporation

Set forth below 1s a table that summarizes compensation plans (including individual compensation
arrangements} under which Carnival Corporation equity secunities are authonzed for issuance as of

November 30, 2006

Plan category

Equity compensation plans
approved by secunty holders

Equity compensation plans not
approved by secunty holders

Total

Number of secunties to

be 1ssued upon exercise

of outstanding options,
warrants and nghts

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and nghts

Number of securities
remaining avaiable for
future 1ssuance under

equity compensation

plans (excluding
securities reflected in
column (a))

(a)
16,461,648

S
16,461,648

(b)
$4137

.0
$4137

(c)
28,777,766

0
28,777,766

() Includes outstanding ophions te purchase Carmival Corporation common stock under the Carmival Crutse Lines, Inc
1987 Stock Option Plan, Carmival Corporation 1992 Stock Option Plan, Carmival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan, Carnival
Corporation 1993 Qutside Directors’ Stock Option Plan and Carnival Corporaton 2001 Qutside Dhirector Stock Plan  Also
includes 222,799 restncted share units outstanding under the Carnival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan and 1,250 restncted
share units outstanding under the Carnival Corpaoration 2001 Qutside Director Stock Plan

(2}  Includes Carnwal Corporation common stock avaiable forissuance as of November 30, 2006 as follows 2,662,607 under
the Camval Corporatron Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 25,464,291 under the Carmival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan
and 432,500 under the Carnival Corporation 2001 Qutside Direcior Stock Ptan  This figure excludes securities reflected
In column (a)

(3) Inaddiion to options, the Carnival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan and the Carmival Corporation 2001 Cutside Director Stock
Plan provide for the award of restricted shares and restnicted share units without limitation on the number of shares than
can be awarded in either form

Carnival plc

Set forth below 1s a table that summanzes compensation plans (including individual compensation
arrangements) under which Carnival plc equity secunties are authorized for 1Issuance as of November 30,
2006

Number of securities
remaining available for
future 1ssvance under

equity compensation

plans (excluding
secunties reflected in

Number of secunties to
be Issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and nghts(" column {a))
@ (b) (c}
Equity compensation plans
approved by secunty holders 3,353,102@ $48 41 12,941,092
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 0 0 0
Total 3,353,102 $48 H1 12,941,092

(1}  Converted from sterling, f apphcable, using the November 30, 2006 exchange rate of $1 95 £1

(2) neludes outstanding options to purchase Carnival plc ordinary shares under the Carnival plc Executive Share Option Plan
and Carnival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan  Alse includes 68,702 resincted share units outstanding under the Carnival
ple 2005 Employee Share Plan

{3) Inaddition to eptions, the Carnival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan provides for the award of restricted shares and restricted
share umts without irmitation on the number of shares that can be awarded In either form
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DEFINED BENEFIT AND OTHER PLANS

Carnival Corporation

The following table sets forth the combined estimated annual pension benefits payable at age 65 (being
the normal retirement date, pursuant to Carnival Corporation’s Supplemental Executive Retirement
Pian (the “SERP") and Nongualified Retirement Plan for Highly Compensated Employees {the “Carnival
Corporation Retrement Plan”} The benefits listed i the table include the offset for Social Secunty
benetits under the provisions of the SERP

Years of Service
Pay 15 20 25 30 35

$1,750,000 $ 500,802 $ 675802 $ 850,802 $ 850,802 $ 850,802
$2,000,000 $ 575802 §$ 775802 § 975802 § 975802 $§ 975802
$2,250,000 $ 650,802 § 875802 $1,100,802 $1,100,802 $1,100,802
$2,500,000 $ 725802 § 975802 31,225802 $1,225802 $1,225,802
$2,750,000 $ 800,802 $1,075,802 $1,350,802 $1,350,802 $1,350,802
$3,000,000 $ 875802 $1,175802 $1,475802 $1,475802 $1,475,802
$3,250,000 $ 950,802 $1,275.802 $1,600,802 $1,600,802 $1,600,802
$3,500,000 $1,025,802 $1,375,802 $1,725,802 $1,725,802 $1,725,802
$3,750,000 $1,100,802 $1,475,802 $1,850,802 $1,850,802 $1,850,802
$4,000,000 $1,175802 $1,575,802 $1,975,802 $1,975,802 $1,975,802

Mr Frank and Mr Dickinson will each receive retirement benefits under the SERP The SERP prowides
a benefit equal to 50% of cash compensation (as defined in the SERP) The SERP provides an early
retirement benefit at age 55 after completion of 15 years of service, subject 10 a reduchon of 0 25% for
each month that distribution of benefits precedes the participant’s 65th birthday The SERP benefit 1s
offset for any benefit payable under the Carnival Corporation Retirement Plan and for Social Security
benefits SERP benefits are paid as a continuous and certain annuity for 5, 10, 20 or 30 years, a 50%
or 100% joint and survivor annuity, or as a single lump sum

Mr Anson, Mr Frank and Mr Dickinson's benefits under the Carnival Corporation Retirement Plan are
calculated based on their length of service with Carruval Corporation and the average of their five tighest
consecutive years of compensation out of the last ten years of service  The elements of compensation to
determine their benefit are their base salary and cash bonus as described in the Summary Compensation
Table Benefits under the Carnival Corporation Retirement Plan are pard as a continuous and certain
annurty for 5 or 10 years, a 50% or 100% joint and survivor annuity, or as a single lump sum

Credited service for benefit calculation purposes under the Carnival Corporation Retirement Plan 1s
iimited to 30 years As of December 31, 2006, Micky Anson, Robert H Dickinson and Howard S Frank
each have at least 30 years of credited service  Pier Luigr Foschi and Peter G Ratcliffe are not eligible
for participation in the Carnival Corporation Retirement Plan

As of January 1, 2007, the annual estimated benefits payable under the SERP and Carnival Corporation
Retirement Plan to Messrs Frank and Dickinson at age 65, would be Ife annuities (five-year certain
benefit) of $1,729,379 and $1,112,106, respectively, or lump sums of $20,801,055 and $13,634,821,
respectively

Carrival Corporation has a benefit imitation policy for the Carnival Corporation Retirement Plan which
only applies to Mr Anson  We have imited the annual compensation covered by the Carnmival Corporation
Retirement Plan for the calendar year 2006 for Mr Anson to $321,216 (as may be indexed) Based on
Mr Anson's tevel of compensation and hts 30 credited years of service, the annual estimated benefits
payable under the Carrival Corporation Retirement Plan to Mr Anson at age 65 would be a life annuity
(five-year certain benefit) $141,784 or a lump sum of $1,092,285 The Carnival Corporation Retirement
Plan does not reduce benefits on account of Social Security (or any other benefit), other than as reflected
in the benefit formula which 1s integrated with Social Secunty
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Carnival plc

Mr Ratchiffe 1s entitled to receive retirement benefits from the P&O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme,
a UK Inland Revenue registered defined benefit scheme, fulure accrual of which ceased eifective
April 5, 2006 He also receives retirement benefits under the Princess Cruises Chiet Executive Otficer
Supplemental Executive Retvement Plan, a U S unfunded plan, under which Mr Raicliffe receives the
same retirement benefits he would have recewved under the P&0 Princess Cruises Pension Scheme had
his benefits continued to accrue  Any payments under this plan are reduced by payments received under
the P&O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme These benefits include a pre-retirement death benefit

Mr Ratcliffe 1s entitled to receive a retirement benefit equivalent to 1/60th of final salary for hus first 17
years of service plus 1/45th of final salary per year of service thereafter Final salary means Mr Ratchiffe’s
base salary (excluding bonus and other items) during hts final 12 months of employment Upon reaching
the age of 60, Mr Ratchffe 1s ehgible to receive unreduced benefits commencing at retirement  The
benefit will be actuanally reduced if reirement occurs pnor to age 60 The normal form of benefit1s an
annuity payable for the ife of Mr Ratchiffe with a reduced survivor benefit for his spouse  If there 1s no
surviving spouse, Mr Ratchife may designate an alternate beneficiary for a lump sum payment, subject
to plan hmits  Upon retirement, the benefit 1s subject to an annual cost-of-iving adjustment not to exceed
5% Based on Mr Ratclifie’s 36 years of credited service and salary through November 30, 2006, his
unreduced annual pension benefit1s $853,730

Additional information with respect to pension plan arrangements for Carnival plc for the financial year
ended November 30, 2006 1s included in Part | of the Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report
included n this proxy statement as the Report of the Compensation Committees and Part Il of the
Carnival plc Directors' Remuneration Report, which i1s attached as Annex B to this proxy statement
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REPORT OF THE COCMPENSATION COMMITTEES
and
CARNIVAL PLC DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT - PART

INTRODUCTION

Carnival Corporahon and Carnival pic are subject to disclosure regimes in both the U S and UK While
some of the disclosure requirements are the same or similar, some are very different  As a result, the
Carnival plc Directors’ Remuneration Report 1s in two parts The information contained in this Part |
also constitutes the Report of the Compensation Committees as required by regulations promulgated by
the US Secunties and Exchange Commission, and includes information that Carruval plc 1s required to
disclose In accordance with the UK Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 incorporated into
the UK Companies Act 1885 (the “DRR Regulations™ Part Il of the Carnival pic Directors’ Remuneration
Report 1s set forth as Annex B to this proxy statement and includes the addihonal information that
Carmval plc 1s required to disclose 1n accordance with the DRR Regulations, including information which
has been audited

Parts | and Il of the Carmval plc Directors’ Remuneration Report have been drafted in complance
with the DRR Regulations, the July 2003 Combined Code on Corporate Governance {the “Combined
Code"), the UK Companies Act 1985 and the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonty Both Paris | and
Il form part of the audited consolidated financial statements of Carnival plc for the financial year ended
November 30, 20086

GENERAL

Carnival Corporation and Carmnival plc are separate legal entiies (together referred to in this report as
“Camival Corporation & plc”) and each company has its own board of directors and Compensation
Committee However, as 15 required by the agreements governing the dual Iisted company structure,
the boards of directors and members of the committees of the boards, including the Compensation
Committees, are identical and there 1s a single management team

The Compensation Committees determine the compensation policy and the compensation payable to
the outside directors and executive officers of Carnival Corporation & plc, including annual performance
related bonuses and awards of share options, restricted shares and restncted share units under incentive
plans Compensation of the executive officers s determined following consultation with the Chairman/
CEQ of Camival Corporation & plc

The current membership of the Compensation Committees consists of three members who are deemed
independent by the boards of directors  The members of the Compensation Commitiees are appointed
by the boards based on the recommendations of the Nominating & Governance Commuttees Dunng
2006, the membership of the Compensation Commuttees changed with Modesto A Maidique (Chairman)
and Sy John Parker serving on the Compensation Commitiees through July 1, 2006 Arnold W Donald
(as Chairman) and Baroness Sarah Hogg joined the Compensation Committees on July 1, 2006
Richard J Glasier served on the Compensation Committees for all of 2006

The Compensatton Committees maintain an annual calendar with regularly scheduled agenda rtems and
tasks as well as those items and tasks added as necessary The Compensation Committees generally
schedule four in-person meetings per year with telephonic meetings scheduled as necessary Dunng
2008, the Compensation Committees held four in-person meetings and three telephonic meetings

Since 2003, the Compensation Committees have engaged Watson Wyatt Worldwide (the “Consultant”)
as ther compensation consultant The Compensation Committees penodically have also recewved
advice and assistance from other external legal, accounting and tax adwsors The Compensation
Committees interact with management of Carnival Corporation & plc on remuneration issues pnimartly
through communications, meetings and discussions with the Chairman/CEQ and the Vice Charrman/
COO, who also attend meetings as requested by the Compensation Commuttees Matenals for review
by the Compensation Committees and agenda items for commuittee meetings are developed through a
collaborative process involving the Chairman of the Compensation Committees, the Consultant, and
senior executive officers of Carnival Corperation & pic
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The Consultant attends all meetings of the Compensation Committees The Compensation Committees
have requested that management of Carnival Corporation & ple provide the Consultant with advance
notice, including all relevant matenals, of all recommendations to be made by managament to the
Compensation Committees The Consultant reviews all such recommendations made by management
and provides Its views on such proposed actions to the Compensation Committees for their consideration
From time to time, the Chairman of the Compensation Commitiees will comrmunicate with the Consuitant
between scheduled meetings to address specific questions and/or provide instructions to the Consultant
with respect to items to be discussed at future meetings

The Consultant also prowides actuanal advice and admnistrative services to Carnival plc in relation
to the UK pension schemes and advice on share incentive plans to Carruval Corporation and Carnival

plc

GLOBAL PERSPECTIVE

Carnival Corporation & plc 1s a global entity and 1s a dual histed company (US and UK) Most of the
executive officers of Carnival Corporation & plc and other senior managers of Carnival Corporation &
pic are located in the U S, with others pnmanly based in Europe As a global entity, 1t 1s challenging
to establish consistent compensation practices across geographic and corporate lines that satisfy the
particular requirements of all junsdichons Since the largest presence of executives 1s in the U S, our
compensation pohicies pnmartly reflect U S market practices  Howsver, the Compensation Committees
seek to incorporate UK compensation principles, including those contained in the Combined Code, as
far as practicable, unless the application of those principles would be uncompetitive in the U S or other
markets, or would restnct Carnival Corporation & pic’s ability to transfer executives between operating
unis

To the extent possible, Carnival Corporation & plc tallors the design and operation of remuneration
programs to the needs and business 1ssues specific to each operating unit  While some consistent
pnnciples apply to incentive programs at all operating units, such as the importance of achieving
profitable growth and expected returns on invested caprtal, the specific methodology used to determine
earned incentive bonuses vanes by operating unit

OVERALL PHILOSOPHY AND OBJECTIVES

Compensation arrangements for the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table (the
“NEQs") are determined on an individual basis in order to ensure recruitment and retention of candidates
with the necessary expenence and skill, taking account of their individual compensation history, as well
as local geographical market factors

The objectives of the Compensation Committees with respect to executive remuneration for 2006 and
subsequent financial years are to create executive compensation packages that are competitive with
compensation payable by a comparable group of US peer companies, as well as to provide both
short-term rewards and long-term incentives for positive individual and corporate performances The
Compensation Committees are provided market data for each executive officer that indicates the med:an
and 75th percentile for total compensation and each element of compensation {including base salary,
annual bonus and equity-based compensation) and the typical mix of compensation in the market The
Compensation Committees then consider other factors in establishing each executive’s compensation
package, including financial and operating results and individual performance The Compensation
Committees’ philosophy I1s to place more emphasis on the vanable elements of compensation, such as
the cash bonus and equity-based compensation, as compared to typical market practice

The main components of remuneration for executives, and where applicable, the performance critena on
which they are based, are set out below The principles applied by the Compensation Committees are
that a fugh proportion of the total remuneration package o semor executives will be delivered through
performance-related rewards in the form of performance-related cash bonuses and equity-based
incentive awards The equity-based incentive plans are designed to align the Interests of participants
with those of the shareholders and to support retention of the senior executives Thes 1s accomplished
through vesting schedules for equity-based awards that provide for pro rata vesting of equity-based
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awards over five years or chff vesting after three or five years The Compensation Commitiees seek to
ensure that the operation of the plans in practice 1s consistent with their overall objectives, recommending
changes to achieve this If necessary

PROCESS FOR MAKING COMPENSATION DETERMINATIONS

Thecompensation forthe Chairman/CEO andthe Vice Chairman/COQ s determined by the Compensation
Committees using ther full discretion to evaluate ther individual performance and the overall
performance of Carnival Corporation & plc  The other NEOs have individual employment agreements or
compensation agreements that dictate the general terms of portions of their remuneration As part of the
annual compensation determination process, the Chairman/CEQ and the Vice Chairman/CQQ prepare
a memorandum tor the Compensation Committees that outiines key inttiatives and goals for Carntval
Corporation & plc at the beginning of each year After the fiscal year is complete, the Chairman/CEQ
and Vice Chairman/COOQ prepare another memorandum for the Compensation Committees discussing
the results of those initiatives, progress towards goals and other matenal items refating to overall
Carnival Corporation & plc performance The Compensation Committees then determine individual
compensation amounts after consideration of the performance results, hustorical compensation, external
market references and other information they may deem relevant

External market references are established based on an annual benchmarking study conducted by the
Consultant The benchmarking study consists of an analysis of top officer pay at a group of publicly
Iisted peer companies The peer group s based on U S publicly Iisted comparues that are comparable
in size to Carnival Corporation & plc and operate in the entertainment, hospitality and diversiied media
industries The companies in the peer group are recommended by the Consultant and approved by the
Compensation Committees before the benchmarking study commences

In addition to the individual officer market-based assessment, the peer group 15 used to benchmark
executive remuneration program design features, aggregate equity-based compensation plan costs,
compensation of outside directors, and Carnival Corporation & ple’s performance in several key financial
metrics reflected in Carnival Corporation & plc’'s compensation programs  For the 2006 market review,
14 U S publicly isted companies were included in the peer group as follows

Cablevision Systems Corporation
Clear Channel Commurucations, Inc
Harrah's Entertainment, inc

Hilton Hotels Corporation
IAC/InterActiveCorp

Liberty Media Corporation

Marriott International Inc

MGM Mirage

News Corporation

Royal Carbbean Cruises Ltd
Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc
The BIRECTTV Group, Inc

The Walt Disney Company

Viacom Inc

Carnival Corporation & plc ranked in the upper quartle along general business comparative data such
as employees, revenues, operating income, operating margin, return on invested capidal, revenue and
profit growth rates and equity market value Shareholder returns over the prior year and three- and five-
year periods are also reviewed and compared to peer companies and major market indices

In addition, the Consultant develops markst references for all the Indvidual executive positions reviewed
by the Compensation Committees using benchmark data from published compensgation surveys

Internal companson information 15 also provided to the Compensation Commitiees as well as historical
compensabondata Inrecentyears, the Compensation Committees have regularly reviewed a “Summary
of Employment Terms and Conditrons” for each NEO that outlines employment terms and summarizes
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hisfher current remuneration arrangements  Dunng 2006, the Compensation Commutiees reviewed more
detailed “tally sheets” for each NEO that quantified the value of each remuneration element received and
provided a three-year history of each officer's compensaton

COMPENSATION PROGRAM DESIGN AND ELEMENTS

For the NEOs and other senior officers, the pnmary ongoing compensation elements constst of base
salary, an annual bonus, annual equity-based awards, pensions, benefits and perquisites Bonus
programs, benefits and perquisite plans and certain elements of the equity-based awards vary among
the operating units of Carnival Corporation & plc reflecting local market practices

Carmival Corporation & plc's business strategy gives the chief executive officer of each operating unit
a greater degree of responsibiity and autonomy as compared to more centralized companies This
results in Camival Corporation & plc providing these executives a leve! of compensation opportunity that
15 huigher than typical market practice for business unit executives and a program design involving more
perfiormance-based leverage

Base Salaries

A General

Satanes are intended to provide a baseline level of fixed compensation that reflects an officer's level of
responsibiiity The employment agreements of Messrs Foschi and Ratcliffe set forth their base salanes
of €872,00C and $1,100,000, respechvely Such amounts represent the mimimum satarnies payable {0
the two executives and the Compensation Committees review their performance each year to determine
whether ligher salanes are menited by performance or other factors

Salanes are established for senior management personnel dunng the first quarter of the fiscal year The
Chairman/CEQO and the Vice Chairman/COQ review the most recent market-based assessment and
provide the Compensation Committees with recommended salanes for all executive officers, including
the NEOs The recommendations include a capsule review of each officer's individual performance and
highiight various considerations in developing the proposed salaries

The Compensation Committees determine salaries for the Chairman/CEO and the Vice Chairman/COO
using a similar process, although the Compensation Commuttees may also request recommendations
from the Consultant

B 2006 Salaries

For the NEOs, salaries in 2006 increased by an average of approximately 5 3% The Compensation
Committees increased the Chairman/CEQ’s salary by 8 25% and the Vice Charman/COO’s salary by
714% for 2006 Consistent with histoncal practice, the Vice Chairman/COQ's salary was set at $100,000
below the Chairman/CEO's salary The Compensation Commitiees made these determinations after
discussing the performance and results of Carnival Corporation & plc and the individual performance of
both executives The market studies reviewed by the Compensation Committees indicated that the 2006
salanes for both the Chairman/CEO and the Vice Chairman/COO were below the median salanes for
executives in comparable roles at other public companies that are similar in size and scope to Carnival
Corporation & plc

The Chairman/CEO and Vice Chairman/COO recommended salary increases for 2006 for the other
NEOs as follows 3% for Robert Dickinson, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Carnival Cruise
Lines division of Carmival Corporation, 5% for Pier Luigi Foschi, Chief Executive Officer of Costa Crociere
S p A (“Costa”), and 5% for Peter Ratcliffe, Chief Executive Officer of P&O Princess Cruises International
These recommendations were consistent with 20086 salary increases provided to other executives at
each operating unit whose salanes were considered to be within range of competitive practice and
whose individual performance was deemed to be satisfactory After reviewing performance results
for each operating unit and discussing the individual performance of each officer, the Compensation
Committees approved the recommended salanes for 2006
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Bonuses

A General

The performance-refated annual bonus is the most important cash compensation feature of executive
compensation as a reward for contnbutions made fowards achieving the goals of Carnival Corporation &
plc, including profitability  Annual bonus payments are intended to reward positive short-term individual
and corporate performance The emphasts on the annua!l discretionary bonus for the members of senior
management allows Carnival Corporation & plc greater flexibiity in rewarding favorable individual and
corporate performance than 1s possible under a salary-orented structure

Annual bonuses fo the NEOs m charge of operating units are based on the financial performance of their
respechive operating units

The Compensation Committees determined the bonuses for the NEOs for 2006 on the basis set out n
the table below

Director

Micky Arison
Chiet Executive Officer of Carnival Corporation & pic

Robert H Dickinson
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Carnival
Cruise Lines dmsion of Carnival Corporation

Pier Luigt Foschi
Chief Executive Officer of Costa

Howard S Frank
Chief Operating Officer of Carmival Corporation & ple

Peter G Ratcliffe
Chief Executive Officer of PRO Princess Cruises
Internaticnal

Performance measure

Based on Carnival Corporation & plc's net income,
eamings per share, return on invested capital

and cost containment In addition, the indvidual
performance of the executive In achieving agreed
tactical and strategic imitiatives is considered

Based pnmarily on return on invested caprtal of
Carnival Cruise Lines compared o certain pre-
determined levels pursuant to the terms of the
Carmival Cruise Lines Management Incentive Plan
{the “CCL MIP")

Guaranteed base bonus of £€669,000, plus additional
amounts based on the compounded year-over-year
percentage increases In consolidated net income of
Costa from the base year {imred to an increase of
20% per year)

Based on Carmival Corporation & plc's net income,
earnings per share, return on invested capital,

and cost containment In addition, the ndividual
performance of the executive i achieving agreed
tactica! and strategic iniatives 1s considered

Based on a percentage of net ncome of the
following brands Cunard Line, Ocean Village,
P&O Cruises, P&0O Cruises (Australia), P&O Travel,
Princess Cruises, Princess Tours and Swan
Hellenic

The financial performance crtena relative to each operating unit are designed to be competitive in the
markets where those businesses operate and, with the exception of the financial performance cntena
applying to bonuses under the CCL MIP adopted in 2005 for Camval Cruise Lines, are those that have
been applied historicaily in those businesses

B 2006 Bonuses

Based on their applicable performance measures and after consideration of market pay data provided
by the Consultant, the Compensation Commuttees determuined bonuses for 2006 of $2,600,000 and
$2,500,000 to the Charrman/CEO and the Vice Chairman/COQ, respectively The bonuses were reduced
from those earned for 2005, primariy 1n recognitton that 2006 earnings results reflected only a modest
Increase over the prior year and were below the 2006 goal for Carnival Corporation & plc  Financial and
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operating performance results in other measurement areas were mixed, with return on investment being
unchanged from 2005 and operating yields being below expectations even though cost containment
goals were achieved Specific objectives relating to strategic iniiatives were successfully achieved
during 2006 In reviewing overall performance results for 2006, the Compensation Committees noted
that the goals established at the beginning of the year reflected strong earnings growth and operating
results during the previous two fiscal years and that 2006 financial results were impacted by increased
fuel prices and softer than antictpated demand for Canbbean crutses

Mr Dickinson's annual bonus 1s based on the CCL MIP that includes other top management employees
of Camival Crurse Lines  The level of bonuses under the CCL MIP ts primarily determined by the return
on invested capital compared to certain predetermined levels pursuant to the terms of the CCL MIP, as
opposed to net income The CCL MIP 15 intended to reward prudent capital investment and resultant
figh retum  The CCL MIP generates a bonus pool and bonuses for individual participants reflect their
allocated portion of the overall pool

For 2006, Mr Dickinson’s bonus of $1,118,661 reflected his share of the total bonus pool pursuant to
the CCL MIP Mr Dickinson's 2006 bonus was 28 3% lower as compared to his earned bonus for 2005
This change reflected reduced return on invested capital by Carnival Crutse Lines in 2006 as compared
to 2005

The annual bonus for Mr Ratcliffe 1s determined by is employment agreement and 15 equal to a
specified percentage of net Income of the brands for which he was responsible during the fiscal year
Mr Ratcliffe’s bonus for 2006 increased by $65,000 from 2005 reflecting profit improvement by the
operating units under his direction  As with other P&O Cruises executives, half of hits earned bonus 1s
payable in Carnival plc shares that are deferred tor three years and subject to forteriture while deferred
Pursuant to the terms of this scheme, Mr Ratcliffe was eligible for additional matching shares refated to
deferred shares i1ssued in connection with banuses for fiscal years through 2002

During 2008, Mr Ratcliffe received a matching award of 13,732 Carnival plc shares upon the distribution
of the matching award and accumulated dividend under the Carmival pic Deferred Bonus and Co-
investment Matching Plan (the “Deferred Bonus Pian") in respect of the bonus issued to him in 2003
These shares were awarded in February 2006 following attainment of the earnings per share growth
requirement for shares of Carnival Corporation & pl¢ for the three-year period ended on November 30,
2005 Mr Ratchiffe 15 the only NEO who participates in the Deferred Bonus Plan

Mr Foschi's bonus is payable in Euros For the purpose of transtating his 2006 bonus to U S dollars, we
have used an exchange rate of €1 $1 30, being the exchange rate on the date his bonus was approved
by the Compensation Committees The annual bonus for Mr Foschi 1s determined by his service
agreement and includes a guaranteed base amount of €669,000 plus additional amounts based on
the compounded year-over-year percentage increases n the consolidated net imcome (as defined In
the service agreement) of Costa from the base year The service agreement prowides that the bonus
increase will be limited to 20% per year Mr Foschr's bonus for 2006 increased by approximately
€156,000 to €958,899 (or $1,246,569) reflecting positive earnings performance by Costa in 2006 and
the unpard carryover from the 2005 bonus which exceeded the cumulative 20% limit

Long-Term Incentive Plans

A General

The equity-based incentive plans of Carnival Corporation & pic are intended to provide executives with
longer-term incentives In the form of share options, restncted share awards and restnicted share unit
awards, which appreciate in value with continued favorable future performance of Carnival Corporation
& plc The purpose of the plans 1s to create incentives by providing an opportunity to senior employees
who are important to the success and growth of the business of Carnival Corporation & pic to own either
Carmival Corporation common stock or Carrival plc ordinary shares

The Compensation Commuttees’ policy 1s to make grants of share options, restnicted share awards and
restncted share units that generally will accord with the histonical practice of each operating unit and
as necessary to maintain competitiveness in the local employment market Given that approximately
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94% of annual share option awards are made to Carmval Corporation & plc executives located outstde
the UK, the Compensation Commitiees have determined that, from a business standpoint, 1t would be
difficult to fully adopt UK best practice relating to share options

Accordingly, in hne with market practice in the U S, the terms of the various equity-based plans of
Carnival Corporation & plc, details of which are descnbed below, do not include the UK Combined
Code requirement that corporate performance conditions be apphed to the vesting of share ophions,
restncted share awards and restncted share unit awards The applcation of performance conditions s
entirely within the discretion of the Compensation Committees The only exception is that perfermance
conditions continue to apply to the matching shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan descnbed below

The UK Combined Code provides that share awards to executive directors should not vest, and share
ophons should not be exercisable, 1n less than three years The terms of the Carnival Corporation
2002 Stock Plan and the Carmival plc 2005 Employee Share Plan give flexability to the Compensation
Committees to determine the vesting schedule applicable to share options, restncted share awards and
restncted share umit awards

The UK Combined Code also provides that awards under all incentive plans should be subject to
challenging performance critena reflecuing Carnival Corporation & plc’s objectives  In accordance
with US practice and consistent with histoncal prachce in relation to the equity-based plans, the
Compensation Committees have discretion to deterrmuine whether the grant or vesting of share options,
restricted share awards and restricted share unit awards under the plans will be subject to performance
targets In determining whether performance targets shall apply, the Compensation Committees have
regard to the local practice in the country in which the participant 1s based

The Chairman/CEQ and the Vice Chairman/COQ of Camival Corporation & ple and the CEC of Carnival
Cruise Lines receive the annual grants of shares options and restricted shares specified in ther
individual Executive Long-Term Compensahon Agreements These grants are subject to determination
of saiisfactory performance by the Compensation Commitiees taking into consideration the long-term
contnbutions of these individuals  Mr Ratcliffe’s employment agreement sets forth the number of share
ophtions issuable to him by Carnmival Corporation & plc on an annual basis  The annual grants of share
ophons and restricted share unit awards to Mr Foschi, as well as the annual grants of restricted share unit
awards to Mr Ratcliffe, are approved at the discretion of the Compensation Committees Dunng 20086,
the Compensation Committees received wntten performance assessments for the NEOs in approving
their grants For grants to the Chairman/CEQO, the Compensation Commuittees also considered the
results of hus annual performance apprarsal conducted by the full boards of directors

Recommended equity-based awards for other executives and participating employees at Holland
Amernca Line, Prnincess Cruises, Costa, Cunard Line, Carnival UK and P&0O Cruises (Australia) are
submitted for approval of the Compensation Committees in February of each year Recommended
equity-based awards for other executives and participating employees at Carnival Corporation, Carnwval
Cruise Lines and Seabourn Cruise Line are submitted for approval of the Compensation Commitiees
in October of each year The dates of the Compensaton Committees’ meetings for approval of equity-
based awards are generally scheduled at least one year in advance

The aggregate annual far value of equity-based awards made by Carnival Corporation & plc (including
awards made to other employees in addition o the officers and directors) 1s below the medan of the
peer group and 1s below the peer group 25th percentle when considered as a percentage of total
equity market value, revenues or operating income For the NEOs, overall grant values are estimated
to approximate the market median although the market positoning of awards to each officer vanes with
some being below and others being above the median This 15 consistent with Carnival Corporation &
plc’s philosophy that market references are just one of many factors considered in making indvdual
compensation determinations

In 2006, sentor management at each operating unit was asked for a preference as to the form of equity-
based awards for their participants (1e share options, restrncted share awards or restrncted share unit
awards) based on theirr respective business and human capital strategies, as well as other company-
specific considerations In addition, the preferences reflect relevant tax, accounting and regulatery
considerations specific 1o each operating unit Based on these preferences, in February 2006 the
Compensation Committees approved recommended awards of restncted share units 1o plan participants
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at Pnncess Crunses, Cunard Ling, Carmival UK, Carnival Austraha and Holland Amenca Line and grants
of share options to pfan participants at Costa In 2006, employees of Carmival Corporation, Carnival
Cruise Lines, Seabourn Crutse Line and certain UK-based employees conhinued to recerve their equity-
based awards in the form of share options

Beginning with awards made in October 2005, Carnivat Cerporatton & plc reduced the term of share
options granted to employees from ien years to seven years This decision in part reflected the
anticipated change in accounting standards applicable to share options  The Compensation Committees
believe that the term reduchon resulted in a relatively lower expense relating to share options without a
corresponding dimimishment in perceived value to option share recipients

In accordance with the terms of Carmval Corporation 2002 Stock Plan and the Carnival ple 2005
Employee Share Plan, the exercise price of options over Carnival Corporation common stock granted
during 2006 1s equal to the average of the highest and lowest sale prices reported as having occurred
on New York Stock Exchange on the date of the grant and the exercise price of options cver Carnival plc
ordinary shares 1S equal to the closing middie market quotation as denved from the Daily Official List of
the London Stock Exchange on the date of the grant

B Description of Long-Term incenbive Plans

The long-term incentive plans under which annual awards are made by Carnival Corporation & plc are
as foliows

1 Deferred Bonus Plan,
2 Carmval Corporation 2002 Stock Plan, and
3 Carnival plc 20605 Employee Share Plan

1 Deferred Benus Plan

Mr Ratchffe, the only participating NEQ, and other senior executives of Princess Cruises and P&O
Cruises, participate in the Deferred Bonus Plan Under the Deferred Bonus Plan, a percentage of
each participant’s annual bonus 1s mandatorily delivered in the form of Carnival plc share awards that
are retained in a trust for a three-year period Dunng this period, participants in the plan have no nght
to vote the shares The level of mandatory deferral for Mr Ratchffe in 2006 was 50% of his annual
bonus In addition, participants may be granted a matching award in respect of Carnival pic shares
However, since April 17, 2003, Mr Ratcliffe has not received any matching awards and no longer holds
any matching awards

2 Carnival Corporation 2002 Stock Plan {the “2002 Stock Plan™)

Under the 2002 Stock Plan, the Carnival Corporation Compensation Committee may 1ssue share options,
restncted shares and restricted share umis 1o selected employees, directors, consultants and advisors
who are important to the success of Carnival Corporation & plc  Generally, awards under the 2002
Stock Plan are made to participants employed by Carnival Corporation, Carnival Cruise Lines, Princess
Cruises, Holland Amenca Line and Seabourn Crutse Line The Carnival Corporation Compensation
Commuttee has the discretion to determine the persons to whom awards are granted, the type of award,
the number of shares to be covered by each award and, with respect to options, the exercise price

Share options

Share options are generally granted at an exercise price at market value and vest according to a
schedule set by the Compensation Committees with an expiration date not more than ten years after
the date of the grant Share ophions awarded to the NEOs dunng 20086 vest in equal instaliments
over a five-year period beginning one year from the date of grant and expire seven years after the
grant date
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Restricted shares and restricted share units

The grant or the vesting of an award of restncted shares and restricted share units may be made
conditional upon service to a member of Carmnival Corporation & plc or any of its affiliates or the
attammert of performance goals or other facters Generally, restricted shares and restncted
share units awarded to the NEOs outstanding at November 30, 2006 vest five years from the date
of grant Holders of restricted share awards have all of the nghts of a shareholder of Carnival
Corpoeration, iIncluding the night to vote, but holders of restricted share units awards do not have
such nghts The Compensation Committees have discretion to determine whether dividends with
respect to restricted shares will be pad to the participant or withheld by Carnival Corporation and
credited upon release, and interest may be credited on such dividends at a rate determined by
the Compensation Committees |f the restricted shares are forfeited, the pariicipant also forfeits
hus or her nght to any dividends attnbutable The Compensation Commuttees have discretion to
determine whether dividend equivalents with respect to restricted share units (being equal to cash
and share divwdends on the shares represented by the restncted share units) will be pard to the
participant or withheld by Camival Corporation, whether interest may be credited on such dividend
equivalents at a rate determined by the Compensation Comnutiees, as well as whether the award
will be settled in cash or by shares |f the restncted share units are forfeited, the participant also
forfeits hus or her nght to any dwvidend equivalents attributable

For compensahon policy purposes, because restricted share awards and restncted share units
may only be forfeited In lirmited circumstances, they are regarded as remuneration for the year of
award

3 Carnwval ple 2005 Employee Share Plan (the “PLC Share Plan™

The PLC Share Plan 1s designed for maximum flexibility as to the types of options and other share awards
that may be granted to employees and executives The PLC Share Plan allows the Compensation
Committees to tailor equity-based compensation polictes for the various operating companies under
Carnival pic that are competitive in their respective employment markets, as well as strengthen Carnival
plc's ability to recruit and retain talented employees and more closely align their interests with those of
shareholders The Compensation Committees are aware that the terms of the PLC Share Plan are not
wholly consislent with UK practices, but consider it hughly relevant that approximately 94% of the annual
awards made to executives of Carnival Corporation & plc under the share based plans of Carnival
Corporation & plc are made to executives located outside of the UK

Employees of Costa, P&O Cruises, P&C Cruises (Australia), AIDA Cruises and other Carnival UK
employees participate in the PLC Share Plan at the discretion of the Compensation Committees, however
awards are granted primarily to management (including the NEQs)

The Compensation Committees may award share ophons, restricted share awards or restricted share
unit awards separately, or in any combination that the Compensation Committees decides The value
of an award to be granted to any indiviclual will be determined taking inte account an individual’s present
and potential contnibution to the success of Carnival Corporation & plc and the market practice for
companies with global operations in the country where the participants are based While the PLC
Share Plan does not place an individual hmit on the value of equity-based awards that may be granted
to the participants in any year, the Compensation Committees are guided by the compensation policy
described above

Share options

The terms and conditions under which options are granted generally mirror those of the Carnival
Corporation 2002 Stock Plan described above with the exception that options may also be awarded
over American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”), each representing one ordinary share of Carnival plc,
where approprate for U S -based executives

Restricted shares and restricted share units

The terms and conditions under which restricted shares and restricted share umits are awarded,
mirror those of the 2002 Stock Plan descnbed above
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C Equity-Based Awards for Fiscal 2006

In July 2008, after consultation with the Chairman/CEC and the Vice Charrman/CQOQ as to the satisfactory
performance of Mr Dickinson in fiscal 2006, the Compensation Committees approved grants of 80,000
share options and 40,000 restricted shares under the 2002 Stock Plan to Mr Dickinson on August 1,
2006 pursuant to his Executive Long-Term Compensation Agreement

in October 20086, the Compensation Commuittees approved grants of 120,000 share options to Mr Anson
and 100,000 share options to Mr Frank under the 2002 Stock Plan pursuant to their respective Executive
Long-Term Compensation Agreements The Compensation Committees consulted with the Chairman/
CEO with respect to the grant to Mr Frank

In January 2007, the Compensation Committees approved grants of 60,000 restnicted shares to Mr
Anson and grants of 50,000 restncted shares to Mr Frank under the 2002 Stock Plan pursuant to their
respective Executive Long-Term Compensation Agreements in recognition of their performance during
2006

Mr Ratchffe’s employment agreement provides for an annual grant of 50,000 share options to him,
contingent upon satisfactory performance In February 2007, the Compensation Committees considered
the performance of the operating units directed by Mr Ratchffe in fiscal 2006 and approved the annual
grant of 50,000 share options to Mr Ratchffe In February 2007, the Compensation Commitiees also
approved a discretionary grant to Mr Ratcliffe of 10,000 restncted share units as additional compensation
for his positive contributions in 2008, which included support of various corporate-wide initiatives

In February 2007, the Compensation Commuittees considered the performance of the operating units
directed by Mr Faschi and approved discretionary grants to Mr Foschi of 50,000 share options and
10,000 restricted share units {under the PLC Share Plan) These grants were made to reward Mr
Foschr’s efforts 1n 2006

Perquisites

Members of senior management of Carnival Corporation & plc, inctuding the NEOs, are provided
various perquisites believed to be representative of common practices for executives in their respective
countnes Some perquisites and fringe benefits are provided pursuant to terms inindiviidual employment
agreements The Compensation Committees have reviewed perquisite expenditures by the NEQs and
believe the perquisites continue to be an important element of the overall compensation package used
to retain such officers

In February 20086, the Compensation Committees approved a policy to establish procedures and controls
as to the authonzed use of arcraft owned or chartered by Carnival Corporation & plc {the “Aircraft”)
According to the policy, the Aircraft can only be used for business purposes, except that our Chairman/
CEO and Vice Chairman/COOQ (with the authorization of the Chairman/CEQ) are authornized to use the
Arrcraft for personal travel  Spouses may accompany these executives when fraveling Because there
15 no incremental cost for this benefit, no amount 1s allocated for a spouse’s travel in the Summary
Compensation Table Personal use of the Awrcraft 1s required to be reported in our proxy statement and
will be taxable, as appropnate
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POST-EMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION OBLIGATIONS

Employment Agreements or Service Contracts

It 1s the policy of the Compensation Commuttees for executive officers to have notice penods, if any,
of not more than 12 months n duraton Following U S accepted prachce on remuneration as stated
above, the policy of the Compensation Committees has been not o enter into service contracts with U S
executives, but to enter into individual compensation arrangements  The Compensation Committees
will continue to have regard to the individual circumstances of each case taking account of best practice
in the UK and the US and the expected cost o Carnival Corporation & plc of any termination of an
executive’s empioyment arrangements Details of individual termination arrangements for the NEOs are
set out below

Effective date of Unexpired term of contract Compensation for
NEO service contract  from November 30, 2006  Notice penod loss of office
Micky Arison None!? None None None
Howard S Frank Noneg® None Nong None
Robert H Dickinson None!t None None None
Pier Luigl Foschi Dec 1, 2004 12 months 12 months  1x annual base
salary and bonus
Peter G Ratcliffe April 17, Term continues until 12 months  1x annual base
20032 termination of contract salary and bonus

(1) Messrs Anson, Frank and Dickimson only have Executive Long-Term Compensation Agreements Nothing in those
agreemenis confers a nght 1o be employed by Carruvat Corporation and no nolice penod 1o terminale the agreemenis
applies

{2} Amendedon July 19, 2004

In accordance with U S practice, Mr Anson, Mr Frank and Mr Dickinson have no employment or
service contract and no entitlement to severance except for retention of unvested options and restricted
share awards Only Mr Foschi and Mr Ratchfie have employment agreements or service contracts
In ine with U S practice, the annual bonus forms part of the severance for Mr Ratcliffe and Mr Foschi

Vesting of share options, restricted share awards and restricted share urif awards on termination of a
NEOQs contract i1s dependent upon the reasons the contract 1s terminated Under the PLC Share Plan and
2002 Stock Plan, all share options and share awards, not vested at the time of termination, will lapse with
the exception of retirement In the case of retirement, depending on the director's years of service and
age, the options will vest according to the vesting schedule In the case ofthe Deferred Bonus Plan, share
awards are generally subject to the prowisions of the ptan until the end of the retention period However,
upon resignation, all share awards will lapse Share awards granted within 12 months immed:ately prior
to termination are exercisable within three months from termination The aforementioned applies unless
the Compensation Committees determine otherwise

if Mr Ratchite’s employment agreement 1s terminated by Carnwal plc without “cause” or is terminated by
Mr Ratchiffe with “good reason” (as such terms are defined in the employment agreement}, Mr Ratchffe
Is entitled to compensation of base salary, a bonus equal to the bonus paid the year pnor to termmation
and certain other benehits unless Mr Raicliffe becomes eligible for similar benefits from another employer
pnior to expiration of 12 months from the date of termination  If Mr Ratchiffe’s employment s terminated
for cause, Mr Ratchite terminates the employment agreement without good reason or Mr Ratclifie
materially breaches the non-disclosure or intellectual property provisions of the employment agreement,
no additional compensation 1s due In the event of termination for reasons other than for cause, Mr
Ratcliffe retains hus share awards and matching awards for the full retention period, subject to certan
exceptions
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If Mr Foschi’s agreement 1s terminated by Costa for reasons other than Mr Foschi’s breach of hus
obhgations under the agreement or because Mr Foschi is revoked as a director of Costa for cause,
or if Mr Foschs resigns with cause under ltahan law or as a result of a change of control of Costa, Mr
Foschi 1s entitled to a termination payment equal to his annual base salary, the annual non-competition
compensation specified in his agreement and a bonus equal to the bonus paid the year pnor to termtnation
(unless in the case of a change of control an alternative contractual arrangement is entered into with the
new centrolling group)

Pensions

Carmival Corporation & pic operates various group pension schemes for its executives in which the
NEOs also participate  Under the Camival plc pension schemes, retirement benefits are based solely on
base salary and no other emoluments are pensionable in line with UK best practice Under the Carnval
Corporation schemes, cash bonuses form part of pensionable earnings i addition to base salary

Mr Anson, Mr Dickinsen and Mr Frank participate in the Carnival Corporation Nonqualified Retirement
Plan for Highly Compensated Employees as disclosed under the section entitfed “Defined Benefit and
Other Plans” in the proxy statement Messrs Dickinson and Frank also participate in the Carnival
Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as also descnbed under that section  Each of the
Carnival Corporation Nonqualified Retirement Plan for Highly Compensated Employees and the Carnival
Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan provides a reduced early retirement benefit at
age 55 after completion of 15 years of service  Carmval Corpoeration has also established the Carnival
Corporatron Fun Ship Nonquahfied Savings Plan, which 1s a nonqualified defined contribution plan  Mr
Dickinsen and Mr Frank pay certain deferred bonus amounts into the Carnival Corporation Fun Ship
Nonqualfied Savings Plan No company contnbutions are made on their behalf into this plan

Mr Ratcliffe 1s entitled to receive retirement benefits from the P&0O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme,
a UK Inland Revenue registered defined benefit scheme, future accrual of which ceased effechive
April 5, 2006 He also receives retirement benefits under the Pnncess Cruises Chief Executive Officer
Supplemental Executive Retirernent Plan, a U S unfunded plan, under which Mr Ratcliffe receives the
same retirement benefits he would have received under the P&O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme
had his benefits continued to accrue Any payments under this plan are reduced by payments receved
under the P&O Princess Cruises Pension Scheme These benehts include a pre-retirement death
beneit Upon reaching the age oif 60, Mr Ratchife 1s eligible o receive unreduced benefits commencing
at retirement The beneht will be actuanally reduced if retirement occurs pnor to age 60 Mr Ratchffe
ts also a member of the Pnncess Crutses Retirement Savings Plan in the U S, which i1s a defined-
contribution 401(k) plan

During 20086, new legislation relating to UK pension schemes resulted in the Compensation Commuttees
approving changes to the retirement benefit arrangements for Mr Ratciffe The recommended changes
were developed by the management of Carnival Corporation & plc and Princess Cruises in consultation
with their pension and tax adwisors and resulted in no material change to the retirement benefit provisions
for Mr Ratchffe

Mr Foschi has no company pension arrangements with Carnival Corporation & ple

IMPACT OF REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS ON COMPENSATION

in making determinations regarding executive compensation, the Compensation Committees consider
relevant 1ssues relating to accounting treatment, tax treatment (both company and indmdual) and
regulatory requirements The global nature of Carnival Corporation & plc's operations necessarily means
that monitoring these technical 1Issues and considenng their potential impact on appropriate design and
operation of executive remuneration programs I1s increasingly a complex exercise Technucal 1ssues are
evaluated along with Camival Corporation & plc's philosophy and objectives for executive compensation
and its corporate governance principles
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CONCLUSION

The Compensation Committees believe that the compensation levels for 2006 for the NEOs are
reasonable and appropriate given Carmwval Corporation & pic’s philosophy and objectives The
compensation opportunities and program destgn have resulted in successtul attraction and retenton of
executives who have delivered ouistanding financial performance results and shareholder returns over
a sustained period The vanable compensation elements also incorporate mto the overall remuneration
program performance results over both the short-term and long-term

The Compensation Committee The Compensation Committee
of Carnival Corporation of Carnival plc
Amold W Donald, Chairman Arnold W Donald, Charrman
Richard J Glasier Richard J Glasier
Baroness Hogg Baroness Hogg
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPHS

Carnival Corporation

The following graph compares the Pnce Performance of $100f investedin Carnival Corporation common
stock with the Price Performance of $100 if invested 1n each of the S&P 500 Index, the Dow Jones U S
Travel and Leisure Index (the “Dow Jones Index”) and the FTSE 100 Index The Pnce Performance,
as used in the Performance Graph, 1s calculated by assuming $100 1s invested at the beginning of
the penod in Carnival Corporatton common stock at a price equal to the market value At the end of
each fiscal year the total value of the investment 1s computed by taking the number of shares owned,
assumuing Carnuval Corporation dvidends are reinvested on an annual basis, multpled by the market

price of the shares at the end of each fiscal year
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Carnival plc

The following graph compares the Price Performance of $100 invested in Carmival plc ADSs, each
representing one ordinary share of Carmval plc {priorto Apni 17, 2003 each ADS represented four ordinary
shares of Carnival pic), with the Price Performance of $100 invested in each of the S&P 500 Index, the
Dow Jones Index and the FTSE 100 Index The Price Performance, as used in the Performance Graph,
1s calculated by assurming $100 was invested at the beginning of the penod in Carruval pic ADSs The
total value of the investment at the end of each subsequent fiscal year 1s computed by taking the number
of ADSs owned, assuming Carnival plc dividends are reinvested on an annual basis, multipiied by the

market pnce of ADSs at the end of each fiscal year
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INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were the auditors of Carmival Corporation & pic during 2006 and 2005
Aggregate fees far professional services rendered by PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the years ended
November 30, 2006 and 2005 are set forth below

Carnival Carnival
Corporation & pic Corporation &
2006 ple 2005
(in mithons) (in millrons)

Audit Fees $4 9 $37

Audit-Related Fees oom o om
Tax Fees 00 02
Ali Other Fees 0 Qu 01
Total $49 540

(1) Lessthan $50,000

Audit Fees for 2006 and 2005 were for professional services rendered for the audits of the Carnival
Corporation & plc joint Annua!l Report on Form 10-K, including our consoiidated financial statements,
quarterly reviews of our joint Quarterty Reports on Form 10-Q, the audits of the Carnival plc IFRS
annual consolidated financial statements, consents, opinions on management’s assessment of our
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting 1in connection with our comphance with Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, comfort letters, registration statements, statutory audits of
vanous international subsidiaries and other agreed upon procedures

Audit-Related Fees for 2006 and 2005 were mostly for employee benefit plan audits
Tax Fees for 2005 were for services related to tax compliance and tax planning

All Other Fees for 2006 were prnimarnly for Immigration and Naturahzation Service certifications and
license fees for internal audit software Fees for 2005 were pnmanly for actuanal services and employee
benefit plan consulting and Immugration and Naturahization Service certifications

All of the services described above were approved by the Audit Committees, and in doing so, the Audit
Committees did not rely on the de mmirurmis excepbon set forth in Rule 2-01(c)(7){(1)(C) under Regulation S-X

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of
Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm

In December 2003, the Audit Committees adopted Key Policies and Procedures which address, among
other matters, pre-approval of audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent
registered certified public accounting firm  The Key Policies and Procedures reguire that all services
to be provided by the independent registered certified public accounting firm must be approved by the
Audit Committees pnior to the performance of such services The Audit Committees consider whether
the services requested are consistent with the rules of the U S Secunties and Exchange Commission
on auditor iIndependence
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEES

Carnival Corporation and Carmival plc are two separate legal entiies and, therefore, each has a separate
board of directors, each of which in turn has its own Audit Committee In accordance with their charter,
each Audit Commitiee assists the relevant board of directors in carrying out its oversight of

e the integrity of the relevant financial statements,
e the company’s comphance with iegal and regulatory requrements,
e the auditors’ qualifications and independence, and

& the performance of the company's internal audit functions and independent auditors

Both Audit Committees are subject to the audit committee independence requirements under the
corporate gevernance standards of the NYSE and relevant U S Secunibes and Exchange Commission
rules, and the Audit Committee of Carnival pic 1s also subject to the requirements of the UK Combined
Code The two Audit Committees haveidentical members and each currently consists of five independent
(as defined by the listing standards of the NYSE currently in effect and the UK Combined Code), non-
employee directors  Each board of directors has determined that Richard J Glasier s both “independent”
and an *audit committee financial expert,” as defined by SEC rules In addition, the board of Carnival
plc has determined that Richard J Glasier has “recent and relevant financial expenence” for purposes
of the UK Combined Code

Management has pnmary responsibiiity for Carmival Corporatron & ple’s financial reporting process,
including its system of internal control, and for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
Carnival Corporation & plc’s independent auditors are responsible for performing an independent audit
of those financial statements and expressing an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements
with U S generally accepted accounting pninciples  The Audit Committees are responsible for monitoring
and overseeing the financial reporting process and the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and for supervising the relationship between Carnival Corporation & ple and its independent auditors,
as well as reviewing the group's systems of internal controls and comphance with the group Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics  The Audit Commuttees have met and held discussions with management
of Carnival Corporation & plc and the independent auditors  In this context, management represented to
the Audit Commuttees that Carruval Corporation & ple’s consolidated financial statements were prepared
in accordance with U 8 generally accepted accounting principles

The Audit Committees (1) reviewed and discussed Carnival Corporation & plc’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended November 30, 2006 with Carmival Corporation & plc's management
and with Carnival Corporation & plc’s independent auditors, (1) discussed with Carnival Corporation &
plc’s independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No
61, and (u1) recerved the wnitten disclosures and the letter from Carnival Corporation & ple's independent
accountants required by Independence Standards Board Statement No 1 (Independence Discussions
with Audit Commuttees) and discussed with Carnival Corperation & pic’s independent auditors the
independent auditors’ independence The Audit Committees also considered whether the provision to
the relevant entity by the independent auditors of non-audit services was compatible with maintaining
the independence of the iIndependent auditors Based on the reviews and discussions descnbed above,
the Audit Committees recommended to the boards of directors that the audited consolidated financial
statements of Carmival Corporation & plc be inciuded in Carmval Corporation & plc’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2006 for fiing with the US Secunties and Exchange
Commission

The Audit Committee The Audit Committee
of Carnival Corparation of Carnival plc
Richard J Glasier, Chairman Richard J Glasier, Charrman
Richard G Capen, Jr Richard G Capen, Jr
Modesto A Maidique Modesto A Maidique
Stuart Subotmick Stuart Subotnick
Laura Weil Laura Well
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TRANSACTIONS OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

Transactions with Micky Anson Micky Anson, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 1s also the
Chairman, President and the indirect sole shareholder of FBA |I, inc , the sole general partner of Miami
Heat Limited Partnership {*MHLP™), the owner of the Miami Heat, a professional basketball team He s
also the indirect sole shareholder of Basketball Properties, Inc, the sole general partner of Basketball
Properties, Ltd (“BPL"), the manager and operator of AmencanAirlines Arena Pursuant to a five-year
advertising and promotion agreement between Carnival Cruise Lines, MHLP and BPL effective July 2004,
Carnival Cruise Lines paid an aggregate of $248,700 in fiscal 2006 for the advertising and promohon of
Carnival Cruise Lines dunng Miami Heat games and other events held at the AmerncanAirines Arena,
located in Miami, Flonda

In addition, in October 2004 Carnmival Corporation entered into a seven-year agreement with BPL for the
use of six courtside lounge seats at the Miami Heat games played at the AmencanAifines Arena and
other public events at the arena Under the agreement, Carnival Corporahion agreed to pay $180,000
per year for the first five years, plus taxes, subject to a 5% increase in years six and seven

Transactions with the Ted Arison Family Foundation USA, Inc  Sharn Anson (Micky Anison’s sister)
is the Charrman of the Board of Trustees and President of the Ted Anson Family Foundation USA,
Inc (the “Foundation”), a chantable foundation established by Carnwval Corporation’s founder, Ted
Anson Carnival Corporation leases approximately 100 square feet of office space to the Foundation
and employs one of its employees Duning fiscal 2006, Carnival Corporation received approximately
$132,000 from the Foundation {or both lease payments and for all costs incurred by Carnival Corporation
related to this employee It1s expected that Carnival Corporation will continue these arrangements with
the Foundation tn the future

Registration Rights Pursuant to a letter agreement (the “Trust Registration Rights Agreement”) dated
July 11, 1989, Carnival Corporation granted to the Ted Anson Irrevocable Trust {the “Irrevocable Trust™)
and the Anson Children’s lrrevocable Trust (the “Children’s Trust,” and together with the Irrevocable
Trust, the “Trusts”) certan registration nghts with respect to certain shares of Carnival Corporation
common stock heid for investment by the Trusts (the “Shares”) The beneficianes of the Trusts included
the children of Ted Anson, including Micky Anson, our Charrman of the boards and Chief Executive
Officer, and Shan Arnson, a major shareholder Effective December 26, 1991, the Children’s Trust was
divided into three separate continued trusts, including continued trusts for Micky Anson, Shan Anson
and Michael Anson

Under the Trust Registration Rights Agreement, Carnival Corporation has granted the Trusts demand
and piggyback registration nghts  Carmwval Corporation 1s not required to effect any demand registration
unless all of the Shares owned by either of the Trusts are included in the demand Carmival Corporation
has agreed to bear all expenses relating to such demand and piggyback registrations, except for fees
and disbursements of counsel for the Trusts, selling costs, underwnting discounts and applicable filing
fees

Under a registration nghis agreement dated June 14, 1991, as amended by an amendment dated
July 31, 1991 and a succession agreement dated May 28, 2002 (together, the "Anson Registration
Rights Agreement”), Carnival Corporation granted certain registration nghts to Ted Anson with respect
to certain shares of common stock beneficially owned by him (the “Anson Shares”™) in consideration
for $10,000 The registration nghts were held by the Estate of Ted Anson The Estate of Ted Anson
subsequently transferraed the Arison Shares to the Nicke! 1997 Irevocable Trust (formerly known as
The 1997 Irrevocable Trust of Micky Anson}, the Artsfare 1992 Irrevocable Trust (formerly known as the
Ted Anson 1992 Irrevocable Trust for Lin No 2) and the Eternity Four Trust (formerly known as the Ted
Anson 1994 Irrevocable Trust for Shart No 1) {collectively, the “Family Trusts”) The Anson Registration
Rights Agreement provides the Family Trusts and certain transferees with demand and piggyback
registration nghts Carnival Corporation has agreed to bear all expenses relating to such demand and
piggyback registrations, except for fees and disbursements of counsel for the Family Trusts, selling
costs, underwriting discounts and applicable fiing fees
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At the request of the Family Trusts and certain of their transferees, we filed a shelf registration statement
in March 2006 These shareholders requested the registration statement for financial, estate and tax
planming purposes In accordance with the Arson Registration Rights Agreement, we were required to
bear certain expenses totaling approximately $110,000 n connection with the filing of the registration
statement

Agreements with Kirk Lanterman In 1999 and years pnor thereto, Mr Lanterman deferred recept
of a portion of his annual bonus In exchange, Carnival Corporation and Mr Lanterman entered into
a Retrement and Consulting Agreement, which provides that Carnival Corporation will pay him the
deferred bonus amounts plus interest in monthly installments over the 15 years following his retirement
During fiscal 2008, Carmval Corporation paid Mr Lanterman approximately $2 milion under the terms
of his Retirement and Consulting Agreement

in November 2004, HAL entered into Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with Mr
Lanterman The Consulting Agreement expired in accordance with its terms on November 30, 2006
During the term of the Consutting Agreement, Mr Lanterman provided such consulting services and
other assistance as required by HALs President on strategic, financial and historical analyses and
other various services as specified by HAL's President, up to a maximum of 1,000 hours annually The
Consulting Agreement contains confidentiality and indemnification provisions  HAL has indemnified Mr
Lanterman from any losses ansing from his provision of the consulting services subject to the Consulting
Agreement, subject to customary exceptions Dunng fiscal 2008, Mr Lanterman received compensation
of approximately $788,000 under the terms of the Consulting Agreement He did not participate in any
Incentive compensation plans offered by HAL or any affiiate of HAL, but was eligible for medical and
dental insurance and certain other benefits

Brother of Robert H Dickinson Carnival Cruise Lines entered into an agreement with Waste
Management National Services, Inc (“WMNS”) forthe analytical, management, collectton, transportation,
disposal and recycling services for certain wastes generated or accumulated by its vessels n U S and
foreign ports  We have been adwvised that John Dickinson, the brother of Robert H Dickinson (President
and Chief Executive Officer of Camival Cruise Lines and a member of our boards of directors), served
as a consultant to WMNS n connechon with the negotiation of this agreement and receives fees based
on Carnival Cruise Lines’ usage of WMNS under the agreement John Dickinson advised us that he
received approximately $37,000 during fiscal 2006 from WMNS

Son of Pier Luigi Foschi  The son of Pier Luigi Foschi, one of our executive officers and a director, 18
a minonty pariner in Studio Biscozzi-Nobill, an Italian tax consulting firm, which i1s retained from time to
time to provide tax advice to Costa, one of Carnival pic’s subsidiaries  During fiscal 2006, Costa paid
approximately $120,000 to Studio Biscozzi-Nobil for providing such services to Costa

Transactions with Affiliated Entities Carnival Corporation & pic has adopted a policy of dealing with
affilated entities on an arm's-length basis and Carnival Corporation & pic may not engage in business
transactions with any affihate on terms and conditions less favorable to Carnival Corporation & plc than
terms and condions available at the time for comparable transactions with unaffilated persons All
contracts between us and an entity in which a director or sentor employee of Carnival Corporation & plc
has an interest must be approved by disinterested members of the boards of directors
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